SAKRET

COMPANY DESCRIPTION
SECURED NOTES

25 February 2020



Important legal information SAKRET-

* This Company Description has been drawn up by the Management Board of AS Sakret Holdings (“Sakret”, hereinafter also the “Company” or the “Issuer”)
and made public solely for the purposes of admission to trading of the Company’s Notes on the multilateral trading facility (an alternative market) First
North operated by the NASDAQ Riga and may not be used for any other purposes.

» This Company Description or any information contained herein does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to purchase any securities in
any jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is not authorized or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer or solicitation. Each violation
of such restrictions may constitute a violation of applicable securities laws of such countries.

* This Company Description is drawn up based on information which was valid as of 25 February 2020.
* The Notes that are mentioned in this Company Description have their own Terms, which should be read and considered separately.

* The statements of fact, information, opinions and estimates contained in this Company Description have been obtained, compiled or arrived at by AS «Sakret
Holdings», its founders and its associated companies from sources believed to be reliable and in good faith, but no representation or warranty expressed or
implied is made as to their accuracy, completeness or correctness. In particular any numbers, valuations and schedules contained in this document are
preliminary and are for discussion purposes only.

* The information contained in this document is published for the assistance of recipients but is not to be relied upon as authoritative or taken in substitution
for the exercise of judgement by any recipient and AS «Sakret Holdings», its founders and its associated companies accept no liability whatsoever for any
direct or consequential loss arising from the use of this document or its contents.

» Expressions of opinion herein are subject to change without notice. AS «Sakret Holdings», its founders and its associated companies and/or their officers,
directors or employees may own or have positions in any securities or investments mentioned herein, and may from time to time add to or dispose of any
such securities or investments.

* This document should not be used for advertising, broadcast or as product endorsement purposes or exploit the information available in this document to
any third parties in any manner without the written consent of AS «Sakret Holdings».

* Investing into debt securities involves risks. While every care has been taken to ensure that this Company Description presents a fair and complete overview
of the risks related to the Issuer; the operations of the Issuer and its subsidiaries, and to the Notes, the value of any investment in the Notes may be adversely
affected by circumstances that are either not evident at the date hereof or not reflected in the Company Description.




Management Board Statement SARRET-

Hereby We, members of the board of AS «Sakret Holdings», Maris Kelpis, Juris Grinvalds, Andis Ziedonis
certify that, by paying sufficient attention to this purpose, the information included in the Company
Description and in the Terms of the Notes is true, in accordance with the facts, and no information which
may affect its meaning is concealed therein.

The Company Description contains references to the Terms of the Notes Issue dated as of 8 August 2019.
Investor must read and consider the specified section of the Terms of the Notes Issue. The latest financial
data is included in this Company Description, for additional information please see financial reports
attached to this document.

Maris Kelpis Juris Grinvalds Andis Ziedonis
Chairman of the Board Member of the Board Member of the Board




Company history

Sakret SIA is registered
and the Sakret licence for
operating in Baltic
markets is received

opened

Sakret Plus starts its
operations and Sakret
office in Estonia is

Estonia is

market

Building of the factory in
finalized
Sakret enters the Finnish

and

The largest dry mixes
production factory in the
Baltics starts its operations in

Kédainiai, Lithuania

Office in Lithuania is
opened, option to operate
in Finland and Leningrad
oblast (vicinity of St.
Petersburg)

Dry production factory is built in Riga
and starts its operations

A new business plan and
strategy is developed for
the business in difficulties

World and Latvia is hit by
the financial crisis, having
a significant impact on the
construction market and
Sakret

Loan refinancing with DNB Bank

Shareholders invested
additional capital and
successfully refinanced
existing long-term loan

After unfavorable market
conditions recovery begins
supported by the strong
2018 results

Sakret EBITDA exceeds €2.3m
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Business overview

1)
2)
3)

Founded in 2003, Sakret is a Latvia-based leading manufacturer of
ready-mixed dry mortars.

Main products include masonry and repair mortars, ETICS;
concrete and plasters.

Products are distributed in Latvia, Lithuania, Estonia and Finland.

The company has more than 25% market share in the Baltics with
a leading position in it's key market segments.

Total production capacity of Sakret plants is 500k tonnes per year,
located in three countries, 150k in Estonia, 100k in Latvia and
250k in Lithuania.

The company operates under the global Sakret license which was
founded in 1966 by American and German entrepreneurs.

Sakret holds exclusive distribution rights for the Baltic states and
Finland where it currently operates, along with Belarus, Ukraine
and Volga Federal district in Russia, which are not operational yet.

The company has a leading position in profit margins compared to
other Sakret franchises in EU.

Unaudited
Includes one time income from debt value adjustment in the amount of 8 494 ths. EUR
External thermal insulations component systems.

KEY FINANCIALS

EUR '000

Revenue
growth %
Gross profit
margin %
EBITDA
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21,870
2.8%
6,005
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10,1552
46.4%
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37.8%

Coatings




Own product breakdown SAKRET-
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Production plants

YEAR OF CONSTRUCTION
MAXIMUM CAPACITY

PRODUCTION OF LIQUID MIXTURES
PRODUCTION UNDER ONE ROOF

STORAGE FACILITIES

RIGA
2004
100,000 TONNES PER YEAR
&
®
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Organizational structure

SUPERVISORY BOARD

ANDRISVANAGS | VALERIJALIEGE | ARTIS GRINBERGS

UAB Sakret LT Director

ALEKSANDRAS TOROPCINAS

MANAGEMENT BOARD

MARIS KELPIS | JURIS GRINVALDS | ANDIS ZIEDONIS

Sakret OU Director

KASPARS PACEVICS

Management &
Administration

Note: At the end of 2019 Sakret had 140 employees

Quality control &

Production
Development

Planning & Accounting
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SAKRET~
Management

MARIS KELPIS

Founder, Chairman of the Management Board

Maris is the founder of Sakret and the main visionary. He is the main decision maker, but has a strong belief in his management team and
employees. He has held a controlling stake in Sakret since the foundation of the company and still follows the operations on a daily basis.

JURIS GRINVALDS

Chief Commercial Officer

From 1996 to 2003, worked in the Danish paint company SKALFLEX. Joined Sakret in early beginning of 2003 as Sales Director. Lead the
construction project of the largest dry mixing plant in the Baltic states. Plant in Kédainiai in Lithuania was opened in 2008. Currently
coordinates Sakret sales in the Baltics and Scandinavian countries, as well as is the Director of Sakret Plus. Juris graduated from the
Faculty of Civil Engineering of Latvia University of Agriculture. Currently serves as Board Member of Association of Building Materials
Manufacturers.

ANDIS ZIEDONIS

Chief Financial Officer

Andis has more than 20 year experience as CFO. He joined Sakret in 2006 after 8 years in one of the largest press publishing house in the
Baltics, where he started as an Economist and was promoted to Chief Economist and CEO. He also has experience in banks. Andis follows
every number in Sakret books and is responsible identifying financial efficiencies, as well as for putting together the future financial
plan. He holds a combined BSc in Engineering and Economics from Riga Technical University.




. SAKRET~
Supervisory board

ANDRIS VANAGS

Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Andris has spent long years working for construction material companies producing cement, concrete and other products. Prior
experience include client service manager at AS Broceéni (currently Schwenk) and project manager at AS Brocénu Siferis. Andris holds a
BSc in chemical technology , MSc in silicate and high-temperature materials chemistry and technology from Riga Technical University
and PhD in management science in the sub-branch of business management from Business University Turiba. He acted as a Special
Advisor to the former Prime Minister of Latvia, Maris Kucinskis, and is a Member of the Counsellors Convention of RTU and Member of
the Board of Latvian Chamber of Commerce and Industry.

VALERIJA LIEGE

Member of the Supervisory Board

With more than 15 years’ experience in corporate finance and change management, Valérija has led top Baltic companies through
complex turnarounds, implementing operational and financial restructurings. She is Partner at Oaklins Latvia and has managed various
M&A and capital raising projects and advised top regional banks and private equity houses. Valérija is an Executive Committee member
of Oaklins International as well as a supervisory council member of International School of Riga and Lido AS. Valérija holds an MSc in
Consulting and Coaching for Change (with distinction) from Oxford /HEC Paris, a BSc in Economics and Business Administration from
the Stockholm School of Economics in Riga and is a CFA charter holder

ARTIS GRINBERGS

Member of the Supervisory Board

Artis Grinbergs served as an economic adviser to two prime ministers of the republic of Latvia. Previously he gained experience in
manufacturing industrial building materials and participated in an apprenticeship program on global financial systems and economic
development trends. Artis holds a BSc degree in Business and Economics from University of Latvia.

10



Shareholder structure

ligvars Bilinskis

Maris Kelpis

Other <5%

SIA Sakret Plus

SIA Sakret

Parvaldibas Sistémas SIA

AS Sakret Holdings

UAB Sakret LT

Sakret OU

SAKRET-
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Units

ths. m2

. SAKRET-
Market overview (1)
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» Last 3 quarters of 2019 have seen a steady pickup in new building permits across all markets comparing to the same period in 2018.

* Most notable growth was in Lithuanian residential building permits +22.5% and Latvian non-residential building permits +20%.

Source: Central Statistical Bureau of Latvia, Statistics Lithuania, Statistics Estonia
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Market overview (2)
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M Single-family buildings Multi-storey buildings M Single-family buildings Multi-storey buildings

All residential buildings

Most of the residential buildings in the Baltics have been built during USSR with low energy efficiency standards and require maintenance.

SAKRET-

The current market is not renewing the buildings at their rate of depreciation thus creating a shortage of new housing stock and demand for renovation services.

Favorable bank financing, low interest rates, greater household purchasing power and government support programs for first home buyers accelerate demand for

new houses.

These factors indicate of the expected residential construction growth, including heat insulation works on the outdated and energy inefficient buildings.

Source: Forecon, June 2017
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Competition

* Raw materials - a key cost component and their quality / specifics determine the recipe of the end
product, its quality and margin. A strategic location of the plant is important in order to be located in
close proximity to the suppliers.

* Production capacity - development of a new factory requires significant capital inflow, which often
can reach the level of expected revenues over several years. However, available capacity ensures the
ability to produce a wide range of products as well as capitalize on market growth;

* Product development & range - includes innovative solutions and adaptations of products (recipes)
to specific developing and local market needs.

* Economies of scale - substantial capital investment and operating costs of the plant require high
revenues in order to reach a break-even point.

KEY PLAYERS

[ISAKRET [NAUF (2l

@ Gyproc 1sover fibo "weber

SAKRET-
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PRODUCT PRODUCTION
DEVELOPMENT CAPACITY
& RANGE
CAPAROL
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Major clients
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SAKRET-
Use of proceeds

* Historically, Sakret made expansion investments co-financed Transaction structure
by Luminor (then DNB bank), including loans for
construction of the factories in Lithuania (total investment EUR'000 pre-transaction post-transaction
9.50m EUR) and Estonia (total investment 6.70m EUR). _
Long-term loan from Luminor bank 15,591 -
* As a result of the financial crisis of 2008-2009, Sakret’s core Long-term loan from BlueOrange bank - 4,000
rr;?rketds contracted and return on the loans was negatively Bonds . 3,000
attected. Long-term liabilities with financial institutions 15,591 7,000
 In 2013, a restructuring was done, forming a holding Credit-line limit from Luminor bank 1,000 -
structure and renegotiating the repayment schedule, Sakret Factoring limit from Luminor bank 1,000 -
returned to positive cash flow. Credit-line limit from BlueOrange bank - 2,000
« At the end of 2017, two Scandinavian banks - DNB and Factoring limit from BlueOrange bank - 1,700
Nordea, decided to merge their Baltic operations. Luminor Short-term liabilities with financial institutions 2,000 3,700
bank was created as a result. In 2018, the newly formed bank
was sold to USA-based investment fund Blackstone.
* In 2018 Luminor bank revaluated its existing strategy. As a Achieving positive equi
result, Luminor has decided to accept refinancing of Sakret gpP quity EUR'000 2018 2019
loan at a discount due to the length of the repayment e Eieaet & rera bl syl _
sch_edule and the internal procedures that do not allow to 1.015m EUR in share capital. Due to Share capital 35 1,050
write-off part of the loan. the discount granted by Luminor Reorganisation reserve (8,492) (8,492)
; . bank, the equity has increased.
* In 2019 proceeds from the bond issue were used to refinance ’ cquity Oth 26 26
Luminor liabilities. Toget.her. with the .shareholde:-rs Crreserves
contribution, the consolidated equity Retained earnings 259 8,498
is now positive, allowing Sakret to .
participate in several grant and Minority interest 194 232

energy-efficiency increase programs.




Future growth strategy

Concrete, masonry and basic plasters - key product groups that take up most of the
Sakret’s revenue share as well as market share in the key geographies. The market is
expected to be fairly flat, however, it is key to retain the existing market share in order
to remain the most competitive player.

Given that manufacturing of building materials implies significant fixed costs (i.e.
running of the factories), retention of revenues is the key driver behind margin
sustainability - once the breakeven point has been reached, EBITDA growth
accelerates significantly through any additional production.

Growth strategy is oriented towards developing products that supplement the
existing product line such as floor waterproofing and facade insulation systems.
Another development route includes products with simpler manufacturing process
and lower raw material requirement, thus allowing to increase production volumes.

Insulation systems & accessories - a quickly growing market, given the aged
residential building capital in the Baltics. Sakret is best positioned to capitalize on this
growth, given its unique product portfolio and offering (i.e. ability to offer the ‘full
package’ to its clients when it comes to insulation, including all of the necessary
accessories);

Flooring, glues and other segments - smaller segments of Sakret that are not top
priority, however, pose additional growth opportunities in future, in case any of the
‘key’ segments would start to lag.

Significant upside is available for Sakret, supported by both unused production
capacity, market potential overseas and potential to relocate the existing Latvian
factory next to a sand quarry.

SALES INCREASE

ADDITIONAL
OPPORTUNITIES

AVAILABLE
PRODUCTION
CAPACITY

" BUSINESS
PLAN

TOP LINE

SAKRET-
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. . SAKRETe
Financial forecast

REVENUE AND GROWTH FORECAST

* Over the next two years, Sakret is expected to record stable 30000 12.0%
revenue CAGR of c¢.2.2%, reaching almost € 23.4 m in revenues 21870 22292 22820 23362
by the end of 2022. 22500 21266 9.0%
19299
* While the largest markets (concrete, basic plasters, masonry) z
are expected to stagnate during this period, this will be offset by o« 15000 6.0%
strong growth in heat insulation as well as further expansion in o
other higher priced markets, such as value added plasters. 2500 3 0%
» Sakret is continuously in discussions with its clients to increase
the market price and is expecting to record sustainable growth 0 0.0%
in costs. 2017 2018 2019 2020F 2021F 2022F
» It is conservatively expected that the gross profit margin will Revenue growth %
stabilize at 2019 level over the coming three years due to
stagnation of the main product line, which will be compensated GROSS PROFIT FORECAST
by introducing higher margin products. o0 27.5% 27.5% 27.5% 27.5% -
y 25.4%
6250 24% 25%
5000
= 20%
W 3750
< 15%
2500
1250 10%
- 5%
2017 2018 2019 2020F 2021F 2022F
Gross profit Gross margin %
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. . SAKRETe
Financial statements

EUR '000 2016A 2017A 2018A 2019A! EUR '000 2016A 2017A 2018A 2019A!
Revenue of own production 16,152 17,639 19,611 20,622 Intangible assets 317 412 446 464
growth, % -7.8% 9.2% 11.2% 5.2% Fixed assets 12,231 11,424 10,628 9,867
Revenue from sales of cement 587 555 552 533 Long-term financial assets 14 14 34 -
Revenue from sales of accesories 1,477 1,651 1,816 1,530 Total long-term assets 12,562 11,850 11,108 10,331
Other revenue 466 648 620 564 Inventory 2,515 2,292 2,287 2,140
Discounts given (1,037) (1,195) (1,333) (1,379) Accounts receivable 2,182 2,730 2,951 2,340
Revenue 17,648 19,299 21,266 21,870 Cash and cash equivalents 398 306 342 710
growth, % -7.8% 9.4% 10.2% 2.8% Total short-term assets 5,094 5,328 5,580 5,190
Gross Profit 4,427 4,649 5,393 6,005 TOTAL ASSETS 17,656 17,178 16,688 15,521
margin, % 25.1% 24.1% 25.4% 27.5%
Sales costs (2,545) (2,765) (2,800)  (2,900) TOTAL EQUITY (8,125) (8,345) (7,978) 1,314
Administration costs (982) (1,049) (1,470) (2,239) Long-term liabilities to financial institutions 17,341 16,641 - 2,200
Other income (expense) 83 (64) (54) 8,427 Long-term liabilities to related parties 768 758 644 575
EBITDA 2,061 1,798 1,971 10,1552 Other long-term liabilities 167 167 167 3,167
margin, % 11.7% 9.3% 9.3% 46.4% Long-term liabilities 18,276 17,566 811 5,942
Depreciation and amortisation (1,077) (1,028) (902) (862) Short-term liabilities to financial institutions 3,342 2,458 18,575 3,814
Interest income (expense) (878) (977) (653) (965) Short-term liabilities to related parties 625 422 469 258
Profit before tax 106 (205) 417 8,329 Accounts payable 1,957 3,006 2,977 2,747
margin, % 0.6% -1.1% 2.0% 38.1% Other short-term liabilities 1,580 2,072 1,834 1,446
Net Profit 26 (221) 367 8,277 Short-term liabilities 7,505 7,958 23,855 8,265
margin, % 0.2% -1.1% 1.7% 37.8% TOTAL LIABILITIES 25,781 25,523 24,666 14,207
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 17,656 17,178 16,688 15,521

1)  Unaudited
2)  Includes one time income from debt value adjustment in the amount of 8 494 ths. EUR 19



SAKRETe
Issue terms

ISSUER AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
SECURITY TYPE Secured Notes
ISIN LvV0000870038
ISSUE SIZE EUR 3,790,000
TOTAL NUMBER OF NOTES 3790

NOMINAL VALUE EUR 1,000
CURRENCY EUR

ANNUAL INTEREST RATE 9%

COUPON FREQUENCY Quarterly

DAY COUNT CONVENTION European 30/360
FIRST SETTLEMENT DAY 30.08.2019
MATURITY DATE 30.08.2024
REPAYMENT SCHEDULE Quarterly

CALL OPTION (EARLY REDEMPTION) The Issuer can carry out full early redemption (call option), on 30 August 2021 by paying 90% for the Nominal amount, or on 30
August 2022 by paying 95% for the nominal amount or on 30 August 2023 by paying 100% for the Nominal amount. If the Issuer takes
decision on the early redemption of Notes, the Issuer shall notify Noteholders at least 20 (twenty) Business Days prior to the
redemption date of Notes.

Each Noteholder has a right to demand full early redemption (put option) on 30 August 2023 at 90% for the Nominal amount. In order
to exercise the put option the Noteholders have to submit an application to the Issuer or to its appointed agent not later than 40
PUT OPTION (EARLY REDEMPTION) (forty) Business Days prior the put option date.

ADMISSION TO TRADEING First North Nasdaq Riga

ARRANGER BlueOrange Bank AS

CERTIFIED ADVISER BlueOrange Bank AS

PAYING AGENT Nasdaq CSD SE

USE OF PROCEEDS Funds that are raised from Notes issue were used in refinancing of current loan liabilities of the Issuer and its subsidiaries.

Note: For full overview please refer to the Terms of the Notes



SAKRET~
Covenants (1)

From the Issue Date of Notes to the date of repayment thereof, the Issuer and its subsidiary companies (if any) shall undertake the following:
The Issuer and its subsidiaries shall continue business operations in the production of dry mixes and ready-made liquid mixes;

* Not to change the control of the Issuer (not to sell more than 50% of shares of the Issuer or its ultimate holding company);

* Notto commence Issuer’s liquidation and not to reduce the equity capital;

* Any transactions with Related Persons shall be at market prices;

* In case of investment larger than EUR 100,000 the Issuer or its subsidiaries may invest in share capital of other companies only if the participation share is at least
51% and the Issuer or its subsidiaries retains full control of a company;

* Not to sell, present, change, rent, invest, or otherwise transfer into utilization the right to use the trademarks owned or otherwise utilized by the Issuer and/or its
subsidiary companies, except if trademarks are sold, presented, changed, rented, invested, or otherwise transferred into utilization to the Issuer’s subsidiary
company, its managing company, or any companies dependent on the managing company, other enterprises or companies which have directly or indirectly
acquired participation in the equity capital of the Issuer or in which the Issuer has acquired direct or indirect participation (if any), or except if trademarks are
sold, presented, changed, rented, invested, or otherwise transferred into utilization to be used outside Latvia, Estonia and Lithuania;

* Notto pay out dividends, if only audited consolidated Net Debt/Equity indicator is below 3.5 and if such dividend payout is allowed by other credit agreements;

* To maintain consolidated DSCR (profit before interest payments, tax payments, depreciation and amortization calculation against all interest, coupon and principal
payments) at least 1.1%;

* To maintain both consolidated Net Debt/Equity (total interest bearing liabilities minus cash against equity) and Net Debt/EBITDA (total interest bearing liabilities
minus cash against profit before interest payments, tax payments, depreciation and amortization calculation) indicators not exceeding:
* 5.0%,as0f31.12.2019
* 4.5,as0f31.12.2020
* 4.0,as0f31.12.2021
* 3.5,as0f31.12.2022

Lfor DSCR, Net Debt/Equity and Net Debt/EBITDA calculations as of 31.12.2019, EBITDA and Equity will be adjusted to one-off refinancing expenses

21



Covenants (2)

* From the Issue Date, to prepare and publish unaudited consolidated quarterly reports as per Latvian accounting standards within 2 months after the
reporting period;

 Starting from 31.05.2020, to prepare and publish unaudited consolidated quarterly reports as per International Financial Reporting Standards within
2 months after the reporting period;

* Until 31.05.2020, to prepare and publish audited consolidated annual report as per International Financial Reporting Standards for the year 2019
audited by Big4 (EY, Deloitte, PwC or KPMG). The respective auditor’s opinion shall be unqualified;

 Starting from 01.01.2021, to prepare and publish audited consolidated annual report as per International Financial Reporting Standards within 4
months after the reporting period audited by Big4 (EY, Deloitte, PwC or KPMG). The respective auditor’s opinions shall be unqualified;

* Proof of compliance with the financial covenants to be included in every audited consolidated annual report.

Note: The slide presents a short and fractional summary of certain sections of the Terms of the Notes issue. For full overview please refer to the Terms of the Notes

SAKRET-
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Investor rights

Any Noteholder has the right to receive Coupon and Nominal payments in accordance with the Section 4.2.7. “Coupon payments” and 4.2.8. “Procedure of Notes
repayment”, as well as exercise other rights fixed in the Terms of the Issue and legislation of the Republic of Latvia.

Collateral
* The Notes are secured with Collaterals established in accordance with the Collateral Agent Agreement executed between the Issuer and the Collateral Agent and
the Collateral Agreements executed between the Collateral Agent and Sakret Group companies.

* Ranking of the Collaterals securing the Secured Obligations is in detail described in Annex 5 to the Terms of the Issue.

Restrictions on free circulation of the Notes

* The Notes are freely transferable securities and can be pledged. However, the Notes cannot be offered, sold, resold, transferred or delivered in such countries or
jurisdictions or otherwise in such circumstances in which it would be unlawful or require measures other than those required under the laws of the Republic of
Latvia and the United States of America.

The Issuer is in default if at least one of the following occurs:

* The Issuer has failed to make a Coupon payment in full for more than 5 (five) Business Days following the planned payment date;

* The Issuer has failed to make a Nominal value payment in full for more than 5 (five) Business Days following the planned payment date;

* The Issuer has violated the conditions of the Section 5.5. “Covenants” of the Terms of the Notes;

* The Issuer has failed to service other liabilities in the amount of over EUR 100,000 for more than 5 (five) Business Days;

* Insolvency proceedings have been initiated against the Issuer;

* The Issuer has submitted an application for liquidation in the relevant state authorities in Latvia.

Note: The slide presents a short and fractional summary of certain sections of the Terms of the Notes issue. For full overview please refer to the Terms of the Notes

SAKRET-
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Risk factors related to the Issuer (1)

Changes in regulatory
enactments

Macroeconomics risk

Construction industry
risk

Competition risk

Production risk

Relations with key
customers

Credit risk of clients

Financial risk

Refinancing risk

The Issuer carries out its production activity in Latvia, Estonia and Lithuania and most of the risks, which affect it, are related to the general economic situation in all three Baltic countries and regulatory
enactments adopted by each country. The Issuer is headquartered in Latvia and has manufacturing plants in Latvia, Lithuania and Estonia via local subsidiaries, thus every subsidiary operates under the
laws of the respective country and any significant changes in existing regulatory enactments or implementation of new regulations governing corporate taxation, employees’ remuneration, natural
resources taxation and others might negatively affect the business and solvency of the particular subsidiary and Sakret Group as a whole.

The Issuer is engaged in production of high-end quality dry and read-made liquid construction mixtures and construction chemicals in Latvia, Lithuania and Estonia. The majority of the Sakret Group
revenue was generated by building material sales in Latvia, Lithuania and Estonia, remaining was generated by sales of services. The economic situation in all Baltic countries are assessed as stable which is
supported by both macroeconomic data, such as GDP and employment indicators. Latvia and Lithuania currently have an A+ credit rating assigned by Standard & Poor’s with a stable outlooks. Estonia
currently has an AA- credit rating assigned by Standard & Poor’s with a stable outlook. Financial results of Sakret Group depends on the stable macroeconomic situation in each of the Baltic countries.

The demand for dry and read-made liquid construction mixtures that Sakret Group produces is directly linked to the state of construction industry in Baltic countries. Following a rapid growth over the
period of 2003 - 2008, the construction industry in the Baltics went into a nose-dive, with 2010 falling back to the level of 2002. Further years brought approximately 75% of cumulative growth until the
industry faced another fall in 2016. Latvia is expected to face substantial GDP growth above the average EU level over the next couple of years. Real estate prices have been increasing in line with domestic
income and the current low interest environment expand consumer capabilities in housing investments. In Estonia, construction confidence index has currently reached its post-crisis-high level, expecting
further sector growth. Despite positive outlook on construction sector in Baltic countries, the decline of activity in the industry may adversely affect the Sakret Group’s business and financial condition.
Sakret Group direct competitors across all Baltic countries are “Knauf”, “Ceresit”, “Saint-Gobain”, and "Baumit". All Sakret's direct competitors are international companies and have one or more factories in
Latvia, Lithuania and Estonia. In contrast to its competitors, Sakret Group is working exclusively for the Baltic market and is headquartered in the Baltics. The Issuer may have difficulties to compete with
these competitors, thus to remain competitive and to protect profit margins, Issuer must offer new products that keep pace with industrial and technological developments and must respond to customer
requirements on a timely basis. New technologies, changing commercial circumstances (for example, consolidation within a relevant sector), existing competitors (including those with a longer operating
history, greater resources and/or broader range of products) and new entrants to the markets in which Issuer currently operates or markets in which Sakret Group might target for expansion may
adversely affect the Group’s business, financial condition, results of operations or prospects.

Sakret Group operates 4 production plants in Riga (Latvia), Kedainai (Lithuania) and Paide (Estonia), thus any technological issues, human errors, incorrect planning or other issues directly connected with
production processes might result in stoppage of production output of plants, which will negatively affect the financial results of the Sakret Group. Group is operating its production plants since 2004 and
its employees have an extensive experience in managing production processes, thus any potential production risks are monitored and controlled.

Over the past years, the Issuer has maintained a moderate concentration among its customer base and this concentration has been stable over recent years. Sakret Group’s clients are all the largest DIY
chains in the Baltics, therefore, the concentration is directly linked with DIY market concentration. The loss of any of key customers and Issuer’s inability to find adequate alternative customers on a timely
basis, or at all, on commercially acceptable terms, could have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results of operations.

Issuer’s customers have a period of time, generally 45 to 90 days after the date of invoice, depending on the type of customer, in which to effect payment. As a result, Issuer is subject to the risk that its
customers will not pay or will delay the payment for the products they purchased. This credit exposure risk may increase due to liquidity or solvency issues experienced by Issuer’s customers, for example,
as a result of an economic downturn or an adverse change in their business. If Issuer is unable to collect payment for amounts invoiced from its customers, it could have a material adverse effect on its
business, financial condition and results of operations. Issuer assigns credit to customers according to internal credit policy, which is developed, applying thorough internal analysis of Issuer’s customers
and seeking to diversify and limit its credit risk exposure.

After the refinancing of Luminor loan, BlueOrange Bank has provided EUR 4 million long-term loan, EUR 2 million overdraft facility, EUR 1.7 million credit line and EUR 3.0 million was raised via Notes
Issue. Despite the Issuer’s track record with credit institutions, there is a possibility that sources of financing may not be available in the amount required for the Issuer, or their conditions may be too
unfavorable, which may significantly affect Issuer’s ability to ensure sufficient financing for the company’s growth.

Principal of Notes will be repaid as a lump sum at maturity date, therefore the Issuer has increased refinancing risk. The Issuer will seek to refinance Notes issue or look for other funding sources in order to
decrease refinancing risk, but if Notes will not be refinanced before maturity date, as per the management estimates, the Issuer should be able to cover principal of Notes from Group’s own cash flow. In case
of additional capital investments would be required during the duration of Notes, which would decrease cash available for repayment of Notes at the maturity, Issuer plans to refinance part of the Notes
lump sum using long-term liabilities, which will be significantly decreased by 2022, based on the repayment schedule.

SAKRET-



Risk factors related to the Issuer (2) <

In the future, the Issuer’s activities will be affected by its ability to attract, preserve, and motivate highly qualified and experienced personnel. There is competition for personnel with the relevant skills and
Dependence on future experience in Baltic countries and it is comparatively high; however, the Issuer has successful experience in the field of personnel management, offering education, professional growth, and development
employees possibilities, as well as different motivation programs to the employees. As of 2019, the Issuer’s total number of employees was 140 persons. The majority of workers are involved in manufacturing
processes.

Operational risk is a possibility of experiencing losses due to insufficient or unsuccessful inner processes, personnel management, systems, or external circumstances. As of 2019, the number of Group’s
Operational risks employees reached 140 persons; therefore, thorough personnel selection is carried out, accurate descriptions of job duties are compiled, division of duties is coordinated, constant investments are made
within the IT system, which allows the Issuer to reduce operational risks.

The Issuer may be adversely affected by contractual claims, complaints and legal proceedings arising from relationships with partners, customers, competitors or regulatory authorities, as well as negative
publicity such proceedings might cause. Any such legal proceedings, complaints, contractual claims or negative publicity may materially affect the operational activities, financial situation and business
results of the Issuer.

Legal proceeding and
risk of other claims
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Risk factors related to Notes SARRET-

Notes will be secured with Collaterals that will be subject to ranking described in Annex 5 of the Terms of the Notes

Noteholders should be aware that since the Estonian subsidiary of the Issuer is giving upstream collaterals, such collaterals could be contested under Estonian law in a certain case. As per the provisions of
Estonian Commercial Code, an OU (osatihing)-type company shall not amongst others guarantee a loan taken by its shareholder whose share represents more than 5 per cent of its share capital. However, the

Collateral risk Estonian law stipulates that this prohibition does not apply to guaranteeing or securing a loan taken by the parent if grant of guarantee or security/collateral does not harm the financial status of the company
or the interests of its creditors.

If the Issuer fails to make the Coupon and / or Nominal payments in a timely manner, the Collateral Agent, acting in the interest of the Noteholders, will commence the Collateral enforcement proceedings
according to the procedures described in Section 5.4. of the Terms of the Issue.

Notes will be secured with Collaterals established in accordance with the Collateral Agreements executed between the Collateral Providers and the Collateral Agent. In case of Issuer’s insolvency, Noteholders

Notes repayment risk . . L . . . .
pay have the same right to receive their investment as other creditors of the relevant group in accordance with applicable regulatory enactments.

Issuer has a call option, which means, that at certain dates during the term of Notes the Issuer may decide to execute an early repayment of Notes by paying back the principal at the certain price for the

Notes early repayment risk R . ) A .
Y repay Nominal amount to the Noteholders. Noteholders should take into account that Notes early redemption price may be lower than Notes price on the secondary market.

There is a risk, that Nasdaq Riga order to delist Notes from the First North before the maturity after the admission to trading took place, due to changes in FCMC opinion and Legal acts, including Nasdaq Riga

Delisting risk X
g regulations.
Price risk Notes will be repaid for their Nominal Value at the maturity, yet the price in the secondary market may change significantly. Neither the Issuer, nor any other person undertakes to maintain a certain price level
of Notes.
Liquidity risk Neither the Issuer, nor any other person guarantees the minimum liquidity of Notes. Noteholders should take into account that there may be difficulties in selling Notes in the secondary market.
Tax risk Tax rates and tax payment procedure applicable at the moment of purchase of Notes to the tax residents, non-residents of Latvia, and residents of other countries may change. The Issuer will not compensate

for the increase in taxes to Noteholders, therefore Noteholders may receive smaller payments related to Notes.



Other material information

Transactions with related parties

Transactions with related parties shall mean
transactions between the Issuer and the following
entities, controlled by members of the Management
board and/or members of the Supervisory Board:

1) SAKRET NORDEN 0OY

2) ALBAU GROUP: ALBAU SIA, ALBAU UAB,
ALBAU NORDE OU

3) LM21 SIA

Legal proceedings (last year)

There are no insolvency applications nor instituted
insolvency proceedings against the Issuer.

Management Board of the Issuer is not aware of any
legal proceedings in connection with fraud or other
economic violations in which Management Board
Members or Supervisory Board Members or other
employees of the Issuer have been involved.

Share incentive programs

EUR

SAKRET NORDEN 0OY
ALBAU SIA
ALBAU UAB

ALBAU NORDEN OU

LM21 SIA

EUR

SAKRET NORDEN 0OY
ALBAU SIA
ALBAU UAB

ALBAU NORDEN OU

LM21 SIA

31.12.2017
Receivables Liabilities
63 053
159 814
19 629
2 686 201 721
2017
Purchases Sales
368577
1328 454 21937
28 508
338 852 7 720

There are no share-based incentive programs or extraordinary bonus programs in place in the Issuer.

Significant patents

The Issuer does not hold any significant patents

SAKRET-

31.12.2018
Receivables Liabilities
39433
26 140 39922
50521 68 650
15417
261 335
2018
Purchases Sales
318 794
1108 204 21 604
356 306 13 960
47 062 70960
311 648 2220




Certified Adviser SARRET-

«BlueOrange Bank» acts as the First North Certified Adviser for AS «Sakret Holdings»

* Official name: AS BlueOrange Bank

* Registration number: 40003551060 ....;. <
 Main field of activity: Banking services 5. .E:E:E. B Il IeOran e
* Address: SmilSu iela 6, Riga, LV-1050, Latvia e f.:.:.‘

* Web page: www.blueorangebank.com

* Representative:

* Deniss Makedonskis

* E-mail: deniss.makedonskis@blueorangebank.com
* Phone: +371 67034219

As BlueOrange Bank is advising AS «Sakret Holdings» with the preparation of admission documents. The agreement is valid from the day of submitting
the application for admission to trading on First North to Nasdaq Riga until the actual first trading day of the Notes on First North platform.
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Annexes

Annex 1 - Audited consolidated annual report for 2017 (in English)
Annex 2 - Audited consolidated annual report for 2018 (in English)
Annex 3 - Audited non-consolidated annual report for 2017 (in Latvian)
Annex 4 - Audited non-consolidated annual report for 2018 (in Latvian)
Annex 5 - List of collaterals

Annex 6 - Terms of the Notes Issue (without annexes)

SAKRET-
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. . SAKRETe
Contact information

AS "SAKRET HOLDINGS"
“Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu novads, LV - 2121, Latvija
Phone: +371 67803650

e-mail: info@sakret.lv
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
(Company’s registration number 40103251030)

2017 consolidated annual report,

prepared in accordance with
Latvian statutory requirements,
and Independent auditors’ report*

(8th financial year)

* This version of financial statements is a translation from the original, which was prepared in the Latvian
language. All possible care has been taken to ensure that the transiation is an accurate representation of the
original. However, in all matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version
of financial statements takes precedence over this translation.
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration number: 40103251030

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvija, LV-2121

NAME OF THE COMPANY

LEGAL STATUS

REGISTRATION NUMBER,
PLACE AND DATE

TYPE OF OPERATIONS

NACE CODE

SHAREHOLDERS

LEGAL ADDRESS

BOARD MEMBERS

SUBSIDIARIES

COUNCIL OF THE COMPANY

SAKRET HOLDINGS
Joint-Stock Company

40103251030, Riga, 30 September 2009

Holding companies’ activity. Production and sale of dry,
ready for use building materials, chemicals and paints.

64.99, 23.64, 64.20, 20.12, 20.3, 20.5, 23.6, 46.73, 64.2

SIA Maris un Partneri (100%)
Reg. No. 40103296793

»Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region,
Latvia, LV-2121

»Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region,
Latvia, LV-2121

Maris Kelpis, Chairman of the Board
Andis Ziedonis, Member of the Board

Juris Grinvalds, Member of the Board

SIA SAKRET (100%)
Reg. No. 40003622109,
»Ritvari”’, Rumbula, Stopinu region, LV-2121

SIA SAKRET PLUS (90%)
Reg. No. 40003749392,
»Ritvari”’, Rumbula, Stopinu region, LV-2121

UAB SAKRET LT (100%)
Reg. No. 3005988522
Biochemiky g. 2, LT-57234, Kédainiai, Lithuania

OU SAKRET (100%)
Reg. No. 111961147
Mao kiila, Paide vald, 72751 Jirvamaa, Estonia

Andris Vanags, Chairman of the Council
(from 10 December 2013)

Elina Salava, Deputy Chairman of the Council
(from 10 December 2013)

Marting Biezais, Member of the Council

(from 10 December 2013) '




AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration number: 40103251030

Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stepinu region, Latvija, LV-2121

CORPORATE INFORMATION

REPORTING YEAR
PREVIOUS REPORTING YEAR
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ AND

CERTIFIED AUDITOR’S NAME AND
ADDRESS

1 January — 31 December 2017
1 January — 31 December 2016

SIA ,Deloitte Audits Latvia™
Licence No. 43

Gredu street 4a

Riga, Latvia,

LV-1019

Kitija Kepite
Certified auditor
Certificate No. 182




AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration No.: 40103251030
Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvia, LV-2121

CONSOLIDATED MANAGEMENT REPORT

AS SAKRET HOLDINGS is the Group’s controlling entity in following associated companies:

* SIA SAKRET (registered in the Republic of Latvia, unified registration No. 40003622109,
legal address: ,,Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, LV2121), 100% of shares,

* SIA SAKRET PLUS (registered in the Republic of Latvia, unified registration No.
40003749392, legal address: ,,Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, LV2121), 90% of shares,

e UAB SAKRET LT (registered in the Republic of Lithuania, registration No. 3005988522,
legal address: Biochemiky g. 2, LT-57234, Kédainiai, Lithuania), 100% of shares and

e OU SAKRET (registered in the Republic of Estonia, registration No. 111961147, legal
address: Méo kiila, Paide vald, 72751 Jirvamaa, Estonia), 100% of shares.

The consolidated turnover in amount of EUR 19,30 million consists of the Group's subsidiaries turnovers. SIA
Sakret unconsolidated turnover in 2017 is EUR 7.41 million (+6% compared to 2016), OU Sakret
unconsolidated turnover is EUR 5,99 million (+6% compared to 2016), UAB Sakret LT unconsolidated turnover
is EUR 7,51 million (+40 % compared to 2016), SIA Sakret Plus unconsolidated turnover is EUR 2,35 million
(+6 % compared to 2016).

SAKRET Group’s results can be considered as satisfactory, due to observed various trends in Baltic construction
sector market in 2017. Although there was a moderate increase in construction volumes in Estonia and Lithuania,
however in Latvia, even though the total construction volumes compared to 2016 have risen by 19.5%, there
was a decrease by 11% in the residential construction segment, which is the Company’s target market. Similar
to the year 2016 there was almost no insulation of buildings in 2017 because the co-financing of European funds
was not ensured.

The Group continues to work with direct product consumers - builders, in order to introduce to them new
products and to explain the application specifics and the advantages of the existing products. Training seminars
are organized on regular basis, where both in theory and in practice, we inform about the right ways of choosing
and using the materials manufactured by our Company. In addition, the Company also works on discovering
additional product segments in the building materials market in order to increase its competitiveness.

SAKRET Group is actively working on strengthening the product range with additional products. During the
reporting period, SAKRET Group’s investment in research and development was in amount of
EUR 109,0 thousands.

Future prospects

In October 2013 the Company and its affiliated companies have concluded a long-term credit agreement with
AS DNB Bank (now AS Luminor Bank). According to credit agreement conditions, the term of the credit
principal repayment was set at December 31, 2017 with a possibility to extend it. At the beginning of 2018 the
credit agreement term was extended and set at January 31, 2019. Based on current credit agreement terms, the
entity and its related parties have to agree on further cooperation with AS Luminor bank, in line with Sakret
Group’s future development plans, until the above mentioned date.

Since the restructuring of the credit in 2013, the Company and its related companies have completed all of
the liabilities against the bank until December 2017, when the repayment of the remaining amount of the credit
was intended under the contract, therefore the Governing Board of the company considers that the agreement
with the Bank will be achieved. The credit agreement provided that the repayment deadline, given that both
parties would achieve an agreement, may be extended. In 2017, the Company commenced discussions with the
bank on the extension of the maturity date of the credit. A corresponding agreement with the bank was achieved
and as a result the credit agreement No 34/13K23 Amendments No 3 were signed on 28 February 2018, which
provide for the final maturity of the credit on 31 January 2019. In the reporting period, the Company has not
fulfilled certain conditions of the Credit Agreement relating to financial (profit) indicators.

The financial statements were signed on 28 May 2018 on the Company’s behalf by —_

. \
A /

— /%/Z | % P>

\ A V-

Maris Kelpis \'*Apdisjiedénis Ju}g Grinvalds
Chairmen of the board Membe;of the Board Meléber of the Board
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration number: 40103251030
Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvia, LV-2121

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2017

Notes

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 3

Property, plant and equipment
Land, buildings and constructions
Equipment and machinery
Other fixed assets
Prepayments for property, plant and equipment

Total property, plant, equipment and intangible 4
assets

Non-current financial investments
Other non-current receivables
Other investments
Total non-current financial investments
Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Raw materials, materials and consumables
Finished goods and goods for sale
Prepayments for goods and services
Total inventories

Receivables
Trade receivables
Other receivables
Deferred expenses
Short-term loan to shareholder 5
Total receivables

6,19(c)

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets
TOTAL ASSETS

31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.
EUR EUR
411 872 317129
8 780 792 9229 525
2537216 2925925
99 582 71 068
6 529 4296
11424 119 12 230 814
13918 13 926
- 28
13 918 13 954
11 849 909 12 561 897
1367 758 1565903
896 466 942 702
27670 6319
2291894 2514 924
2515993 1 953 264
142 318 159 127
36392 33776
35572 35572
2730275 2181 739
306 063 397 591
5328 232 5094 254
17 178 141 17 656 151

Notes on pages 11 to 23 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration number: 40103251030
Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvia, LV-2121

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2017

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
Share capital
Denomination reserve
Reorganization reserve
Foreign exchange rate fluctuations reserve
Retained earnings:
a) prior year retained earnings
b) loss for the year
Equity attributable to parent Company’s
shareholders
Minority shareholder’s participation share
Total equity
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Bank loans
Other borrowings
Payables to related parties
Finance lease liabilities
Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Loans from credit institutions
Other borrowings
Finance lease liabilities
Advances from customers
Trade payables
Payables to related parties
Taxes and mandatory state social security
contributions
Other payables
Accrued liabilities
Unpaid dividends to minority shareholder
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Notes

~J

10
19(d)

19(d)

11
12

31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.
EUR EUR
35000 35000
572 572
(8 491 750) (8 491 750)
24 899 24 899
148 327 143 870
(239 138) 4457
(8 522 090) (8 282 952)
176 877 158 371
(8 345 213) (8 124 581)
16 641 137 17 341 139
167 093 167 093
757 532 767 932
17 565 762 18 276 164
1 700 000 2799 999
1170 582 654 835
37 545 37 545
118 865 222 099
3005 926 1957 165
421 535 624 844
325 638 520983
139 133 98 845
1009 365 559 250
29 003 29 003
7 957 592 7 504 568
25 523 354 25 780 732
17 178 141 17 656 151

Notes on pages 11 to 23 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration number: 40103251030

Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvia, LV-2121

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

FOR THE YEAR 2017
2017 2016
Notes EUR EUR
Revenue 13 19298 618 17 648 223
Cost of goods sold 14 (14 649 323) (13 220 742)
Gross profit 4 649 295 4 427 481
Selling expenses 15 (2 764 948) (2 544 522)
Administration expenses 16 (1 048 794) (982 097)
Other operating income 17 21767 139 523
Other operating expenses (87 570) (56 821)
Interest and similar income 1552 1284
Interest and similar expenses (976 775) (878 922)
(Loss)/Profit before taxes (205 473) 105 926
Corporate income tax (15 159) (79 557)
(Loss)/Profit for the reporting year (220 632) 26 369
(Loss)/Profit attributable to:
Parent Company’s shareholders (239 138) 4 457
Minority shareholders 18 506 21912
(220 632) 26 369

Notes on pages 11 to 23 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration number: 40103251030

Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvia, LV-2121

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR 2017
Notes 2017 2016
Cash flows from operating activities EUR EUR
(Loss)/Profit before taxes (205 473) 105 926
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 14,15,16 1027 755 1077 005
Interest income (1552) (1284)
Interest expenses 976 775 878 922
Net profit from disposal of fixed assets (10 925) (3 795)
Profit before adjustments for capital 1786 580 2 056 774
Net changes in working capital 717 837 542 770
Cash flows from operating activities 2 504 417 2 599 544
Corporate income tax paid (71 271) (40 950)
Net cash flows from operating activities 2 433 146 2 558 594
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of fixed and intangible assets (309 013) (309 092)
Interest received - -
Net cash flows from investing activities (309 013) (309 092)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 20 369 4567
(Paid) loans, net (1284 254)  (1392722)
Interest paid (951 776) (903 512)
Payments for leased property, plant and equipment - (49 416)
Net cash flows from financing activities (2215661) (2 341 083)
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (91 528) (91 581)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 397 591 489 172
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 306 063 397 591

Notes on pages 11 to 23 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration number: 40103251030
Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvia, LV-2121

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR 2017

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The main business activity of the Company is holding companies’ operations, production and sale of dry, ready for
use building materials, chemicals and paints.

2. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

Consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Law of the Republic of Latvia On the
Annual Financial Statements and Consolidated Financial Statements.

The consolidated financial statements include accounting data of AS "SAKRET HOLDINGS", SIA "SAKRET",
SIA "SAKRET PLUS", OU "SAKRET", UAB "SAKRET LT”. The control is ensured if the Company has
opportunity to determine the financial and operating policies of another company as well as to benefit from these
transactions. The Company gained control of SIA "SAKRET" (100%), SIA "SAKRET PLUS" (90%),
OU "SAKRET" (100%) and UAB "SAKRET LT" (100%) on 1 November 2013.

Financial statements of subsidiaries are consolidated in the Group’s financial statements by combining particular

assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses items. During the preparation of the Group's financial statements mutual
balances and transactions among the Group’s companies as well as unrealized gains and losses were excluded.

Foreign currency

The accompanying financial statements are presented in the currency of European Union, the euro (hereinafter
"EUR"), which is the Group's functional and presentation currency.

2017 2016
EUR EUR
EUR 1.0000 1.0000
SEK 9,8438 9,5505

Gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies into the EUR are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortization of the assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost over their estimated
useful lives. Generally, intangible assets are amortized over a period of 5 years.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost including import duties and non-deductible purchase taxes
as well as any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition and place for its intended use.
Repair and maintenance costs incurred after the asset is put into operation are reflected in statement of profit and
loss as incurred. If it is certain that due to related costs the economic benefits will be gained in future, exceeding the
initial return on assets, such costs are capitalized to value of fixed assets.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses, if any. Land is not depreciated. Depreciation of other assets calculated based on historical cost
using the straight-line method at the following rates:

Annual rate
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Buildings 4% - 10%
Equipment and machinery 6% - 33%
Other fixed assets 10% -50%

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment, if there is any indication that
the recoverable value is lower than their carrying amounts. If the assets’ recoverable values are lower than their
carrying amounts, these assets are written off to its’ recoverable values. The recoverable value is the higher of the
following values: the asset's fair value less cost of sale or value from the use of the asset.

Gains and losses on property, plant and equipment disposals are determined by the difference between the carrying
amount and the income from sale, and included in the statement of profit and loss as incurred..

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of the following values: cost or market value. Costs comprise direct materials
costs as well as, if applicable, direct labor costs and other directly attributable costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Inventory cost price is determined using FIFO (first-in, first-out)
method. If necessary, obsolete, slow moving and defective inventories are written-off.

Receivables

Accounts receivable in the balance sheet are stated at their nominal value less provision for doubtful receivables. On
each balance sheet date the Group evaluates if there is an objective evidence indicating that the client will not be
able to meet payment terms. Each debtor is analyzed individually. Provisions for doubtful debts are made, the
amount of which is determined as the difference between the recoverable value and nominal value.

Deferred expenses

Expenses incurred and paid in the reporting year, but which relate to the next reporting periods, are recognized as
deferred expenses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and balances of current accounts with banks.

Leases

Finance leases, under which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership associated with
the asset, are recognized in the balance sheet as asset in the amount that in the beginning of the lease period is equal
to fair value of leased asset or, if lower, than the minimum of lease payments at present value. Each lease payment
is allocated between the liability and finance charge so as to achieve a constant interest rate on the liability balance.
Financial expenses are included in the statement of profit and loss as interest expense.

If there is sufficient basis to believe that at the rental period end the lessee will obtain ownership of the lease, the
asset's useful life is assumed as period of expected use. Otherwise, capitalized leased assets are depreciated, using
the straight-line method, during the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term depending on which of these
periods is shorter.
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Leases under which substantially all ownership of the risks and rewards are assumed by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense over the lease term. The Group’s liabilities
deriving from operating lease agreements are recorded as off-balance sheet liabilities.

Trade payables

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less.
Otherwise, they are classified as non-current liabilities.

Accrual for unused vacations

Accrual for unused vacations is calculated by multiplying employees’ average salary and mandatory social insurance
contributions during last 3-6 months by the number of unused vacation days at the end of the reporting year.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event
and it is probable that an outflow of resources from the Group embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Loans and borrowings

Loans are recognized initially at cost determined by lending or borrowing amount at fair value adding the costs
associated with loan issue or subtracting borrowing costs incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, all loans are
stated at amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account
costs associated with loan issue or borrowing as well as with any lending or borrowing-related discounts or bonuses.
Gains or losses resulted from amortization are recognized in the statement of profit and loss as interest income and
expenses.

Revenue and revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of value added tax. Revenue is
reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when all the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

s the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Rendering of services
When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated
with the transaction is recognized by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the balance sheet
date. The outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:

¢ the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e the stage of completion of the transaction at the balance sheet date can be measured reliably; and

e the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.
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Interest income

Revenues related to loans are recognized in the period incurred and stated in the position “Interest and similar income™.

Interest expense

Costs associated with borrowings are written off in the period incurred and stated in the position "Interest and similar

charges".

Corporate income tax

Corporate income tax consists of the calculated and deferred corporate income tax for the accounting year. Corporate
income tax for the accounting year is calculated by applying a tax rate of 15% to the taxable income for the financial

period.

Related parties

Related companies are parent and subsidiary companies. AS SAKRET HOLDINGS, "Ritvari" Rumbula, Stopinu region,

LVv-2121

is the parent company, which is responsible for the preparation of consolidation.

Use of estimates

The legislation of the Republic of Latvia requires that in preparing the financial statements the management of the
Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
off-balance sheet assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and

expenses

during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

The critical judgments and key estimates concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty which
exist at the reporting date of the financial statements that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and Habilities during the next reporting period:

The Group evaluates trade receivables and assesses their recoverability, making allowances for doubtful and bad
trade receivables, if necessary. The Group’s management has evaluated trade receivables and considers that it is
not necessary to make any additional allowances as of 31 December 2017, see Note 6.

The Group’s management evaluates the carrying value of inventories and assesses whether the net realizable
value exceeds the cost price. Allowances are made in order to write off the value of inventories to their net
realizable value, if necessary. The Group’s management has evaluated the net realizable value of inventories and
considers that it is not necessary to make any adjustments with regards to the carrying value of inventories as of
31 December 2017.

The Group evaluates issued loans and their recoverability. The Company’s management has evaluated the
recoverability of the issued loans and considers that it is not necessary to make an allowance as of 31 December

2017.

The Group management reviews the carrying values of property, plant and equipment and assesses whenever
indications exist that the assets’ recoverable value is lower than their carrying amounts. The Group’s management
calculates and records an impairment loss on property, plant and equipment based on the estimates related to the
expected future use. Taking into consideration the Group’s planned cash flows from fixed assets, the Group’s
management considers that no significant adjustments to the carrying values of property, plant and equipment
are necessary as of 31 December 2017.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment are assessed at each balance sheet date and changed, if necessary,
to reflect the Group’s management current view on their remaining useful lives in the light of changes in
technology, the remaining prospective economic utilization of the assets and their physical condition. The
Group’s management considers that no adjustments to the useful life of property, plant and equipment
should be made as of 31 December 2017.
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e The Group assesses its ability to continue as a going concern. See Note 21.

3. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Licenses Product Intangible Total
development assets under
construction
EUR EUR EUR EUR
HISTORICAL COST
As of 31 December 2016 352 256 - 137 683 489 939
Additions 13 400 - 108 957 122 357
Disposals (933) - - (933)
Reclassified from/to another - 79 715 (79 715) -
position
As of 31 December 2017 364 723 79 715 166 925 611 363
ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION
As of 31 December 2016 172 810 - - 172 810
Charge 23 804 3810 - 27614
Disposals (933) - - (933)
As of 31 December 2017 195 681 3810 - 199 491
NET CARRYING AMOUNT
As of 31 December 2016 179 446 - 137 683 317129
As of 31 December 2017 169 042 75 905 166 925 411 872

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land, Equipment and Other fixed Prepayments Total
buildings machinery assets
and
constructi
ons
EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR
HISTORICAL COST
As of 31 December 2016 13 645 852 8799 128 1287 549 4 296 23 736 825
Additions - 117 227 68 590 6529 192 346
Disposals - (66 142) (12 265) - (78 407)
Reclassified - 4296 - (4 296) -
As of 31 December 2017 13 645 852 8 854 509 1343874 6 529 23 850 764
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
As of 31 December 2016 4 416 327 5873203 1216 481 - 11 506 011
Charge 448 733 504 998 37993 - 991 724
Disposals - (60 908) (10 182) - (71 090)
As of 31 December 2017 4 865 060 6317 293 1244 292 - 12 426 645
NET CARRYING AMOUNT
As of 31 December 2016 9229 525 2 925 925 71 068 4296 12 230 814
As of 31 December 2017 8 780 792 2 537 216 99 582 6 529 11424 119

Information on the Group's pledged assets is stated in Note 8. Information on residual values of assets purchased
under finance leasing is stated in Note 9.
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5. SHORT-TERM LOAN TO SHAREHOLDER

Agreement  Effective Maturity 31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.
No.and  interest rate
currency (%) EUR EUR
,Maris un Partneri” No.1, 3.5% 31.12.2018. 35572 35572
SIA* EUR
Total short-term loan 35572 35572
* The loan is unsecured.
6. TRADE RECEIVABLES
31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.
EUR EUR
Receivables for goods and services 3122421 2 548 933
Allowance for doubtful receivables (606 428) (595 669)
Total 2 515993 1953 264
Change in allowance for doubtful receivables:
2017 2016
EUR EUR
At the beginning of the reporting year 595 669 594 712
Allowances made during the year 10 759 957
At the end of the reporting year 606 428 595 669

* The Group has evaluated the recoverability of doubtful debts and reduced the provisions for those debts that

according to the Company Management’s consideration are irrecoverable.

7. SHARE CAPITAL

As of 31 December 2017 and 2013, the registered and fully paid share capital consists of 35 000 shares with a
nominal value of EUR 1 per share. Share capital of the Company amounts to EUR 35 000. As a result of
denomination in 2014, the share capital decrease of EUR 572 is reflected in the Company’s share capital under

“Denomination reserve” item.
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8. LOANS FROM CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

Long-term: Agreement No. and Effective Maturity The remaining The remaining
currency interest rate principal principal
(%) amount as of amount as of
31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.
EUR EUR
gs »]’(';(“]m‘";’f No. 34/13K23, EUR 3 month 31.01.2019.
ank”’(loan :

Euribor + 3% 16 641 137 17341 139
Total long-term loans from credit institutions 16 641 137 17 341 139

Short-tern: Agreement No. and Effective Maturity The remaining The remaining

currency interest rate principal principal
(%) amount as of amount as  of

31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.
EUR EUR
AS ,,Luminor No 34/13K23, EUR 3 month

Bank"(loan) Euribor +3% 31122018 1 700 000 2799 999
Total short-term loans from credit institutions 1700 000 2 799 999

Information on collateral and guarantees is described in Note 22.

In October 2013 the Company and its affiliated companies have concluded a long-term credit agreement with AS DNB
Bank (now AS Luminor Bank). According to credit agreement conditions, outstanding long-term loan principal repayment
term was set at December 31, 2017 with a possibility to extend it. At the beginning of 2018 the credit agreement term was
extended and set at January 31, 2019. Based on current credit agreement terms, the entity and its related parties have to
agree on further cooperation with AS Luminor bank, in line with Sakret Group’s future development plans, until the above
mentioned date.

Since the restructuring of the credit in 2013, the Company and its related companies have completed all of the liabilities
against the bank until December 2017, when the repayment of the remaining amount of credit was intended under the
contract, therefore the Governing Board of the company considers that the agreement with the Bank will be concluded.
The credit agreement provided that the repayment deadline, given that both parties would achieve an agreement, may be
extended. In 2017, the Company commenced discussions with the bank on the extension of the maturity date of the credit.
A corresponding agreement with the bank was achieved, and as a result the credit agreement No 34/13K23 Amendments
No 3 were signed on 28 February 2018, which provide for the final maturity of the credit on 31 January 2019. In the
reporting period, the Company has not fulfilled certain conditions of the Credit Agreement relating to financial (profit)
indicators.

According to signed agreements, the Group is obligated to achieve certain financial ratios during the contract period.
According to management's assessment as of 31 December, 2017 the Company has not fulfilled certain conditions of the
Credit Agreement relating to financial (profit) indicators.

9. FINANCE LEASE

Maturity Agreement Effective Long-term Short- Residual
currency interest rate part term part value of
(%) leased
asset
SIA “ALBAU” 31.07.2017 EUR 15% - 37 545 37 545
Total  31.12.2017. - 37 545 37 545
Total  31.12.2016. - 37 545 37 545
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10. OTHER BORROWINGS

Long-term: Agreement No. Effective Maturity 31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.
interest EUR EUR
rate (%)
Other borrowings 200901/200902/ 5% 31.12.2018. 167 093 167 093
200903/200904
Kopa 167 093 167 093
Short-term: Agreement No, Effective Maturity 31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.
interest rate EUR EUR
(%)
WERELEND VARA  Annex No. 3 10%
ou 2.1-14-8/20 31.12.2018. 150 000 150 000
Bikuvos prekyba
UAB 24.04.2017. 7% 31.07.2018 300 000 -
agreement
SIA ,,Luminor Factoring agreement 3 Month
Lizings Latvija” No. Euribor +3%  31.01.2019. 720 582 504 835
0000157/158/159/001
Kopa 1170582 654 835
11. OTHER PAYABLES
31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.
EUR EUR
Employees’ salaries 113262 78 635
Accrued interest on loans 19 657 17 268
Other 6214 2942
Total 139 133 98 845
12, ACCRUED LIABILITIES
31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.
EUR EUR
Clients’ annual discounts 754 033 346 961
Accrual for unused vacations 183 153 167 737
Expenses for which invoices have been received in the next 70 049 39 391
financial year 2130 5161
Other
Total 1 009 365 559 250
13. REVENUE
2017 2016
EUR EUR
Revenue from sale of goods and services rendered 19 298 618 17 648 223
Total 19 298 618 17 648 223
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14.COST OF GOODS SOLD

2017 2016
EUR EUR
Purchase cost of raw materials (11 413 033) (10 229 874)
Remuneration for work (962 766) (854 928)
Depreciation (931 442) (986 193)
Energy resources expenses (492 075) (428 039)
Mandatory state social security contributions and entrepreneurial
risk duty (265 378) (230 329)
Repair and spare parts expenses (241 480) (220 748)
Franchise expenses (149 938) (132 946)
Rent of real estate and fixed assets (52774) (33 545)
Other expenses (140 437) (104 140)
Total (14 649 323) (13 220 742)
15. SELLING EXPENSES
2017 2016
EUR EUR
Goods delivery expenses (975 635) (848 190)
Remuneration for work (630 496) (601 684)
Advertising and marketing expenses (412 904) (355 278)
Sales employees transport expenses (202 716) (180 165)
Mandatory state social security contributions and entrepreneurial
risk duty _ (178 989) (173 960)
Depreciation (32 745) (29 835)
Other expenses (331 463) (355 410)
Total (2 764 948) (2 544 522)
16. ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
2017 2016
EUR EUR
Remuneration for work (390 383) (363 383)
Business consulting services (112 555) (114 783)
Mandatory state social security contributions and entrepreneurial
risk duty (107 409) (97 021)
Depreciation and amortization (63 568) (60 977)
Legal services (46 644) (29 921)
Communication expenses (17 565) (19 412)
Other expenses (310 670) (296 600)
Total (1 048 794) (982 097)
17. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2017 2016
EUR EUR
Profit from sale of fixed assets 10925 3795
Received financial support - 123 685
Other income 10 842 12 043
Total 21 767 139 523
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18. AVERAGE NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES DURING THE REPORTING YEAR

2017 2016
The Group’s average number of employees in the reporting year
131 128
19. TRANSACTION WITH RELATED PARTIES
(a) Goods sold and services rendered
2017 2016
EUR EUR
SAKRET NORDEN OY 368 577 512224
ALBAU SIA 21937 9493
LM 21 SIA 7720 2220
MARIS UN PARTNERI SIA 695 695
Total 398 929 524 632
(b) Goods, purchase of real estate and services received
2017 2016
EUR EUR
ALBAU SIA 1328 454 1587 652
LM 21 SIA 338 852 348 281
ALBAU UAB 28 508 -
Total 1695 814 1935933

(¢) Receivables arising from transactions with related parties

SAKRET NORDEN OY
ALBAU UAB

MARIS UN PARTNERI SIA
LM 21 SIA

ALBAU SIA

Total

31.12.2017.
EUR

63 053
19 629
6623
2 686

91 991

T ————cae—

31.12.2016.
EUR

59018

5782

3167
67 967

T ————
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(d) Payables to related parties

Non-current portion 31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.

EUR EUR
MARIS KELPIS 700 042 709 242
PETERIS STUDENTS 57490 58 690
Total 757 532 767 932
Current portion 31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.

EUR EUR
LM 21 SIA 201 721 128 443
ALBAU SIA 159 814 346 401
MARIS KELPIS 60 000 126 000
PETERIS STUDENTS - 24 000
Total 421535 624 844

20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise loans from credit institutions, factoring, financial leasing, and
cash. Aim of these financial instruments is to ensure financing for the Group's business operations. In addition, the
Group uses other financial instruments such as - a loan to shareholder, trade receivables and other receivables, trade
payables and other payables, which arise directly from business activities.

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly conducts transactions in euros. Since the Latvian, Lithuanian and Estonian national currency is
Euro, this is not considered as significant risk.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk mainly arising from bank loans.

Credit risk

The Group controls the credit risk by constantly evaluating the credit repayment history of its customers and
establishing credit agreement conditions for each client individually. In addition, the Group monitors overdue trade
receivable balances on regular basis in order to minimize the possibility of bad debts.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to settle its obligations in full as they fall due. The aim of
the Group’s liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient amount of cash and its equivalents, and to ensure the
availability of funding through sufficient amount of committed bank credit line facilities (see Note 8) to settle its
obligations at a given date. In May 2018, the total factoring limit for Sakret Group companies was increased from
EUR 1,000,00 thousand to EUR 1 700,00 thousand. The Group constantly assesses the matching of repayment terms
ofits financial assets and liabilities and the stability of long-term investment sources. An operating cash flow forecast
is prepared to manage the liquidity risk on a monthly basis after the actual results of the previous month are available.
The Group's management considers that that the Group will have sufficient cash resources so its liquidity will not
be compromised.

21. GOING CONCERN

The Group has finished year 2017 with a loss of EUR 220 632. The Group's equity as of 31 December 2017 was
negative in amount of EUR 8 345 213 and its current liabilities exceeded current assets by EUR 2 629 360. As of 31
December 2017 the Group had significant liabilities to credit institutions in amount of EUR 18 341 137 with the
final repayment term on 31 January 2019. Under the conditions of the existing credit agreement, the company and
its related companies, together with AS Luminor Bank, must agree on further cooperation, based on the development
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plans of the Sakret Group, until 31 January 2019. At the same time, the terms of the credit agreement provide for a
less intensive repayment of the long-term credit principal and an increase in the factoring limit in 2018, which
improves the liquidity of the Company and Sakret Group.

The Company is the sole shareholder of related companies SIA SAKRET (registered in the Republic of Latvia), OU
Sakret (registered in the Republic of Estonia), UAB Sakret LT (registered in the Republic of Lithuania) and
controlling shareholder with a 90% of shares of SIA Sakret Plus (registered in the Republic of Latvia) - hereinafter
referred to as "Sakret Group".

Since the restructuring of the credit in 2013, the Company and its related companies have completed all of the
liabilities against the bank until December 2017, when the repayment of the remaining amount of credit was intended
under the contract, therefore the Governing Board of the company considers that the agreement with the Bank will
be concluded. The credit agreement provided that the repayment deadline, given that both parties would achieve an
agreement, may be extended. In 2017, the Company commenced discussions with the bank on the extension of the
maturity date of the credit. A corresponding agreement with the bank was achieved, as a result credit agreement No
34/13K23 Amendments No 3 were signed on 28 February 2018, which provide for the final maturity of the credit
on 31 January 2019. In the reporting period, the Company has not fulfilled certain conditions of the Credit Agreement
relating to financial (profit) indicators.

The Group's ability to continue as going concern depends on its ability to cover obligations to the credit institution
in a timely manner, to fulfill certain financial ratios determined by the credit institutions, as well as by the
management’s ability to ensure availability of financing provided by credit institutions in the long-term.

Previously stated conditions reflect the uncertainty regarding to the Group’s ability to continue its operations. These
financial statements are prepared based on a going concern assumption and do not include any adjustments that
might be necessary if the going concern assumption is not applicable.

22. GUARANTEES ISSUED

All of the Group's shares and property is pledged in favor to AS Luminor Bank (hereinafter - the "Bank") as collateral
for credit. The loan agreement concluded between Sakret Group companies and the Bank states that if any of the
borrowers will not be able to make any repayments of the loan, loan interest or penalty or will not ensure other
agreement conditions, then all of the rest of the borrowers immediately have to cover all the Bank's claims in full.

The Company's management confirms that at the moment of signing these financial statements, all of the borrowers
indicated in the loan agreement have completed in full all the conditions set by the Bank and it is not necessary to
create additional provisions as of 31 December 2017 for contingent liabilities that might arise from the default of
loan agreement conditions.

23. REORGANIZATION RESERVE

On 1 November 2013 the parent Company acquired 100% of SIA "SAKRET", OU "SAKRET", UAB "SAKRET
LT" and 90% of SIA "SAKRET PLUS" shares. Share purchase transactions were made among the related parties.
As a result of the acquisition Group’s reorganization reserve of EUR 8 491 750 was formed.

Negative reorganization reserve and minority shareholder’s share at acquisition date was determined as follows:

EUR
Acquisition value 470
Net assets at acquisition date (8382 092)
(negative equity)
Minority share at acquisition date 109 188
Total negative reorganization reserve: 8 491 750
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The Company is the sole shareholder of related companies SIA SAKRET (registered in the Republic of Latvia),
OU Sakret (registered in the Republic of Estonia) and UAB Sakret LT (registered in the Republic of Lithuania)
and the controlling shareholder with a 90% of shares of SIA Sakret Plus (registered in Republic of Latvia) -
alltogether referred to as "Sakret Group".

24.SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 28 February 2018, the maturity of the credit agreement and the factoring agreement with AS Luminor Bank
was extended until 31 January 2019. In May 2018, the total factoring limit for Sakret Group companies was
increased from EUR 1 000,00 thousand to EUR 1 700,00 thousand.

From the last day of the reporting period until the date of signing these financial statements there have been
no other events which would have any material impact of the financial result or which should be disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements.

The financial statements were signed on 28 May 2018 on the Company’s behalf by:

o ///{ 2 o i P
€ S / i /
s D e
aris Kelpis . Andis Ziefonis (Juris Grinvalds
Chairman of the Board Member pf the Board, /Member of the Board
responsible for report
preparation

23




B Deloitte Audits Latvia SIA
DEIOItte T Gredu street 4a
N Riga LV-1019
Latvia

Tel.: +371 6707 4100
Fax: +371 6707 4103
www.deloitte.com/lv

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

Translation from Latvian
To the shareholder of AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Our Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of AS SAKRET HOLDINGS (“the Company™)
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 6 to 23 of the accompanying annual report, which comprise of: the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2017, the consolidated profit and loss statement for the year then ended,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the AS SAKRET HOLDINGS as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the ‘Law On the Annual
Reports and Consolidated Annual Reports’ of the Republic of Latvia.

Basis for Opinion

In accordance with the Law on Audit Services of the Republic of Latvia we conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing adopted in the Republic of Latvia (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and independence requirements included in the Law on Audit
Services of the Republic of Latvia that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in the Republic
of Latvia. We have also fulfilled our other professional ethics responsibilities and objectivity requirements in
accordance with the IESBA Code and Law on Audit Services of the Republic of Latvia.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw atténtion to Note 21 of the financial statements, in which described that the Group has closed year with loss
in amount of EUR 220 632, on 31 December 2017, the group's equity was negative EUR 8 345 213 and its short-term
liabilities exceeded its current assets by EUR 2 629 360. Therefore, Group’s ability to going concern depends on
ability to settle timely its liabilities to credit institution and fulfil covenants, to ensure financing from credit institution
in long term, based on current loan agreement terms and conditions. These circumstances indicate a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The
accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the assumption of going concern, and do
not contain any adjustments, that might be necessary if the going concern assumption was not applicable. Our opinion
is not modified in respect of this matter.

Deloitte refers to one or more of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, a UK private company limited by guarantee ('DTTLY), its network of member firms, and their related entities. DTTL and each of
its member firms are legally separate and independent entities. DTTL (also referred to as “Deloitte Global”) does not provide services to clients. Please see www.deloitte.com/iv/about for a more
detailed description of DTTL and its member firms.

In Latvia, the services are provided by SIA Deloitte Latvia, SIA Deloitte Audits Latvia and law firm Deloitte Legal (jointly referred to as “Delottte Latvia’) which are affiliates of Deloitte Central Europe
Holdings Limited. Deloitte Latvia is one of the leading professional services organizations in the country providing services intax, legal, audit end advisory through over 130 national and specialized
expatriate professionals.

This communication contains general information only, and none of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, its member firms, or their related entities (collectively, the “Deloitte Network”) is, by means of
this communication;, rendering professional advice or services. No entity in the Deloitte Network shall be responsible for any loss whatsoever sustained by any person who relies on this publication.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT (CONTINUED)

Reporting on Other Information

The Group’s management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Management
Report, as set out on page 5 of the accompanying Annual Report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information included in the consolidated
Annual Report, and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon, except as described in the Other
reporting responsibilities in accordance with the legislation of the Republic of Latvia section of our report.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed and in light of the knowledge and understanding of the entity and its
environment obtained in the course of our audit, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Other reporting responsibilities in accordance with the legislation of the Republic of Latvia

In addition, in accordance with the Law on Audit Services of the Republic of Latvia with respect to the Management
Report, our responsibility is to consider whether the Management Report is prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the ‘Law On the Annual Reports and Consolidated Annual Reports’ of the Republic of Latvia.

Based solely on the work required to be undertaken in the course of our audit, in our opinion:

e the information given in the Management Report for the financial year for which the consolidated financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the consolidated financial statements; and

e the Management Report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the ‘Law On the Annual
Reports and Consolidated Annual Reports’ of the Republic of Latvia.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with the ‘Law On the Annual Reports and Consolidated Annual Reports’ of the Republic of Latvia and
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s consolidated financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

Deloitte refers to one or more of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, a UK private company limited by guarantee ("DTTL"), its network of member firms, and their rélated entities. DTTL and each of
its member firms are legally separate and independent entities. DTTL (also referred to as “Delaitte Globat") does not provide services to clients. Please see www.deloitte.com/Iv/about for a more
detailed description of DTI'K and its member firms.,

In Latvia, the services are provided by SIA Deloitte Latvia, SIA Deloitte Audits Latvia and law firm Deloitte Legal (jointly referred to as "Deloitte Latvia") which are affiliates of Deloitte Central Europe
Holdings Limited. Deloitte Latvia is one of the leading professional services organizations in the country providing services in tax, legal, audit and adviscry through over 130 nauonal and specialized
expatriate professionals.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT (CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

® Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

® Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

® Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves a fair presentation.

®  Obtain adequate audit evidence of the financial information of the Group companies with a aim to delivere an
opinion on the consolidated financial statement. We are responsible for Group's audit management, monitoring
and performance. We remain fully responsible for our auditor’s opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

Deloitte Audits Latvia SIA
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
(Company’s registration number 40103251030)

2018 consolidated annual report,
prepared in accordance with
Latvian statutory requirements,

and Independent auditors’ report*

(9th financial year)

* This version of financial statements is a translation from the original, which was prepared in the Latvian
language. All possible care has been taken to ensure that the franslation is an accurate representation of the
original. However, in all matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version
of financial statements takes precedence over this transiation.
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration number: 40103251030
Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvija, LV-2121

CORPORATE INFORMATION

NAME OF THE COMPANY SAKRET HOLDINGS

LEGAL STATUS Joint-Stock Company

REGISTRATION NUMBER, 40103251030, Riga, 30 September 2009
PLACE AND DATE

TYPE OF OPERATIONS Holding companies’ activity. Production and sale of dry,
ready for use building materials, chemicals and paints.

NACE CODE 64.99, 23.64, 64.20, 20.12, 20.3, 20.5, 23.6, 46.73, 64.2

SHAREHOLDERS SIA “Parvaldes Sistemas”
»Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region,
Latvia, LV-2121

LEGAL ADDRESS ,.Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region,
Latvia, LV-2121

BOARD MEMBERS Maris Kelpis, Chairman of the Board
Andis Ziedonis, Member of the Board
Juris Grinvalds, Member of the Board

SUBSIDIARIES SIA SAKRET (100%)

Reg. No. 40003622109,
»Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, LV-2121
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SIA SAKRET PLUS (90%)
Reg. No. 40003749392,
»Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, LV-2121

UAB SAKRET LT (100%)
Reg. No. 3005988522
Biochemiky g. 2, L. T-57234, Kédainiai, Lithuania

OU SAKRET (100%)
Reg. No. 111961147
Mio kiila, Paide vald, 72751 Jarvamaa, Estonia

COUNCIL OF THE COMPANY Andris Vanags, Chairman of the Council
Elma Salava, Deputy Chairman of the Council

(till 14 February 2018)

Martins§ Biezais, Member of the Council

(till 14 February 2018)

Valérija Liege, Deputy Chairman of the Council
(from 14 February 2018)

Artis Grinbergs, Member of the Council

(from 14 February 2018)

REPORTING YEAR 1 January — 31 December 2018
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration No.: 40103251030
Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvia, LV-2121

CONSOLIDATED MANAGEMENT REPORT

AS SAKRET HOLDINGS is the Group’s controlling entity in following companies:
e SIA SAKRET (registered in the Republic of Latvia, unified registration No. 40003622109, legal
address: ,,Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, LV2121), 100% of shares,
¢ SIA SAKRET PLUS (registered in the Republic of Latvia, unified registration No. 40003749392, legal
address: ,,Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, LV2121), 90% of shares,
e UABSAKRET LT (registered in the Republic of Lithuania, registration No. 3005988522, legal address:
Biochemiky g. 2, LT-57234, Kédainiai, Lithuania), 100% of shares and
e OU SAKRET (registered in the Republic of Estonia, registration No. 111961147, legal address: Mo
kiila, Paide vald, 72751 Jirvamaa, Estonia), 100% of shares.
The consolidated turnover in amount of EUR 21,27 million consists of the Group's subsidiaries turnovers. SIA
Sakret unconsolidated turnover in 2018 was EUR 8,94 million (+21 compared to 2017), OU Sakret
unconsolidated turnover was EUR 6,90 million (+15% compared to 2017), UAB Sakret LT unconsolidated
turnover was EUR 7,37 million (-2 % compared to 2017), SIA Sakret Plus unconsolidated turnover is EUR
2,69 million (+14 % compared to 2017).
SAKRET Group’s results were successful as total turnover increase was 10.2% compared to 2017, gross profit-
increase by 16.0%. This was achieved due to the observed trends in Baltic construction sector market in 2018.
Slight decrease in Lithuania was due to the lower manufactured volume for Latvian market needs, as part of
manufacturing was transferred to Latvia.

The Group continues to work with direct product consumers - builders, in order to introduce to them new
products and to explain the application specifics and the advantages of the existing products. There are trainings
and seminars organized on a regular basis, where both in theory and in practice we inform about the most
appropriate selection and application of the Sakret manufactured products. In addition, the Group also works on
discovering additional product segments in the building materials market in order to increase its competitiveness.

The Company and its affiliated companies in the Baltics are actively working on strengthening the assortment
with additional products. During the reporting period, SAKRET Group’s investment in research and
development was in amount of EUR 57 thousands.

Future prospects

As of 31 December 2018 the Group had significant liabilities to credit institution AS Luminor Bank in the
amount of EUR 17 641 137 with the final repayment term on 30 September 2019. Under the conditions of the
existing credit agreement, the Group together with AS Luminor Bank has taken coordinated action to raise new
funding. The maturity of the repayment was extended to allow the Company and its subsidiaries to ensure
refinancing of the credit liabilities for the mutually agreed discounted amount of 9 000 000 EUR and transfer it
to AS Luminor Bank. After this transaction the Group's liabilities to AS Luminor Bank will be fully settled. As
of the date of approval of these financial statements, the Group companies have concluded agreements with
AS BlueOrange Bank for refinancing loan liabilities with AS Luminor Bank. There are following loan
agreements: Loan for the amount of EUR 4 000 000 with maturity 22 August 2023, an overdraft agreement for
the amount of EUR 2 000 000, with maturity 22 August 2020. There was a 5 years Bonds issue for 3,79 mil
EUR with maturity 30.08.2024. Received cash of 3 million EUR will be transferred to AS Luminor Bank. The
agreement with AS Luminor Bank foresees that upon receipt of the 9 million EUR, all credit liabilities will be
settled.

During the refinancing, AS Sakret Holding increased its share capital by EUR 1 015 000 to EUR 1 050 000 by
a cash contribution from the shareholder.

After the completion of the refinancing process, the Group's financial performance will improve significantly
and equity will become positive.

Proposal for the Group loss for the year coverage
It is planned to use reporting period profit to cover losses from previous periods. B
The financial statements were signed on 30

19 on the Group's t?hatfby
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Chairmen of the board Member of the Board Member of the Board
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration number: 40103251030
Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvia, LV-2121

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2018
31.12.2018. 31.12.2017.
Notes EUR EUR
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets
Intangible assets 166 578 169 042
Development costs 279 658 242 830
Total intangible assets 3 446 236 411 872
Property, plant and equipment
Land, buildings and constructions 8391 711 8 780 792
Equipment and machinery 2126 376 2 537216
Other fixed assets 109 805 99 582
Prepayments for property, plant and equipment - 6 529
Total property, plant, equipment 4 10 627 892 11 424 119
Non-current financial investments
Other non-current receivables 34113 13918
Total non-current financial investments 34113 13918
Total non-current assets 11 108 241 11 849 909
Current assets
Inventories
Raw materials, materials and consumables 1380966 1367758
Finished goods and goods for sale 899 109 896 466
Prepayments for goods and services 7 006 27670
Total inventories 2287081 2291894
Receivables
Trade receivables 6,19(c) 2717 539 2515993
Other receivables 149 858 142 318
Deferred expenses 47 356 36 392
Short-term loan to shareholder 5 35572 35572
Total receivables 2 950 325 2 730 275
Cash and cash equivalents 342 277 306 063
Total current assets 5579 683 5328232
TOTAL ASSETS 16 687 924 17 178 141

Notes on pages 11 to 24 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration number: 40103251030
Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvia, LV-2121

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2018
31.12.2018. 31.12.2017.
Notes EUR EUR
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 7 35000 35000
Denomination reserve 7 572 572
Reorganization reserve 23 (8 491 750) (8 491 750)
Foreign exchange rate fluctuations reserve 24 899 24 899
Retained earnings:
a) prior years (accumulated deficit)/ retained (90 811) 148 327
earnings
b) profit/(loss) for the year 349 876 (239 138)
Equity attributable to parent Company’s
shareholders (8172 214) (8 522 090)
Minority shareholder’s participation share 194 356 176 877
Total equity (7 977 858) (8 345 213)
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Loans from credit institutions 8 - 16 641 137
Other borrowings 10 167 093 167 093
Payables to related parties 19(d) 644 132 757 532
Total non-current liabilities 811 225 17 565 762
Current liabilities
Loans from credit institutions 8 17 641 137 1700 000
Other borrowings 10 1384 137 1170 582
Finance lease liabilities 9 - 37 545
Advances from customers 38 127 118 865
Trade payables . 2 976 635 3 005926
Payables to related parties 19(d) 469 324 421 535
Taxes and mandatory state social security
contributions 191 555 325638
Other payables 11 130 153 139 133
Accrued liabilities 12 994 486 1 009 365
Unpaid dividends to minority shareholder 29 003 29 003
Total current liabilities 23 854 557 7 957 592
Total liabilities 24 665 782 25 523 354
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 16 687 924 17 178 141

Notes on pages 11 to 24 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration number: 40103251030

Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvia, LV-2121

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

FOR THE YEAR 2018
2018 2017
Notes EUR EUR
Revenue 13 21265 701 19 298 618
Cost of goods sold 14 (15 872 424) (14 649 323)
Gross profit 5393277 4 649 295
Selling expenses 15 (2 799 993) (2 764 948)
Administration expenses 16 (1470 121) (1 048 794)
Other operating income 17 48 116 21767
Other operating expenses (103 170) (87 570)
Interest and similar income 1248 1552
Interest and similar expenses (652 772) (976 775)
Profit /(Loss)before taxes 416 585 (205 473)
Corporate income tax (49 230) (15 159)
Profit /(Loss)for the reporting year 367 355 (220 632)
Profit /(Loss) attributable to:
Parent Company s shareholders 349 876 (239 138)
Minority shareholders 17 479 18 506
367 355 (220 632)

Notes on pages 11 to 24 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration number: 40103251030

Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvia, LV-2121

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR 2018

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit /(Loss) before taxes
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization
Interest income
Interest expenses
Net profit from disposal of fixed assets
Profit before adjustments for capital
Net changes in working capital
Cash flows from operating activities

Corporate income tax paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of fixed and intangible assets

Net cash flows (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
(Paid) loans, net

Interest paid

Payments for leased property, plant and equipment
Net cash flows (used in) financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Notes

14,15,16

17

2018 2017
EUR EUR

416 585 (205 473)
902 426 1027755
(1248) (1552)
652 772 976 775
(16 521) (10 925)
1954014 1786580
(600 208) 737 648
1353806 2524228
(20 785) (71 271)
1333021 2452957
(135 148) (309 013)
(135 148) (309 013)
14 521 20 369
(486 445) (1284 254)
(652 190) (971 587)
(37 545) -
(1161659)  (2235472)
36 214 (91 528)
306 063 397 591
342277 306 063

Notes on pages 11 to 24 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration number: 40103251030
Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvia, LV-2121

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR 2018

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Sakret Holdings AS (hereinafter — the Group’s Parent company or Sakret Holdings AS) was registered in the
Company Register of the Republic of Latvia on 30 September 2009. Registered address of the Group’s Parent
company is “Ritvari” Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvia.

The main business activity of the Group is holding companies’ operations, production and sale of dry, ready for use
building materials, chemicals and paints.

2. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

Consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Law of the Republic of Latvia On the
Annual Financial Statements and Consolidated Financial Statements. The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on the historical cost basis. Income statement classified by expense type. Cash flow statement is
prepared using the indirect method.

The consolidated financial statements include accounting data of AS "SAKRET HOLDINGS", SIA "SAKRET",
SIA "SAKRET PLUS", OU "SAKRET", UAB "SAKRET LT”. The control is ensured if the Company has
opportunity to determine the financial and operating policies of another company as well as to benefit from these
transactions. The Company gained control of SIA "SAKRET" (100%), SIA "SAKRET PLUS" (90%),
OU "SAKRET" (100%) and UAB "SAKRET LT" (100%) on 1 November 2013,

The separate financial statements of the subsidiaries have been consolidated into the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, consolidating the respective assets, liabilities, revenue and expense items. Upon consolidation inter-
company unrealized profit, inter-company transactions, balances, inter-company interest in entities and other
transactions between group companies are eliminated.

The subsidiaries controlled by the Group’s Parent company are included in the consolidation. Control is achieved
when the Group:

. has power over the investee;
. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group
loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Company gains control until the date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary. The Group Parent
company’s and its subsidiaries’ financial years are equal and represent the calendar year.

Foreign currency

The accompanying financial statements are presented in the currency of European Union, the euro (hereinafter
"EUR"), which is the Group's functional and presentation currency.

2018 2017
EUR EUR
EUR 1.0000 1.0000
SEK 10,2548 9,8438
USD 1,1450 1,1993

Profit or losses from exchange rate differences, as well as from the foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in euro, are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration number: 40103251030
Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvia, LV-2121

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR 2018

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are measured at historical cost amortized on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the assets.
If some events or a change in conditions indicates that the carrying value of an intangible asset may not be
recoverable, the value of the respective intangible asset is reviewed for impairment. Impairment loss is recognized
if the carrying value of the intangible assets exceeds its recoverable amount. Generally, intangible assets are
amortized over a period of 5 years, product development costs over a period of 10 years.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost including import duties and non-deductible purchase taxes
as well as any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition and place for its intended use.
Repair and maintenance costs incurred after the asset is put into operation are reflected in statement of profit and
loss as incurred. If it is certain that due to related costs the economic benefits will be gained in future, exceeding the
initial return on assets, such costs are capitalized to value of fixed assets.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Land is not depreciated. Depreciation of other assets calculated based on historical cost
using the straight-line method at the following rates:

Annual rate
Buildings 4% - 10%
Equipment and machinery 6% - 33%
Other fixed assets 10% -50%

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment, if there is any indication that
the recoverable value is lower than their carrying amounts. If the assets’ recoverable values are lower than their
carrying amounts, these assets are written off to its’ recoverable values. The recoverable value is the higher of the
following values: the asset's fair value less cost of sale or value from the use of the asset.

Gains and losses on property, plant and equipment disposals are determined by the difference between the carrying
amount and the income from sale, and included in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of the following values: cost or market value. Costs comprise direct materials
costs as well as, if applicable, direct labor costs and other directly attributable costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Inventory cost price is determined using FIFO (first-in, first-out)
method. If necessary, obsolete, slow moving and defective inventories are written-off.

Receivables

Accounts receivable in the balance sheet are stated at their nominal value less provision for doubtful receivables, On
each balance sheet date the Group evaluates if there is an objective evidence indicating that the client will not be
able to meet payment terms. Each debtor is analyzed individually. Provisions for doubtful debts are made, the
amount of which is determined as the difference between the recoverable value and nominal value.

Deferred expenses

Expenses incurred and paid in the reporting year, but which relate to the next reporting periods, are recognized as
deferred expenses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in bank and in hand, deposits held at call with banks with maturities of
three months or less.

12
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration number: 40103251030
Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvia, LV-2121

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR 2018

Leases

Finance leases, under which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership associated with
the asset, are recognized in the balance sheet as asset in the amount that in the beginning of the lease period is equal
to fair value of leased asset or, if lower, than the minimum of lease payments at present value. Each lease payment
is allocated between the liability and finance charge so as to achieve a constant interest rate on the liability balance.
Financial expenses are included in the statement of profit and loss as interest expense.

If there is sufficient basis to believe that at the rental period end the lessee will obtain ownership of the lease, the
asset's useful life is assumed as period of expected use. Otherwise, capitalized leased assets are depreciated, using
the straight-line method, during the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term depending on which of these
periods is shorter.

Leases under which substantially all ownership of the risks and rewards are assumed by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense over the lease term. The Group’s liabilities
deriving from operating lease agreements are recorded as off-balance sheet liabilities.

Trade payables

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less.
Otherwise, they are classified as non-current liabilities.

Accrual for unused vacations

Accrual for unused vacations is calculated by multiplying employees’ average salary and mandatory social insurance
contributions during last 3-6 months by the number of unused vacation days at the end of the reporting year.

Provisions

A provision is recognized if the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required from the Group to settle
the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the Group expects that the
expenditure required to settle the provision will be reimbursed by another party partly or fully, e.g. under the terms
of an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset when and only when it is virtually clear
that the reimbursement will be received.

Loans and borrowings

Loans are recognized initially at cost determined by lending or borrowing amount at fair value adding the costs
associated with loan issue or subtracting borrowing costs incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, all loans are
stated at amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account
costs associated with loan issue or borrowing as well as with any lending or borrowing-related discounts or bonuses.
Gains or losses resulted from amortization are recognized in the statement of profit and loss as interest income and
expenses.

Revenue and revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of value added tax. Revenue is
reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when all the following conditions are satisfied:

* the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

¢ the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

13
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration number: 40103251030
Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvia, LV-2121

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR 2018

Rendering of services
When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated
with the transaction is recognized by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the balance sheet
date. The outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:

s the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e the stage of completion of the transaction at the balance sheet date can be measured reliably; and

o the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income
Revenues related to loans are recognized in the period incurred and stated in the position “Interest and similar income”.
Interest expense

Costs associated with borrowings are written off in the period incurred and stated in the position "Interest and similar
charges".

Corporate income tax

Corporate income tax expenses are included in financial statement based on management calculations according to laws
of Republic of Latvia.

Starting with tax year 2018, corporate income tax will be calculated on distributed profits (20/80 of the net amount payable
to members). The Company's tax on retained earnings will be recognized when the Company's shareholders make a profit
distribution decision. Corporate income tax is also payable on deemed profit distribution, such as non-operating expenses,
doubtful receivables, increased interest payments, loans to related parties, transfer pricing differences.

Related parties

Related parties are the subsidiaries of the Group’s Parent company, and the sharcholders of the Group’s Parent company
that have significant influence or control over the activities of the Group's Parent company, members of the council and
board, their close relatives and entities in which the above referred persons have significant influence or control.

Related parties are Parent entity and Group's subsidiaries. Sakret Hdldings JSC, Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, LV
2121 is Parent entity of the Group responsible for the consolidation.

Post balance sheet events

Only such post balance sheet events adjust amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statement which provides
additional information on the conditions that existed at balance sheet date (adjusting events). If post balance sheet events
are not adjusting, they are disclosed in the consolidated financial statements only if they are material.

Use of estimates

The legislation of the Republic of Latvia requires that in preparing the financial statements the management of the
Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
off-balance sheet assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

The critical judgments and key estimates concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty which
exist at the reporting date of the financial statements that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities during the next reporting period:

e  The Group evaluates trade receivables and assesses their recoverability, making allowances for doubtful and bad
trade receivables, if necessary. The Group’s management has evaluated trade receivables and considers that it is
not necessary to make any additional allowances as of 31 December 2018, see Note 6.
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration number: 40103251030
Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvia, LV-2121

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR 2018

¢ The Group’s management evaluates the carrying value of inventories and assesses whether the net realizable
value exceeds the cost price. Allowances are made in order to write off the value of inventories to their net
realizable value, if necessary. The Group’s management has evaluated the net realizable value of inventories and
considers that it is not necessary to make any adjustments with regards to the carrying value of inventories as of
31 December 2018.

e The Group evaluates issued loans and their recoverability. The Company’s management has evaluated the
recoverability of the issued loans and considers that it is not necessary to make an allowance as of 31 December
2018.

¢ The Group management reviews the carrying values of property, plant and equipment and assesses whenever
indications exist that the assets’ recoverable value is lower than their carrying amounts. The Group’s management
calculates and records an impairment loss on property, plant and equipment based on the estimates related to the
expected future use. Taking into consideration the Group’s planned cash flows from fixed assets from use and/or
estimated market value of the assets, the Group’s management considers that no significant adjustments to the
carrying values of property, plant and equipment are necessary as of 31 December 2018.

®  Useful lives of property, plant and equipment are assessed at each balance sheet date and changed, if necessary,
to reflect the Group’s management current view on their remaining useful lives in the light of changes in
technology, the remaining prospective economic utilization of the assets and their physical condition. The
Group’s management considers that no adjustments to the useful life of property, plant and equipment
should be made as of 31 December 2018.

®  The Group assesses its ability to continue as a going concern. See Note 21.
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration number: 40103251030

Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvia, LV-2121

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR 2018

3. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Licenses Product Intangible Total
development assets under
construction
EUR EUR EUR EUR
HISTORICAL COST
As of 31 December 2017 364 723 79 715 166 925 611 363
Additions 22 980 - 57 925 80905
Disposals - - (11 934) (11 934)
Reclassified from/to another - 38312 (38 312) -
position
As of 31 December 2018 387 703 118 027 174 604 680 334
ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION
As of 31 December 2017 195 681 3810 - 199 491
Charge 25444 9163 - 34 607
Disposals - - - (933)
As of 31 December 2018 221126 12 973 - 234 098
NET CARRYING AMOUNT
As of 31 December 2017 169 042 75 905 166 925 411 872
As of 31 December 2018 166 578 105 054 174 604 446 236
4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Land, Equipment and Other fixed Prepayments Total
buildings machinery assets
and
constructi
ons
EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR
HISTORICAL COST
As of 31 December 2017 13 645 852 8 854 509 1343 874 6 529 23 850 764
Additions - 15033 52 940 - 67973
Disposals - (29 190) (58 664) - (87 854)
Reclassified - 6 529 - (6 529) -
As of 31 December 2018 13 645 852 8 846 881 1338 150 - 23 830 883
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
As of 31 December 2017 4 865 060 6317293 1244292 - 12 426 645
Charge 389 081 432 402 42 717 - 864 200
Disposals - (29 190) (58 664) - (87 854)
As of 31 December 2018 5254141 6 720505 1228 345 - 13 202 991
NET CARRYING AMOUNT
As of 31 December 2017 8 780 792 2537 216 99 582 6 529 11 424 119
As of 31 December 2018 8 391 711 2126 376 109 805 - 10 627 892

Information on the Group's pledged assets is stated in Note 8 and 22.
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration number: 40103251030
Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvia, LV-2121

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR 2018

5. SHORT-TERM LOAN TO SHAREHOLDER

Agreement  Effective Maturity 31.12.2018. 31.12.2017.
No.and interest rate
currency (%) EUR EUR
,»Maris un Partneri” No.1, 3.5% 31.12.2019. 35572 35572
SIA (unsecured) EUR
Total short-term loan 35572 35572
6. TRADE RECEIVABLES
31.12.2018. 31.12.2017.
EUR EUR
Receivables for goods and services 2 886274 3122421
Allowance for doubtful receivables (168 735) (606 428)
Total 2 717 539 2 515993
Change in allowance for doubtful receivables:
2018 2017
EUR EUR
At the beginning of the reporting year 606 428 595 669
Write-offs during the year (460 401) -
Allowances made during the year 22 708 10 759
At the end of the reporting year 168 735 606 428

The Group has evaluated the recoverability of doubtful debts and written off those debts that according to the

Company Management’s consideration are irrecoverable.

7. SHARE CAPITAL

As of 31 December 2018 and 2017, the registered and fully paid share capital consists of 35 000 shares with a
nominal value of EUR 1 per share. Share capital of the Company amounts to EUR 35 000. As a result of
denomination in 2014, the share capital decrease of EUR 572 is reflected in the Company’s share capital under

“Denomination reserve” item. See Note 23.

During the refinancing, AS Sakret Holding increased its share capital by EUR 1 015 000 to EUR 1 050 000 by a

cash contribution from the shareholder.
8. LOANS FROM CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

Long-term: Agreement No. and . Effective Maturity
currency interest rate
(%)

AS ,,Luminor
Bank”(loan)

Short-term:

AS ,,Luminor
Bank™(loan)

No. 34/13K23, EUR 3 month
Euribor + 3%

30.09.2019.

Total long-term loans from credit institutions

Agreement No. and Effective Maturity
currency interest rate
(%)

No 34/13K23, EUR 3 month Euribor
+ 3%(6%) 30.09.2019

Total short-term loans from credit institutions

The remaining The remaining
principal principal
amount as of amount as of
31.12.2018. 31.12.2017.
EUR EUR
- 16 641 137
- 16 641 137

The remaining

The remaining

prineipal principal
amount as of amount as of
31.12.2018. 31.12.2017.
EUR EUR
17 641 137 1700 000
17 641 137 1700 000
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration number: 40103251030
Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvia, LV-2121

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR 2018

Information on collateral and guarantees is described in Note 22.

As of 31 December 2018 the Group had significant liabilities to credit institution AS Luminor Bank in the amount
of EUR 17 641 137 with the final repayment term on 30 September 2019. Under the conditions of the existing credit
agreement, the Group together with AS Luminor Bank has taken coordinated action to raise new funding. The
maturity of the repayment was extended to allow the Company and its subsidiaries to ensure refinancing of the credit
liabilities for the mutually agreed discounted amount of 9 000 000 EUR and transfer it to AS Luminor Bank. After
this transaction the Group's liabilities to AS Luminor Bank will be fully settled.

As of the date of approval of these financial statements, the Group companies have concluded agreements with AS
BlueOrange Bank for refinancing loan liabilities with AS Luminor Bank. There are following loan agreements: Loan
for the amount of EUR 4 000 000 with maturity 22 August 2023, an overdraft agreement for the amount of EUR 2
000 000, with maturity 22 August 2020. There was a 5 years Bonds issue for 3,79 milj EUR with maturity
30.08.2024.Received cash of 3 million EUR will be transferred to AS Luminor Bank. The agreement with AS
Luminor Bank foresees that upon receipt of the 9 million EUR, all credit liabilities will be settled.

9. FINANCE LEASE

Maturity Agreement Effective Long-term Short- Residunal
currency interest rate part term part value of
(%) leased
asset
SIA “ALBAU” 31.07.2018 EUR 15%

Total  31.12.2018. - -

Total  31.12.2017. . - 37545 37545
10. OTHER BORROWINGS
Long-term: Agreement No. Effective Maturity 31.12.2018. 31.12.2017.
interest EUR EUR
rate (%)
Other borrowings* 200901/200902/ 5% 31.12.2023. 167 093 167 093
200903/200904
Total 167 093 167 093
Short-term: Agreement No. Effective Maturity 31.12.2018. 31.12.2017.
interest rate EUR EUR
(%)
WERELEND VARA  Annex No. 3 10%
018} 2.1-14-8/20 31.12.2019. 150 000 150 000
Bikuvos prekyba
UAB 24.04.2017. 7% 31.12.2019. 300 000 300 000
agreement
SIA ,,Luminor Factoring agreement 3 Month
Lizings Latvija” No. Euribor +3%  31.01.2019. 934 137 720 582
0000157/158/159/001
Total 1384137 1170 582

The maturity of the borrowings is subordinated to the maturity of the loan of AS Luminor Bank, the borrowing
rate is 5%, unsecured. The loan maturity prolongation to 31 December 2023 has been agreed.
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration number: 40103251030
Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvia, LV-2121

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR 2018

11.OTHER PAYABLES

Employees” salaries
Accrued interest on loans
Other

Total

12. ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Clients’ annual discounts

Accrual for unused vacations

Expenses for which invoices have been received in the next
financial year

Other

Total

13.REVENUE

Revenue from sale of goods and services rendered
Total

14.COST OF GOODS SOLD

Purchase cost of raw materials
Remuneration for work
Depreciation

Energy resources expenses
Mandatory state social security contributions and entrepreneurial
Risk duty

Repair and spare parts expenses
Franchise expenses

Rent of real estate and fixed assets
Other expenses

Total

31.12.2018. 31.12.2017.
EUR EUR

107 421 113 262

19 951 19 657

2781 6214

130 153 139 133

31.12.2018. 31.12.2017.
EUR EUR

719 859 754 033

197 110 183 153

75 387 70 049

2130 2130

994 486 1009 365

2018 2017

EUR EUR

21265 701 19298 618

21 265 701 19 298 618

2018 2017

EUR EUR

(12 492 428) (11 413 033)

(1 066 665) (962 766)

(795 815) (931 442)

(495 641) (492 075)

(292 299) (265 378)

(298 396) (241 480)

(160 301) (149 938)

(57 953) (52 774)

(212 926) (140 437)

(15 872 424) (14 649 323)
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration number: 40103251030
Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvia, LV-2121

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR 2018

15. SELLING EXPENSES

Goods delivery expenses

Remuneration for work

Advertising and marketing expenses

Sales employees transport expenses

Mandatory state social security contributions and entrepreneurial
Risk duty

Depreciation

Other expenses

Total

16. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Remuneration for work

Business consulting services

Mandatory state social security contributions and entreprencurial
Risk duty

Depreciation and amortization

Legal services

Communication expenses

Other expenses

Total

17.OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Profit from sale of fixed assets
Received financial support
Other income

Total

18. AVERAGE NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES DURING THE REPORTING YEAR

The Group’s average number of employees in the reporting year

2018 2017
EUR EUR
(1102 853) (975 635)
(599 933) (630 496)
(466 956) (412 904)
(184 583) (202 716)
(174 128) (178 989)
(39 844) (32 745)
(231 696) (331 463)
(2 799 993) (2 764 948)
2018 2017
EUR EUR
(540 565) (390 383)
(286 545) (112 555)
(148 862) (107 409)
(66 767) (63 568)
(39 733) (46 644)
(16 388) (17 565)
(371 261) (310 670)
(1470 121) (1 048 794)
2018 2017
EUR EUR
16 521 10 925
7 664 -
23 931 10 842
48116 21767
2018 2017
132 131
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration number: 40103251030
Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stepinu region, Latvia, LV-2121

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR 2018

19. TRANSACTION WITH RELATED PARTIES

(a) Goods sold and services rendered

2018 2017
EUR EUR
SAKRET NORDEN OY 318794 368 577
ALBAU NORDEN OU 70 960 -
ALBAU SIA 21 604 21937
ALBAU UAB 13 960 -
LM 21 SIA 2220 7720
MARIS UN PARTNERI SIA 695 695
Total 428 233 398 929
(b) Goods, purchase of real estate and services received
2018 2017
EUR EUR
ALBAU SIA 1 108 204 1328 454
ALBAU UAB 356 306 28 508
LM 21 SIA 311 648 338 852
ALBAU NORDEN OU 47 062 -
Total 1823220 1695 814
(¢) Receivables arising from transactions with related parties
31.12.2018. 31.12.2017.
EUR EUR
ALBAU UAB 50521 19 629
SAKRET NORDEN OY 39433 63 053
ALBAU SIA 26 140 -
MARIS UN PARTNERI SIA 5396 6 623
LM 21 SIA - 2 686
Total 121 490 91 991
(d) Payables to related parties
Non-current portion: 31.12.2018. 31.12.2017.
EUR EUR
M_ARIS KELPIS 634 642 700 042
PETERIS STUDENTS 9 490 57490
Total 644 132 757 532
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration number: 40103251030
Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvia, LV-2121

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR 2018

Current portion: 31.12.2018. 31.12.2017.

EUR EUR
LM 21 SIA 261 335 201 721
ALBAU UAB 68 650 -
ALBAU SIA 39922 159 814
ALBAU NORDEN OU 15 417 -
MARIS KELPIS 60 000 60 000
PETERIS STUDENTS 24 000 -
Total 469 324 421535

20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise loans from credit institutions, factoring, financial leasing, and
cash. Aim of these financial instruments is to ensure financing for the Group's business operations. In addition, the
Group uses other financial instruments such as - a loan to shareholder, trade receivables and other receivables, trade
payables and other payables, which arise directly from business activities.

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly conducts transactions in euros. Since the Latvian, Lithuanian and Estonian national currency is
Euro, this is not considered as significant risk.

Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk mainly arising from bank loans.
Credit risk

The Group controls the credit risk by constantly evaluating the credit repayment history of its customers and
establishing credit agreement conditions for each client individually. In addition, the Group monitors overdue trade
receivable balances on regular basis in order to minimize the possibility of bad debts.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to settle its obligations in full as they fall due. The aim of
the Group’s liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient amount of cash and its equivalents, and to ensure the
availability of funding through sufficient amount of committed bank credit line facilities (see Note 8) to settle its
obligations at a given date. In May 2018, the total factoring limit for Sakret Group companies was increased from
EUR 1 000 000 to EUR 1 700 000.

The Group constantly assesses the matching of repayment terms of its financial assets and liabilities and the stability
of long-term investment sources. An operating cash flow forecast is prepared to manage the liquidity risk on a
monthly basis after the actual results of the previous month are available. The Group's management considers that
the Group will have sufficient cash resources so its liquidity will not be compromised.

See Note 21 on financing structure.

21. GOING CONCERN

As of 31 December 2018 the Group had significant liabilities to credit institution AS Luminor Bank in the amount
of EUR 17 641 137 with the final repayment term on 30 September 2019. Under the conditions of the existing credit
agreement, the Group together with AS Luminor Bank has taken coordinated action to raise new funding.

As of the date of approval these financial statements, credit and credit line is prolonged till 30 September 2019. The
maturity of the repayment was extended to allow the Company and its subsidiaries to ensure refinancing of the credit
liabilities for the mutually agreed discounted amount of 9 000 000 EUR and transfer it to AS Luminor Bank. After
this transaction the Group's liabilities to AS Luminor Bank will be fully settled.
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration number: 40103251030
Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvia, LV-2121

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR 2018

As of the date of approval of these financial statements, the Group companies have concluded agreements with
AS BlueOrange Bank for refinancing loan liabilities with AS Luminor Bank. There are following loan agreements:
Loan for the amount of EUR 4 000 000 with maturity 22 August 2023, an overdraft agreement for the amount of
EUR 2 000 000, with maturity 22 August 2020. On 30 August 2019 there has been a 5-year bond issue of
EUR 3 790 000 with a maturity date of 30 August 2024. The cash received for issued bonds for the amount of EUR
3 000 000 will be transferred for settlement of the of the credit liabilities against the AS Luminor Bank.

The liabilities (with limit up to 1 700 000 EUR) related to unsettled customer invoices in accordance with factoring
agreement with AS Luminor Bank, will be settled in accordance with agreed payment terms with customers. After
factoring transactions full settlement, for further needs credit line from AS BlueOrange Bank with a total limit of
EUR 1 700 000, with repayment deadline of 22 February 2021, will be used.

As of the date of issuing these financial statements, the liability settlement process with AS Luminor Bank and
refinancing by AS BlueOrange Bank is in progress and is being performed in accordance with the signed agreements.
It is planned that the process with be finalized till the end of October 2019.

On 2" September AS Sakret Holdings shareholders increased the share capital by EUR 1 015 000 by cash
contribution and as of the date of approval these financial statements registered and paid share capital amounts EUR
1 050 000.

Group’s performance in the reporting year was profit of EUR 367 355, the Group's equity as of 31 December 2018
was negative in amount of EUR 7 977 858 and its current liabilities exceeded current assets by EUR 18 274 874. 1t
is mainly related to the classification of all credit liabilities to AS Luminor Bank as short-term. After finalization of
the refinancing process with AS BlueOrange Bank, the Group's equity will become positive.

The Group's ability to continue as going concern depends on its ability to cover obligations to the credit institution,
to fulfill certain financial ratios determined by the credit institutions, as well as by the management’s ability to ensure
profitable operation of the Group and availability of financing provided by credit institutions in the long-term. These
conditions reflect the uncertainty regarding to the Group’s ability to continue as going concern its operations. These
financial statements are prepared based on a going concern assumption and do not include any adjustments that
might be necessary if the going concern assumption is not applicable.

22. GUARANTEES ISSUED

All of the Group's shares and property as of 31.12.2018 were pledged in favor to AS Luminor Bank (hereinafter -
the "Bank") as collateral for credit. The loan agreement concluded between Sakret Group companies and the Bank
states that if any of the borrowers will not be able to make any repayments of the loan, loan interest or penalty or
will not ensure other agreement conditions, then all of the rest of the borrowers immediately have to cover all the
Bank's claims in full. The Company's management confirms that at the moment of signing these financial statements,
all of the borrowers indicated in the loan agreement have completed in full all the conditions set by the Bank and it
is not necessary to create additional provisions as of 31 December 2018 for contingent liabilities that might arise
from the default of loan agreement conditions.

23
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration number: 40103251030
Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvia, LV-2121

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR 2018

23. REORGANIZATION RESERVE

On 1 November 2013 the parent Company acquired 100% of SIA "SAKRET", OU "SAKRET", UAB "SAKRET
LT" and 90% of SIA "SAKRET PLUS" shares. Share purchase transactions were made among the related parties.
As aresult of the acquisition Group’s reorganization reserve of EUR 8 491 750 was formed.

Negative reorganization reserve and minority shareholder’s share at acquisition date was determined as
follows:

EUR
Acquisition value 470
Net assets at acquisition date (negative equity) 8382092
Minority share at acquisition date 109 188
Total negative reorganization reserve; 8 491 750

The Company is the sole shareholder of related companies SIA SAKRET (registered in the Republic of Latvia),
OU Sakret (registered in the Republic of Estonia) and UAB Sakret LT (registered in the Republic of Lithuania)

and the controlling shareholder with a 90% of shares of SIA Sakret Plus (registered in Republic of Latvia) -
altogether referred to as "Sakret Group".

24, SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 23 August 2019 the Group companies have concluded loan agreements with AS BlueOrange Bank for
refinancing loan liabilities with AS Luminor Bank. There are following loan agreements: Loan for the amount
of EUR 4 000 000 with maturity 22 August 2023 and an overdraft agreement for the amount of EUR
2 000 000, with maturity 22 August 2020.

On 30 August 2019 there has been a 5-year bond issue of EUR 3 790 000 with a maturity date of 30 August
2024. The cash received for issued bonds for the amount of EUR 3 000 000 will be transferred for settlement
of the of the credit liabilities against the AS Luminor Bank.

On 2nd September AS Sakret Holdings shareholders increased the share capital by EUR 1 015 000 by cash

contribution and as of the date of approval these financial statements registered and paid share capital amounts
EUR 1 050 000.

From the last day of the reporting period until the date of signing these financial statements there have been
no other events which would have any material impact of the financial result or which should be disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements.

The financial statements were signed o Septei:ber 2019 on the Coypany’s‘]uehalf by: s
i - / | pa =, =4 e~ _,
A a4V G ///,

el

MatrisKelpis Auqdis Zi:iionis\ [duris Grinvalds itkane

Chairman of the Membetr of the Boatd, ember of the Board 1 ccountant,
Board responsible for report w on in charge of
preparation " .tle preparation of the

annual report
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the shareholders of “Sakret Holdings” AS

Our Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited consolidated financial statements of “Sakret Holdings™ AS and its subsidiaries (further - “the Group™) set out
on pages 6 to 24 of the accompanying annual report, which comprise:

e the consolidated statement of balance sheet as at 31 December 2018,
the consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year then ended,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended,
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

In our opinion the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2018, and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the
‘Law On the Annual Reports and Consolidated Annual Reports’ of the Republic of Latvia.

Basis for Opinion

In accordance with the Law on Audit Services of the Republic of Latvia we conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing adopted in the Republic of Latvia (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and independence requirements included in the Law on Audit Services of the
Republic of Latvia that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in the Republic of Latvia. We have also
fulfilled our other professional ethics responsibilities and objectivity requirements in accordance with the IESBA Code and Law
on Audit Services of the Republic of Latvia.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, but we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in the audit

1) Going concern

As disclosed in Note 21 to the financial statements the Group has
negative equity in the amount of 7 977 858 EUR as of 31
December 2018, and, as of that date, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by 18 274 874 EUR primary
due to outstanding short term loan liabilities payable to AS
Luminor bank in the amount of 17 641 137 EUR repayable on 30
September 2019.

As of the date of issuing these financial statements, the Group is
finalizing agreed loan restructuring process. There is refinancing
arranged with other credit institution and credit liability
settlement process is ongoing with AS Luminor Bank. As a result
loan liabilities to AS Luminor Bank will be settled for the agreed
amount of 9 mil EUR and new long term financing will become
available. As of the date of issuance of these financial
statements, the above mentioned amount is transferred to the

We considered the facts about the events and conditions existing
that casted doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

We obtained and evaluated management’s plans to ensure the
availability of the necessary financial resources.

We reviewed legal documentation related to refinancing
arrangement and loan liability settlement with AS Luminor
Bank, including analysis of closing conditions noted in the
agreements.

We analyzed forecasted cash flow information prepared by the
management related to the Group’s ability to generate sufficient
future cash flows.

Deloitte refers to one or more of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, a UK private company limited by guarantee (“DTTL", its network of member firms, and their related entities. DTTL and each of
its member firms are IegaII{ separate and independent entities. DTTL (also referred to as“Deloitte Global’) does not provide services to clients. Please see www deloitte.com/lv/about for a more
detailed description of DTTL and its member firms.

In Latvia, the services are provided by SIA Deloitte Latvia, SIA Deloitte Audits Latvia and law firm Deloitte Legal (jointly referred to as “Deloitte Latvia") which are affiliates of Deloitte Central Europe
Holdings Limited. Deloitte Latvia is one of the leading professional services organizations in the country providing services in tax, legal, audit and advisory through over 150 national and specialized
expatriate professionals.

This communication contains general information only, and none of Delojtte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, its member firms, or their related entities (collectively, the “Deloitte Network”) is, by means of
this communication, rendering professional advice or services. No entity in the Deloitte Network shall be responsible for any loss whatsoever sustained by any person who relies on this publication.

© 2019 Deloitte Audits Latvia SIA



n
n
|
n
n
]

' Deloitte

Deloitte Audits Latvia SIA
Gredu street 4a

Riga LV-1019

Latvia

Tel.: +371 6707 4100
Fax: +371 6707 4103

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in the'R{@i¢'eIOte.COM/IV

escrow account and payment to AS Luminor bank will be
executed after completion of collateral registration process on
behalf of new financing institution. It is planned that the process
will be finalized no later than till the end of October 2019,

The conditions as of 31 December 2018 indicated that a material
uncertainty existed related to the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. Therefore, the management assessment related to
going concern which includes restructuring of the loan
liabilities, improvement of equity and liquidity position of the
Group, ability to meet loan obligations was considered to be a
key audit matter due to significant management judgment
involved in the respect of future financial performance of the
Group and disclosure of going concern matter in the financial
statements.

We assessed the completeness and accuracy of the disclosures
related to going concern.

2) Judgments and estimates with respect to valuation of non-current assets

As disclosed in Notes 3 and 4 as of 31 December 2018 the Group
has property, plant, equipment assets with carrying value of 10
627 892 EUR and intangible assets with carrying value of 446
236 EUR which represents 66% of total assets. These balances
include the assets of Lithuanian subsidiary Sakret UAB in the
carrying amount of 5.3 mil EUR. The subsidiary in Lithuania has
incurred net operating losses during current and previous periods
and generated positive operating cash flows during last two
years.

The Group performs an annual impairment test of
non-current assets in order to identify impairment losses, arising
when the recoverable amount of cash generating unit is lower
than the carrying amount recorded. Management concluded that
the assets recoverable amount was higher than their carrying
values such that no material impairment allowance was required.

The future operating and capital expenditure cash flow
projections and discount rates applied in the valuation model
involve significant management judgement. The recoverable
value significantly depends on the assumptions used with respect
to sales growth, intragroup transactions business model, ability
to use Lithuanian production capacity for Latvian market,
production plant capital expenditure levels and profitability
targets as well as the Group management’s ability to realize those
assumptions and overall development of the Baltics construction
market. Any adverse changes to these assumptions caused by
volatility of the market the Group operates in may negatively
influence the carrying value of non-current assets presented in
the Group’s consolidated balance sheet as of 31 December 2018.
Accordingly, the impairment test of non-current assets is
considered to be a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures were focused on the assessment of key
assumptions used by the management in calculations, including
the cash flow projections and discount rates.

We involved internal valuation specialists to assess assumptions
used in cash flow projections which the outcome of impairment
test is most sensitive to, and evaluated the reasonableness of
assumptions made by management by comparing them to
internal sources of information available within the Group and
also to externally available industry, economic and financial
data. We performed more detailed procedures on non-current
assets of Sakret UAB as the estimated recoverable amount of
these assets is close to carrying value.

Furthermore, we evaluated management’s budgeting process by
comparing actual results to previously forecasted results.

We assessed the completeness and accuracy of the disclosures
relating to non-current assets in order to assess compliance with
disclosure requirements included in Latvian legislation.
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The Group’s management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises:

e information about the Group, as set out on page 3 to 4 of the accompanying Annual Report,
» the Management Report, as set out on page 5 of the accompanying Annual Report,

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information included in the consolidated Annual
Report, and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon, except as described in the Other reporting
responsibilities in accordance with the legislation of the Republic of Latvia section of our report.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

H, based on the work we have performed and in light of the knowledge and understanding of the entity and its environment
obtained in the course of our audit, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Other reporting responsibilities in accordance with the legislation of the Republic of Latvia

In addition, in accordance with the Law on Audit Services of the Republic of Latvia with respect to the Management Report, our
responsibility is to consider whether the Management Report is prepared in accordance with the requirements of the ‘Law On
the Annual Reports and Consolidated Annual Reports’ of the Republic of Latvia.

Based solely on the work required to be undertaken in the course of our audit, in our opinion:

s the information given in the Management Report for the financial year for which the consolidated financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the consolidated financial statements; and

¢ the Management Report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the ‘Law On the Annual Reports
and Consolidated Annual Reports” of the Republic of Latvia.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with the ‘Law On the Annual Reports and Consolidated Annual Reports’ of the Republic of Latvia and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. We-also:

®  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

Delaitte refers to one or more of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, a UK private company limited by guarantee ('DTTL"), its netwark of member firms, and their related entities. DTTL and each of
its member firms are legally separate and independent entities. DTTL (also referred to as “Deloitte Global”) does not provide services to clients, Please see www.deloitte.com/Iv/about for @ mare
detailed description of DTTL and its member firms.
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Holdings Limited. Deloitte Latvia is one of the leading professional services organizations in the country providing services in tax, legal, audit and advisory through over 150 national and specialized
expatriate professionals.

This communication contains general information only, and none of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, its member firms, or their related entities (collectively, the “Deloitte Network”) is, by means of
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®  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that ¢ ggédz?}')%r%%ﬁ%{g/ljx

the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

® Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

® Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

®  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
a fair presentation.

®  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Deloitte Audits Latvia SIA :
Licence No.43 >

— — ==z

" Inguna Stasa
Member of the Board
Certified Auditor of Latvia
Certificate No.145

Riga, Latvia
30 September 2019
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registracijas numurs: 40103251030

Adrese: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu novads, Latvija, LV-2121

INFORMACIJA PAR SABIEDRIBU

NOSAUKUMS

JURIDISKAIS STATUSS

REGISTRACIJAS NUMURS, VIETA UN
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DARBIBAS VEIDS

NACE kods

ZINAS PAR DALIBNIEKIEM

JURIDISKA ADRESE

VALDE

PADOME

PARSKATA GADS
IEPRIEKSEJAIS PARSKATA GADS

REVIDENTI UN ATBILDIGA REVIDENTA
VARDS UN UZVARDS

SAKRET HOLDINGS

Akciju sabiebriba

40103251030, Riga, 2009. gada 30. septembri

Holdingkompaniju darbiba. Sauso, lieto§anai
gatavo celtniecibas materialu, biivkimiju un krasu
razoSana un pardoSana

2364

SIA Maris un Partneri (100%)
Reg. Nr.40103296793

»Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu novads,
Latvija, LV-2121

Maris Kelpis, valdes priek§sédétajs
Andis Ziedonis, valdes loceklis

Juris Grinvalds, valdes loceklis

Andris Vanags, padomes priekssedétajs

Elma Salava, padomes priek$sédétaja vietniece
(lidz 2018. gada 14. februarim)

Martin§ Biezais, padomes loceklis

(lidz 2018. gada 14. februarim)

Valérija Liege, padomes priek3sédétaja vietniece
(no 2018. gada 14. februara)

Artis Grinbergs, padomes loceklis

(no 2018. gada 14. februara)

2017. gada 1. janvaris — 31. decembris
2016. gada 1. janvaris — 31. decembris

SIA ,,Deloitte Audits Latvia”
Licence Nr. 43

Grédu iela 4a

Riga, Latvija,

LV-1019

Kitija Kepite
Zverinata revidente .
Sertifikats Nr. 182



AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registracijas numurs: 40103251030
Adrese: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu novads, Latvija, LV-2121

VADIBAS ZINOJUMS

AS SAKRET HOLDINGS ir Sakret koncerna valdosa Sabiedriba §adas saistitajas sabiedribas:

® SIA SAKRET (registréta Latvijas Republika, vienotais registracijas Nr. 40003622109,
Jjuridiska adrese: ,,Ritvari”’, Rumbula, Stopinu novads, LV2121), 100% dalu,

® SIA SAKRET PLUS (registréta Latvijas Republika, vienotais registracijas Nr. 40003749392,
juridiska adrese: ,,Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu novads, LV2121), 90% dalu,

* UAB SAKRET LT (registréta Lietuvas Republika, registracijas Nr. 3005988522, juridiska
adrese: Biochemiky g. 2, LT-57234, Kédainiai, Lietuva), 100% dalu un

® OU SAKRET (registréta Igaunijas Republika, registracijas Nr. 111961147, juridiska adrese:
Méo kiila, Paide vald, 72751 Jirvamaa, Eesti), 100% dalu.

AS SAKRET HOLDINGS nodro§ina kop&jo koncerna parvaldi un uzraudzibu, nodroSinot savam meitas
sabiedribam vadibas pakalpojumus. Sabiedriba nodrogina Sakret uznémumu grupas finansu raditaju un to
atbilstibas noslégtajiem ligumiem kontroli.

Sabiedriba un tas radniecigas Sabiedribas Baltija aktivi strada pie sortimenta nostiprinasanas ar papildus
produktiem. Parskata perioda Sakret uznémumu grupas investicijas jaunu produktu izpét€ un attistiba kopuma
bija 108 957 TEUR.

2017. gadu Sabiedriba noslédza ar 39 193 EUR zaud€jumiem.

Nakotnes perspektivas

Sabiedribai un tas saistitajiem uznémumiem 2013, gada oktobrT tika noslégts ilgtermina kreditligums ar AS
DNB Banku (Sobrid AS Luminor Bank). Kreditliguma termins bija lidz 2017. gada 31. decembrim ar iespé&ju to
pagarinat. 2018. gada sakuma kreditliguma termins tika pagarinats lidz 2019. gada 31. janvarim. Saskana ar
esosa kreditliguma nosacijumiem Iidz iepriek§ minéta termina beigam Sabiedribai un ar to saistitajam
sabiedribam kopa ar AS Luminor Bank, pamatojoties uz Sakret Grupas attistibas planiem, ir javienojas par
talako sadarbibu.

Sabiedribas Valde uzskata, ka vienosanas tiks noslégta, Jo Sabiedriba un tas saistitas sabiedribas kops kredita
restrukturizacijas 2013. gada ir pildijusas visas saistibas pret banku pilna apméra lidz 2017. gada decembrim,
kad saskana ar ligumu bija paredzéta kredita atliku$as summas atmaksa. Kredita ligums paredz€ja, ka atmaksas
terming, pusém vienojoties, var tikt pagarinats. Sabiedriba 2017. gada uzsaka parrunas ar banku par kredita
atmaksas termina pagarina$anu. Attieciga vieno$anas ar banku tika panakta, ka rezultata 2018. gada 28. februari
tika parakstiti kredita liguma nr. 34/13K23 grozijumi nr. 3, kas paredz kredita gal&jo atmaksas terminu 2019.
gada 31. janvari. Parskata perioda Sabiedriba nav izpildijusi atseviskus Kredita liguma nosacijumus saistiba ar
finansu (pelnas) raditajiem.

2018. gada 28. maija finan$u parskatus Sabiedribas varda parakstija:

il

4 X 7
Maris Kelpis Andis %edonig Juiiaft{nvalds
Valdes priek$sédétajs Valdes loceklis Valdes loceklis
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registracijas numurs: 40103251030
Adrese: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu novads, Latvija, LV-2121

BILANCE
2017. GADA 31. DECEMBRI

Pielikumi
AKTIVI

Ilgtermina ieguldijumi
Pamatlidzekli
Pargjie pamatlidzekli un inventars 3
Kopa pamatlidzekli
Iligtermina finansu ieguldijumi
Aizdevumi radniecigajam sabiedribam
Lidzdaliba koncerna meitas sabiedribu kapitala 4
Citi ieguldijumi
Kopa ilgtermina ieguldijumi
Kopa ilgtermina ieguldijumi

w

Apgrozamie lidzekli
Debitori
Radniecigo sabiedribu paradi
Citi debitori
Tstermina aizdevumi radniecigajam sabiedribam 5
Nakamo periodu izmaksas
Kopa debitori

~N

Nauda

Kopa apgrozamie lidzekli
KOPA AKTIVI

31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.

EUR EUR

1089 -

1089 .

2 674 500 2 899 500

440 470 440 470

- 28

3114970 3339998

3116 059 3339998

91072 37574

30 830 30970

35572 35572

158 -

157 632 104 116

612 685

158 244 104 801

3274303 3444 799




AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registracijas numurs: 40103251030

Adrese: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu novads, Latvija, LV-2121

BILANCE
2017. GADA 31. DECEMBRI

PASIVS

Pasu kapitals
Pamatkapitals
Pargjas rezerves
Nesadalita pelna:
a) ieprieksgjo gadu nesadalita pelna
b) parskata gada (zaud&jumi)/pelna
Kopa pasu kapitals

Kreditori
Iigtermina kreditori
Aiznémumi no kreditiestadém
Kopa ilgtermina kreditori

Istermina kreditori
Aiznémumi no kreditiestadém
Paradi radniecigajam sabiedribam

Paradi piegadatajiem un darbuznéméjiem
Nodokli un valsts socialas apdroinasanas obligatas

iemaksas
Pargjie kreditori
Uzkratas saistibas
Kopa istermina kreditori
Kopa kreditori
KOPA PASIVS

Pielikumi

10
11

12

13

31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.
EUR EUR
35000 35000
572 572
656 070 553 478
(39 193) 102 592
652 449 691 642
2229 178 2322 885
2229178 2322 885
93 714 240 979
121 927 :
13 906 4997
5092 6 688
6739 3826
151 298 173 782
392 676 430272
2 621854 2753157
3274303 3444 799




AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registracijas numurs: 40103251030
Adrese: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu novads, Latvija, LV-2121

PELNAS VAI ZAUDEJUMU APREKINS
PAR 2017. GADU

Neto apgrozijums
Pardotas produkcijas raZo$anas izmaksas
Bruto pelna

Administracijas izmaksas

Pargjie saimnieciskas darbibas ienémumi
Paréjas saimnieciskas darbibas izmaksas
Procentu ienémumi un tamlidzigi ienémumi
Procentu maksajumi un tamlidzigas izmaksas
(Zaudgjumi)/pelna pirms nodokliem

Uznémumu ienakuma nodoklis
Parskata gada (zaudéjumi)/pelna

Pielikumi

14
15

16
17

2017 2016
EUR EUR
258 000 276 000
(199 325) (193 803)
58 675 82197
(99 453) (91 080)
- 120 000

(138) (208)

76 908 81976
(75 185) (77 393)
(39 193) 115 492
- (12 900)

(39 193) 102 592




AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registracijas numurs: 40103251030
Adrese: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu novads, Latvija, LV-2121

PASU KAPITALA IZMAINU PARSKATS
PAR 2017. GADU

Denominicijas Nesadalita

Pamatkapitals rezerve pelna Kopa

EUR EUR EUR EUR
Uz 2015. gada 31. decembri 35000 572 553 478 589 050
Parskata gada pelna - 102 592 102 592
Uz 2016. gada 31. decembri 35000 572 656 070 691 642
Parskata gada zaudejumi - (39 193) (39 193)
Uz 2017. gada 31. decembri 35000 572 616 877 652 449




AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registracijas numurs: 40103251030
Adrese: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu novads, Latvija, LV-2121

NAUDAS PLUSMAS PARSKATS
PAR 2017. GADU

Pamatdarbibas naudas plisma
(Zaudé€jumi)/pelna pirms nodokliem

Korekcijas:

Pamatlidzek]u nolietojums

Procentu ienémumi

Procentu izmaksas
Pelna pirms apgrozama kapitila izmainam

Debitoru izmaina

Krajumu izmaina

Kreditoru izmaina
Pamatdarbibas naudas plisma

Samaksatais uznémumu ienakuma nodoklis
Pamatdarbibas neto naudas plisma
IeguldiSanas darbibas naudas plisma

Izsniegts aizdevums radniecigai sabiedribai

Pamatlidzek]u iegade

lenémumi no aizdevumu atmaksas no radniecigas sabiedribas
Sanemtie procenti

Ieguldisanas darbibas neto naudas plisma
Finansé§anas darbibas naudas plisma

Ienémumi no kapitala lidzdalibas dalu ieguldfjumiem
Izdevumi aiznémumu atmaksasanai

Samaksatie procenti

FinanséSanas darbibas neto naudas pliisma

Naudas un tas ekvivalentu neto (samazinajums)
Nauda un tas ekvivalenti gada sakuma

Nauda un tas ekvivalenti gada beigas

Pielikumi

2017 2016
EUR EUR
(39 193) 115 492
99 .
(76 908) (81976)
75 185 77 393
(40 817) 110 909
(52 816) (24 342)
125 931 158 008
32298 244 575
(16 134) (12 286)
16 164 232289
§ (115 000)
(1188)
225 000 45 500
76 208 81062
300 020 11562
’ 10 000
(240 972) (206 059)
(75 285) (80 420)
(316 257) (276 479)
(73) (32 628)
685 33313
612 685




AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registracijas numurs: 40103251030

FINANSU PARSKATU PIELIKUMI
PAR 2017. GADU

1. PAMATINFORMACLJA

AS ,,Sakret Holdings” ir registréta Latvijas iepublikas Uznémumu registra ka akciju sabiedriba. Sabiedribas
pamatdarbiba ir: holdingkompaniju darbiba; sauso, lietosanai gatavo celtniecibas materialu, bivkimiju un
krasu raZoSana un pardosana.

2. GRAMATVEDIBAS UZSKAITES UN N OVERTESANAS METODES
Visparigie principi

Sabiedribas finansu parskati sagatavoti saskana ar Latvijas Republikas likumu ,»Par gramatvedibu” un ,,Gada
parskatu un konsolidéto gada parskatu likums” prasibam.

FinanSu parskatos ietvertas summas ir ieglitas, pamatojoties uz sakotngjo izmaksu metodi. Salidzinot ar
iepriek$gjo parskata gadu, Sabiedriba lietotas uzskaites un noveértésanas metodes nav mainitas,

Pelnas vai zaudgjumu aprekins sastadits atbilstosi apgrozjjuma izmaksu shémai. Naudas pliismas parskats
sastadits péc netie$ds metodes. Finansu parskati ir sastaditi Latvijas nacionalaja valiita EUR,

Arvalstu valiitas

FinanSu parskata par naudas vienibu lietota Eiropas Sabiebribas nacionalas vieniba eiro (talak teksta-“EUR”),
kas Sabiedribas funkcionala un uzradiSanas valiita Eiropas Centralas bankas noteiktie valiitas kursi.

Debitori

Debitoru paradi bilancé tiek uzraditi Péc to nominalvertibas, atskaitot uzkrajumus Saubigajiem debitoru
paradiem. Sabiedriba katra parskata gada bilances datuma izvérte iesp€jamas objektivas pazimes, kas liecinitu
par to, ka pircéjs vai pasiititajs neievéros apmaksas noteikumus. Katrs debitors tiek analizéts individuali.
Saubigiem paradiem tiek veidoti uzkrajumi, kuru lielumu nosaka ki starpibu starp atgiistamo vértibu un
nominalveértibu.

Krajumi

Krajumi tiek uzraditi zemakaja no iegades vai tirgus veértibas. Krajumu iegades izmaksas ietver pirkianas cenu,
ievedmuitu un citus nodoklus un nodevas, transportéSanas izmaksas, k3 ar citas tie§i attiecinamas izmaksas,

]

kas radusas, nogadajot krajumus to pasreiz€ja atra$ands vietd un stivokii, Nosakot krajumu vertibu, tiek
atskaititas tirdzniecibas atlaides, rabati un citus lidzigus postenus,

Tirgus vértiba ir parastas uznéméjdarbibas darbibas gaita aplésta pardosfanas cena, no kuras atskaititas aplestas
pabeigianas izmaksas un nepiecie$amas pardoSanas izmaksas.

Krajumu iegades vértibu nosaka, izmantojot ,,pirmais iek3a — pirmais ara” (FIFO) metodi.

Ja nepiecie$ams, tiek izveidoti uzkréjumi novecojusiem, 18nas aprites vai bojatiem krajumiem.

Néakamo periodu izdevumi

Nakamo periodu izdevumi ir izdevumi, kas radusies parskata gada un ir samaksati, bet attiecas uz nakamiem
periodiem.

Nauda

Nauda sastav no naudas kasé un teko3o bankas kontu atlikumiem,
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registracijas numurs: 40103251030

FINANSU PARSKATU PIELIKUMI
PAR 2017. GADU

Lidzdaliba radniecigo sabiedribu kapitila

leguldijumi radniecigo sabiedribu kapitala (t.i., sabiedribas, kuras Sabiedribai pieder vairak nekd 50%
pamatkapitala vai kuras td kontrolé kada cita veida) sakotngji tiek novertéti péc to iegades vertibas. Kontrole
ir sp&ja noteikt otras sabiedribas finansu un pamatdarbibas politiku.

Péc sakotnéjas atzi¥anas visi Sabiedribas leguldijumi ir uzraditi iegades vertiba, atskaitot uzkritos zaud&jumus
no vértibas samazinajuma. Ja kadi notikumi vai apstaklu maina liecina, ka ieguldijumu bilances vértiba varétu
blt neatgiistama, attiecigo ieguldfjumu vértiba tick parskatita, lai noteiktu to vértibas samazinajumu.
Zaudéjumi no vértibas samazinajuma tiek atziti pelnas vai zaud&jumu aprékina.

Noma

FinanSu nomas darfjumi, kuru ietvaros Sabiedribai tiek nodoti visi riski un atlidziba, kas izriet no
Ipafumtiesibam uz nomas objektu, tiek atziti bilancé ki pamatlidzekli par summu, kas, nomu uzsakot, atbilst
nomas ietvaros nomatad ipaSuma patiesajai vértibai, vai, ja td ir mazaka, minimalo nomas maksajumu
pasreiz§jai vertibai. Finansu nomas maksajumi tiek sadaliti starp finanSu izmaksam un saistibu samazinjumu,
lai katra periodd nodro$inatu pastavigu procentu likmi par saistibu atlikumu. Finan$u izmaksas tiek ieklautas
pelnas vai zaud&jumu aprekina ka procentu izmaksas.

Ja ir pietiekams pamats uzskatit, ka nomas perioda beigas attiecigais nomas objekts paries nomnieka 1pasuma,
par paredzamo izmarto3anas laiku tiek pienemts §1 aktiva lietderigas izmantoganas laiks. Visos citos gadijumos
kapitalizéto nomato aktivu nolietojums tiek aprékinats, izmantojot linearo metodi, aplestaja aktivu lietderigas
lietosanas laika vai nomas perioda atkariba no ta, kurs no &em periodiem Tsaks.

Akftivu noma, kuras ietvaros praktiski visus no IpaSumtiesibam izrietoSos riskus uznemas un atlidzibu giist
iznomatajs, tiek klasificéta ka operativa noma. Nomas maksajumi operativas nomas ietvaros tiek uzskaititi ka
izmaksas visd nomas perioda laika. No operativds nomas ligumiem izrieto§as Sabiedribas saistibas tiek
atspogulotas k& arpusbilances saistibas.

Paradi piegidatdjiem un darbuznémeéjiem

Paradus piegadatajiem un darbuznémeéjiem sakotnéji atzist to patiesaja vértiba. Kreditoru paradi tiek klasificéti
ka istermina saistibas, ja maksijuma termin$ ir viens gads vai mazak. Pretgja gadijuma tie tiek uzraditi
ilgtermina saistibu sastava.

Uzkratas saistibas neizmantotiem atvalindjumiem

Uzkrato saistibu summa tiek noteikta, reizinot darbinieku vid€jo dienas izpelnu par periodu no jinija lidz
novembrim ar parskata gada beigas uzkrato neizmantoto atvalinajuma dienu skaitu, papildus aprékinot darba
devéja valsts socialds apdrosinaganas obligatas iemaksas.

Uzkrajumi

Uzkrajumi tiek atziti, kad Sabiedribai ir padreizéjs piendkums (juridisks vai prakses radits), ko izraisijis kads
pagatnes notikums, un pastav varbiitiba, ka $o saistibu izpildei biis nepiecieSsama ekonomiskos labumus
ietveroSu resursu aizplidana no Sabiedribas, un saistibu apjomu iesp&jams pietiekami ticami novertét.
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registracijas numurs: 40103251030

FINANSU PARSKATU PIELIKUMI
PAR 2017. GADU

Aizdevumi un aiznémumi

Aizdevumi un aiznémumi sakomnéji tiek atspoguloti to sakotnéja vértiba, ko nosaka, aizdevuma vai aiznémuma
summas patiesajai vertibai pieskaitot ar aizdevuma izsniegganu saistitas vai atpemot ar aiznémuma sanemsanu
saistitas izmaksas. Aizdevumu vai aiznémumu istermina dala tiek atziti tie aiznémumi vai aizdevumu kuriem
atmaksat termin8 ir 12 ménesu laika no parskata gada beigam, paréjie tiek atziti par ilgtermina dalu.

lenémumu atziSana un neto apgrozijums

Ienémumus novérté sanemtds vai sanemamas atlidzibas patiesaja vertiba, atskaitot pievienotas vértibas
nodokli. Ienémumi tiek samazinati par paredzamo pre¢u atpakalatdoSanu, pardofanas atlaidém un
tamlidzigiem posteniem.

Pakalpojumu sniegsana
Ja var ticami aplést tdda darfjuma iznakumu, kas saistits ar pakalpojumu sniegSanu, ar darfjumu saistitos
ienémumus atzist, nemot vera to, kada izpildes pakapé bilances datuma atrodas dartjums. Darfjuma iznakumu
var ticami aplést, ja tiek ievéroti visi §adi nosacijumi:
®  var ticami novertét ienémumu summu;
® ir ticams, ka Sabiedriba iepladis ar darTjumu saistitie saimnieciskie labumi;
* var ticami novertét, kada izpildes pakapé bilances datuma atrodas darfjums; un
var ticami noveértét radusas darfjuma izmaksas un izmaksas, kas nepiecie$amas darfjuma
pabeigSanai.

Ienémumi no sanemtam dividendéem

Ienémumus noverté sanemtas vai sanemamas atlidzibas patiesaja vértiba, uz periodu uz kuru tie attiecas un
uzraditi posteni “Pargjie saimnieciskas darbibas ienémum”,

Finan$u ienemumi

Ien€mumi, kas saistiti ar aizdevumiem, tiek atziti perioda, uz kuru tie attiecas un uzraditi posteni “Procentu
ienémumi un tamlidzigi ienémumi”.

Finansu izdevumi

lzmaksas, kas saistitas ar aiznémumiem, tiek norakstitas uz izdevumiem periodd, uz kuru tas attiecas un

uzraditas posteni “Procentu maksajumi un tamlidzigas izmaksas”.

Uznémumu iendkuma nodoklis

Uzpémumu ienakuma nodoklis tiek aprékints saskand ar Latvijas Republikas nodoklu likumdoganu. Speka
esosa likumdo&ana nosaka nodokla likmi — 15%.

Saistitds un radniecigds puses

Par saistitam pusém tiek uzskatiti Sabiedribas dalibnieki, valdes locekli, vinu tuvi gimenes locekli un
sabiedribas, kurds minétajam persondm ir kontrole vai biitiska ietekme un Sabiedribas grupa ietilpstosas
sabiedribas. Radniecigas sabiedribas ir mates un meitas uznémumi.

Novértejumu pielietoSana

Latvijas likumdo$anas prasibas nosaka, ka, sagatavojot finansu parskatus, Sabiedribas vadiba noverts un izdara
pienémumus, kas ietekmé parskatos un arpusbilancé uzraditos aktivus un pasivus uz finan$u parskatu
sagatavoSanas dienu, ka arT uzraditos parskata perioda ienémumus un izdevumus. Faktiskie rezultati var
at8kirties no §im aplésém.
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registracijas numurs: 40103251030

FINANSU PARSKATU PIELIKUMI
PAR 2017. GADU

Butiskakie pienémumi un nozimigakas apléses par nakotni un citas neskaidribas, kas eksisté bilances datuma
un kas rada risku, ka, iespgjams, bils biitiski jakorigé aktivu un pasivu vertiba ndikamajos parskata gados:

Sabiedriba izvérté debitoru paradus un noverté to atgiistamibu, nepiecieSamibas gadijuma veidojot
uzkrajumus Saubigiem debitoru parddiem. Sabiedribas vadiba ir izvértéjusi debitoru paradus un
uzskata, ka nav nepiecieSams veidot papildus uzkrajumus 2017. gada 31. decembri.

Sabiedriba izverté izsniegtos aizdevumus un noverts to atgustamibu. Sabiedribas vadiba ir izvért&jusi
aizdevamu atgiistamibu un uzskata, ka nav nepiecieSams veidot uzkrajumus uz 2017. gada
31. decembri.

Sabiedriba izverte savu sp&ju turpinat darbibu nakotné. Skatit 21. pielikumu.

Sabiedribas vadiba izveérté ieguldijumu radniecigo sabiedribu kapitala uzskaites vértibu un noverts,
vai pastav kadas pazimes, kas norada, ka minéto aktivu atgiistama summa ir zemaka neka to uzskaites
vértiba. Sabiedribas vadiba aprékina un atzist zaudgjumus no ieguldijumu radniecigo sabiedribu
kapitala vértibas samazinajuma, pamatojoties uz aplésém par to nakotnes atdevi. Sabiedribas vadiba
uzskata, ka biitiskas ieguldijumu radniecigo sabiedribu kapitala vertibas korekcijas 2017. gada
31. decembr nav nepiecieSamas.
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registricijas numurs: 40103251030

FINANSU PARSKATU PIELIKUMI
PAR 2017. GADU

3. PAMATLIDZEKLI

Iekartas un Kopa

masinas
EUR EUR
Uz 2016. gada 31. decembri - -
Iegadats 1188 1188
Uz 2017. gada 31. decembri 1188 1188
Uz 2016. gada 31. decembri - -
Aprekinats 99 99
Uz 2017. gada 31. decembri 99 99
Uz 2016. gada 31. decembri - -
Uz 2017. gada 31. decembri 1089 1089

Informacija par Sabiedribas iekilatiem aktiviem sniegta 22. pielikuma.

4. LIDZDALIBA KONCERNA MEITAS SABIEDRIBU KAPITALA

Radnieciga Lidzdalibas dala
sabiedriba

31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.

% %

SIA SAKRET 100% 100%
SIA SAKRET PLUS 90% 90%
UAB SAKRET LT 100% 100%
OU SAKRET 100% 100%
Kopa

Radniecigo sabiedribu juridiskas adreses un uznémejdarbibas veidi:

Radniecigi sabiedriba Informicija Uznéméj-
darbibas
veids NACE
SIA SAKRET registréta Latvijas Republika, vienotais registracijas Nr. 2364

40003622109, juridiska adrese: ,,Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu
novads, LV2121

SIA SAKRET PLUS registréta Latvijas Republika, vienotais registracijas Nr, 2030
40003749392, juridiska adrese: »Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu
novads, L V2121

UAB SAKRET LT registréta Lietuvas Republika, registracijas Nr. 3005988522, 2364
juridiska adrese: Biochemiky g. 2, LT-57234, Kédainiai,
Lietuva

OU SAKRET registréta Igaunijas Republika, registracijas Nr. 111961 147, 2364
juridiska adrese: Mo kiila, Paide vald, 72751 Jirvamaa, Eesti
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FINANSU PARSKATU PIELIKUMI
PAR 2017. GADU

Radniecigo sabiedribu nerevidétie finan$u raditaji:

Pagsu kapitals Parskata gada pelna/
(zaudé€jumi)
Radnieciga sabiedriba 31.12.2017. 31.12.2016. 31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.
EUR EUR EUR EUR
nerevidétie revidétie nerevidétie revidétie
SIA SAKRET (1 055 958) (579 911) (476 047) (115 265)
SIA SAKRET PLUS 1774 496 1589431 185 065 219 125
UAB SAKRET LT (6 059 551) (5923 284) (136 267) (381 992)
OU SAKRET (3 145 881) (3 340 169) 194 288 147 457
(8 486 894) (8 253 933) (232 961) (130 675)
5. AIZDEVUMI RADNIECIGAJAM SABIEDRIBAM
Ilgtermina: Liguma numurs Spékd esosa Atmaksas 31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.
un valiita procentu termin§
likme (%) EUR EUR
SIA SAKRET Nr. FC/13-001, 3 mén.
EUR Euribor + 3% 30.06.2019 2 674 500 2 899 500
Kopa jlgtermina aizdevumi 2 674 500 2 899 500
Istermina: Liguma Spéka esosa Atmaksas 31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.
numurs un procentu termins
valiita likme (%) EUR EUR
»Maris un Partneri” Nr.1, 3.5% 31.12.2018
SIA EUR 35572 35572
Kopa ilgtermina aizdevumi 35572 35572
Aizdevumi ir bez nodro§inajuma.
6. RADNIECIGO SABIEDRIBU PARADI
31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.
EUR EUR
Par sniegtajiem pakalpojumiem viet&ja tirgii 77572 13074
Eiropas Savienibas (ES) ietvaros, tai skaita,
Igaunija 13 500 13 500
Lietuva - 11 000
Kopa 91072 37574
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Registracijas numurs: 40103251030

FINANSU PARSKATU PIELIKUMI
PAR 2017. GADU

7. CITI DEBITORI

31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.
EUR EUR

Nodoklu parmaksa(12.pielikums) 12910

Uzkratie procenti par aizdevumu SIA SAKRET 6093 6 637
Uzkratie procenti par aizdevumu ,Maris un Partneri” SIA 6812 5567
Samaksats avanss par pakalpojumiem 2900 -
Uzkratie iengmumi par sniegtiem pakalpojumiem SIA SAKRET - 18 000
PLUS

Citi 2115 766
Kopi 30 830 30 970

8. PAMATKAPITALS

2017. gada 31. decembri un 2016. gada 31. decembri registrétais un pilniba apmaksatais pamatkapitals sastav
no 35 000 dalam ar nominalvértibu EUR 1 katra. Sabiedribas pamatkapitals sastada EUR 35 000. 2014. gada
veiktas denominacijas rezultata radies pamatkapitala samazinajums EUR 572 apmera ir uzradits Sabiedribas

pasu kapitala posteni “Paréjas rezerves”.

9. AIZNEMUMI NO KREDITIESTADEM

Higtermina daja: Liguma numurs Spékd esosa Atmal‘.tsczs Atlikust Atlikust
un valuta HFOC@"O’H termins pamatsumma pamatsumma
likme (%) 31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.
EUR EUR
AS ,Luminor Bank” Nr. 34/13K23, 3 mén. Euribor
aiznémums +3%
(aizg ) EUR 31.01.2019 2229178 2322885
Kopa ilgtermina aiznémumi no kreditiestadém 2229178 2 322 885
Tstermina dala: Liguma RUMUrs Spéka esosa Atmalfscfs Atlikust Atlikust
un valiita l?"oceﬂnfu termins pamatsumma pamatsumma
likme (%%) 31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.
EUR EUR
AS ,,Luminor Bank” . 34/13K23, 3 mén. Euribor
(aizp€mums) EUR +3%
31.12.2018 93 714 240 979
Kopa istermina aiznémumi no kreditiestadém 93 714 240 979

Sabiedribai un tas saistitajiem uznémumiem 2013, gada oktobrT tika noslégts ilgtermina kreditligums ar AS
DNB Banku (3obrid AS Luminor Bank). Kreditliguma terming bija Iidz 2017.gada 31.decebrim ar iesp&ju to
pagarinat. 2018.gada sakuma kreditliguma termins tika pagarinats lidz 2019.gada 31.janvarim. Saskana ar
esosa kreditliguma nosacfjumiem Iidz iepriek§ minéta termina beigam Sabiedribai un ar to saistitajam
sabiedribam kopa ar AS Luminor Bank, pamatojoties uz Sakret Grupas attistibas planiem, ir Jjavienojas par
talako sadarbibu, '

Sabiedribas Valde uzskata, ka vienoSanas tiks noslégta, jo Sabiedriba un tis saistitas sabiedribas kops kredita
restrukturizacijas 2013. gada ir pildijusas visas saistibas pret banku pilna apméra lidz 2017. gada decembrim,
kad saskana ar ligumu bija paredzéta kredita atliku$as summas atmaksa. Kredita ligums paredzéja, ka atmaksas
termins, pusém vienojoties, var tikt pagarinats. Sabiedriba 2017. gada uzsaka parrunas ar banku par kredita
atmaksas termina pagarinasanu. Attieciga vieno$anas ar banku tika panikta, ki rezultatd 2018, gada 28,
februari tika parakstiti kredita liguma nr. 34/13K23 grozijumi nr. 3, kas paredz kredita gal&jo atmaksas terminu
2019. gada 31. janvarl.
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Saskana ar noslégtajiem ligumiem, Sabiedribai ir pienakums nodroginat noteiktu raditaju izpildi ligumu
darbibas laika, Saskana ar vadibas novertgjumu, 2017. gada 31. decembri Sabiedriba nav izpildijusi atseviskus

Kredita Iiguma nosacijumus saistiba ar finansu (pelnas) raditajiem.

10. PARADI RADNIECIGAJAM SABIEDRIBAM

31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.
EUR EUR
Par predu piegadém un pakalpojumiem:
vietgja tirgii 120 740 -
ES ietvaros, tai skaita:
No Lietuvas 1187
Kopa 121 927 -
11. PARADI PIEGADATAJIEM UN DARBUZNEMEJIEM
31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.
EUR EUR
Par pre¢u piegadém un pakalpojumiem:
vietja tirgii 13 906 4997
Kopa 13 906 4 997

12. NODOKLI UN VALSTS SOCIALAS APDROSINASANAS OBLIGATAS IEMAKSAS

31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.
EUR EUR
Uzpémumu iendkuma nodoklis 12910 (3 135)
Socialas apdro$indsanas obligatas iemaksas (2927) (1544)
ledzivotaju ienakuma nodoklis (1728) (892)
Pievienotas vértibas nodoklis (432) (1112)
Uzpémeéjdarbibas riska valsts nodeva (5) (5)
Parmaksa 12 910 -
Parads (5092) 6 688
13. UZKRATAS SAISTIBAS
31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.
EUR EUR
Izdevumi, par kuriem rékini sanemti nako%aja finansu gada no SIA SAKRET 75 500 66 500
Izdevumi, par kuriem r&kini sanemti nakogaja finansu gada no OU SAKRET 37 063 35500
Izdevumi, par kuriem rekini sanemti nako$aj finansu gada no SIA SAKRET
PLUS 8 820 33285
Izdevumi, par kuriem rékini sanemti nakoSaja finan§u gada no UAB SAKRET
LT 19 688 23188
Izdevumi, par kuriem rékini sanemti nakosaja finansu gada 7936 5540
Neizmantotie darbinieku atvalindjumi 2291 9769
Kopa 151 298 173 782
14.NETO APGROZIJUMS
2017 2016
EUR EUR
Ienakumi no pakalpojumu snieg8anas 258 000 276 000
Kopa 258 000 276 000
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15. PARDOTAS PRODUKCIJAS RAZOSANAS IZMAKSAS

2017 2016
EUR EUR
Produktu izpétes izmaksas 141 070 158 473
Atlidziba par darbu 43 994 28 250
Valsts socialas apdroginaganas obligatas iemaksas un uznémejdarbibas
riska nodeva 10 294 6 557
Nekustama Ipasuma noma 523 523
Nolietojums 99 -
Pargjas izmaksas 3343 -
Kopa 199 325 193 803
16. ADMINISTRACIJAS IZMAKSAS
2017 2016
EUR EUR
Juristu pakalpojumi 33650 14 000
Atlidziba par darbu 25419 29 572
Vadibas pakalpojumi 21240 21240
Valsts socialas apdro$ina$anas obligatas iemaksas un uznémejdarbibas
riska nodeva ' 6 027 7011
Konsultaciju pakalpojumi 5500 11315
Pargjas izmaksas 7617 7942
Kopi 99 453 91 080
17. PAREJIE SAIMNIECISKAS DARBIBAS IENEMUMI
2017 2016
EUR EUR
Sanemits atbalsta finansgjums - 120 000
Kopa - 120 000
18. SABIEDRIBA NODARBINATO PERSONU VIDEJAIS SKAITS
2017 2016
Vidgjais Sabiedriba nodarbinato personu skaits parskata gada
13 13
19. VADIBAS UN VALDES ATALGOJUMS
2017 2016
EUR EUR
- darba samaksa 11471 11 560
- valsts socialas apdro$inasanas obligatas iemaksas 2719 2728
Kopa 14 190 14 288
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20. FINANSU RISKU VADIBA

Sabiedribas nozimigakie finan$u instrumenti ir aiznémumi no kreditiestddeém un nauda. So finansu instrumentu
galvenais uzdevums ir nodro§inat Sabiedribas saimnieciskas darbibas finans&jumu. Sabiedriba izmanto arf
citus finansu instrumentus, pieméram — aizdevumi radniecigajam sabiebribam, pirc&ju un pasutitaju paradi un
citi debitori, paradi piegadatajiem un darbuzpéméjiem un paréjie kreditori, kas izriet tie$i no saimnieciskas
darbibas.

Valiitas risks

Sabiedriba galvenokart veic darfjumus eiro. Ta ki sakot ar 2014. gada 1. janvari Latvijas nacionala valiita ir
eiro, tad 8is netiek uzskatits par biitisku risku.

Procentu likmju risks
Sabiedriba ir paklauta procentu likmju riskam galvenokart saistiba ar tas bankas aizn€mumu.

Likviditates risks

Likviditates risks ir risks, ka Sabiedriba nebiis spejiga savlaicigi un pilnd apméra nodro§inat savu saistibu
izpildi. Sabiedribas likviditates riska parvaldibas merkis ir uzturgt atbilstoSu naudas un tas ekvivalentu
daudzumu un nodro8inat atbilstoSu finans&juma pietiekamibu, izmantojot banku pieskirtos aiznémumus (skatit
9. pielikumu), lai Sabiedriba spétu pildit savas saistibas noteiktajos terminos. Sabiedriba regulari izverts
finansu aktivu un pasivu terminu saskanotibu, ka ari ilgtermina ieguldijumu finans&juma avotu stabilitati.
Likviditates parvaldiSanai katru ménesi péc iepriek$€ja ménesa faktisko rezultatu sanemsSanas tiek sagatavota
operativa naudas pliismas prognoze. Sabiedribas vadiba uzskata, ka Sabiedribai bus pietickami naudas resursi,
lai tas likviditate nebiitu apdraudéta.

Sabiedribas turpmaka likviditate bis ari atkariga no radniecigo sabiedribu spgjas laicigi segt savas tekogas

saistibas un kreditsaistibas, ka ar spéjas laicigi un pilna apmeéra segt saistibas pret banku (skatit ari
9. pielikumu).
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21. DARBIBAS TURPINASANAS PRINCIPS

Sabiedriba ir vienigais dalibnieks ar 100% kapitala dalu saistitajam sabiedribam SIA SAKRET (registréta
Latvijas Republika), OU SAKRET (registréta Igaunijas Republika) un UAB SAKRET LT (registréta Lietuvas
Republika) un SIA SAKRET PLUS (registréta Latvijas Republika) kontrolgjosais dalibnieks ar 90% dalu -
turpmak teksta ,,Sakret Grupa”.

Sabiedribai ir noslégts aizdevuma ligums ar meitas sabiedribu SIA SAKRET 3 000 000 EUR apméra (skatit
5. pielikumu), aizdevuma atlikums uz 31.12.2017. ir 2 710 072 EUR. Aizgémuma ligums ar AS Luminor
Bank 3 000 000 EUR apméra, aiznémuma atlikums 2 322 892 EUR (skatit 9. pielikumu).

Sakret Grupa parskata perioda ir veikusi pamatsummas apmaksu EUR 1 800 000, taja skaita Sabiedriba veikusi
pamatsummas apmaksu EUR 240 972,

2018.gada sakuma kreditliguma termin$ tika pagarinats lidz 2019.gada 31 janvarim. Saskana ar eso$a
kreditliguma nosacijumiem lidz iepriek8 mingta termina beigdm Sabiedribai un ar to saistitajam sabiedribam
kopa ar AS Luminor Bank, pamatojoties uz Sakret Grupas attistibas planiem, ir javienojas par talako sadarbibu.
Vienlaicigi esosie kreditliguma nosacijumi paredz mazak intensivu ilgtermina kredita pamatsummas dz&$anu
un faktoringa limita palielindjumu 2018, gada, kas uzlabo Sabiedribas un Sakret grupas uznémumu likviditati,

Sabiedribas Valde uzskata, ka vienoganas tiks noslégta, jo Sabiedriba un tas saistitas sabiedribas kop$ kredita
restrukturizacijas 2013. gada ir pildijudas visas saistibas pret banku pilna apméra lidz 2017. gada decembrim,
kad saskana ar ligumu bija paredzéta kredita atliku$as summas atmaksa. Kredita Iigums paredzéja, ka atmaksas
terming, pusém vienojoties, var tikt pagarinats. Sabiedriba 2017. gada uzsaka parrunas ar banku par kredita
atmaksas termina pagarinasanu. Attieciga vienoSanas ar banku tika panakta, ka rezultata 2018. gada 28.
februari tika parakstiti kredita liguma nr. 34/13K23 grozijumi nr. 3, kas paredz kredita gal€jo atmaksas terminu
2019. gada 31. janvari. Parskata perioda Sabiedriba nav izpildijusi atseviSkus Kredita liguma nosacijumus
saistiba ar finangu (pelnas) raditajiem.

Sakret Grupas darbibas turpinagana ir atkariga no tas spéjas laicigi segt saistibas pret kreditiestadi, ieverot
visus kreditiestades noteiktos finangu raditajus, ka arf nodrosinat kreditiestazu finansgjumu ilgaka termina, ka
ari no citu Sakret Grupas uznémumu sp€jas pilna apmeéra segt saistibas pret Sabiedribu.

Minétie apstakli norada uz biitisku nenoteiktibu saistiba ar Sabiedribas sp&ju turpinat darbibu. Sis finansu
parskats ir sagatavots pamatojoties uz darbibas turpindSanas pienémumu un taja nav ieklauti nekadi labojumi,
kas varétu biit nepieciesami, Jja darbibas turpinaganas pienémums nebiitu piemérojams. Sabiedribas vadiba ir
parliecinata, ka darbibas turpinasanas principa piemérosana ir pamatota.

22. IZSNIEGTAS GARANTIJAS

Visas Sabiedribas akcijas un manta ir iekilata par labu AS Luminor Banka (turpmak — ,Banka”) ka
nodro8indjums kreditam. Kopéja Sakret Grupas aiznémuma nodro§indjuma summa par labu AS DNB Banka
ir EUR 29 880 308. Kredits izsniegts ilgtermina ieguldijumu finansé8anai, kreditlinija — apgrozamo lidzek]u
finansé$anai.

Aiznémuma Iigums, kas noslégts starp Sakret Grupas sabiedribam un Banku nosaka, ka, ja kads no

kreditnémeéjiem péc liguma noradito terminu notec&juma neatmaksa Bankai izsniegto kredita dalu vai jebkadu
tas dalu, nesamaksa attiecigos Bankai pienako$os procentus vai ligumsodu, vai ari nenodrogina paréjos no
liguma izrietogos Bankas prasijumus, tad visi paréjie kreditnéméji nekavéjosi sedz visus Bankas prasijumus
pilna apméra. .

Sabiedribas vadiba apliecina, ka uz § finangu parskata parakstiSanas bridi visi aizpémuma Iiguma minétie
kreditnéméji ir izpildijusi pilna apmera visus Bankas nosacijumus un 2017. gada 31. decembri nav javeido
papildus uzkrajumi iespgjamam saistibam, kas varétu rasties no aiznémuma liguma nosacijumu nepildiianas.
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23. DARIJUMI AR RADNIECIGAM SABIEDRIBAM

(a) Pre¢u pardoSana un pakalpojumu snieg§ana

SIA SAKRET

UAB SAKRET LT
OU SAKRET

SIA SAKRET PLUS
Kopa

(b) Preduiegade un pakalpojumu sanemsana

SIA SAKRET
Kopia

(¢) Procentu ienémumi no aizdevumiem

SIA SAKRET
,,Maris un Partneri” SIA
Kopa

(d) Radniecigo sabiedribu paradi

SIA SAKRET PLUS
OU SAKRET

SIA SAKRET

UAB SAKRET LT
Kopa

(e) Citi debitori, kas radusies no darfjumiem ar radniecigam sabiedribam

Uzkratie procenti par aizdevumu SIA SAKRET

Uzkratie procenti par aizdevumu ,,Maris un Partneri” SIA
Uzkratie ienémumi par sniegtiem pakalpojumiem SIA SAKRET

PLUS
Kopa
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2017 2016
EUR EUR
102 000 102 000
66 000 66 000
54 000 54 000
36 000 54 000
258 000 276 000
2017 2016
EUR EUR
695 695
695 695
2017 2016
EUR EUR
75 663 80 728
1245 1248
76 908 81976
31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.
EUR EUR
68 170 3630
13 500 13 500
9402 0444
- 11 000
91 072 37574
31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.
EUR EUR
6093 6 637
6812 5567
- 18 000
13 105 30 204
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24.PARADI RADNIECIGAJAM SABIEDRIBAM
31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.
EUR EUR
SIA SAKRET 120 740 -
UAB SAKRET LT 1187 3
Kopa 121 927 -

25.NOTIKUMI PEC PARSKATA GADA BEIGAM

2018.gada 28.februari kreditliguma un faktoringa liguma termin$ ar AS Luminor Bank tika pagarinats lidz
2019.gada 31 janvarim. 2018.gada maija tika palielinats kopéjais faktoringa limits Sakret grupas uznémumiem
no 1 000,00 tiikst. EUR Iidz 1 700,00 tiikst. EUR

Laika perioda no parskata gada pedgjas dienas Iidz §i finansu parskata parakstiSanas datumam nav bijusi nekadi
citi butiski notikumi, kuru rezultata biitu javeic korekcijas vai kuri bitu Jaatspogulo $aja finansu parskata.

2017. gada 28. maija finansu parskatus Sabiedribas virda parakstija:

M{{is Kelpis ;A%Tdis jiedr nis Juriiélﬁas
Valdes prick§sédetajs Valdes loceklis, Valdeés loceklis

atbildiga persona par gada
parskata sagatavoSanu
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Mitsu atzinums ar iebildi par finan¥u parskatu

Esam veikusi pievienotaja AS SAKRET HOLDINGS (“Sabiedriba”) gada parskata ietverta finan$u
parskata, kas atspogulots no 5. 11dz 22. lapai, reviziju. Pievienotais finansu parskats ietver bilanci 2017. gada
31. decembr, pelnas vai zaud&jumu aprékinu, pasu kapitala izmainu parskatu un naudas pliismas parskatu
par 2017. gadu, ka arf finan$u parskata pielikumu, kas ietver nozimign gramatvedibas uzskaites principu
kopsavilkumu.

Muisuprat, iznemot sadala Atzinuma ar iebildi pamatojums aprakstito apstaklu iesp€jamo ietekmi,
pievienotais finan3u parskats sniedz patiesu un skaidru prieksstatu par AS SAKRET HOLDINGS finansialo
stavokli 2017. gada 31. decembri un par tas darbibas finan$u rezultatiem un naudas plismu 2017. gada
saskana ar Latvijas Republikas Gada parskatu un konsolidéto gada parskatu likumu (“Gada parskatu un
konsolidéto gada parskatu likums™).

Atzinuma ar iebildi pamatojums

Ka aprakstits finanu parskata 5., 6. un 7. pielikumos, 2017. gada 31. decembri AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
bilancé ir iek]auti nenodroginati aizdevumi radniecigajam sabiedribam un radniecigo sabiedribu paradi EUR
2 814 049 apméra (31.12.2016.: EUR 2 996 213 apméra). Revizijas laika mums nebija iespEjas iegut
pietickamus un atbilstodus revizijas pieradijumus, lai parliecinatos par mineto aktivu atgiistamibu un
noteiktu, vai ir nepiecie$ams izveidot uzkrajumus saistiba ar iesp&jamo $o0 aktivu vértibas samazina$anos.
Tadgjadi, més neizsakam savu atzinumu par Sabiedribas 2017. gada 31. decembra bilancé ieklauto minéto
aktivu vertibu.

Atbilstosi Latvijas Republikas Revizijas pakalpojumu likumam (“Revizijas pakalpojumu likums™) meés
veicam reviziju saskana ar Latvijas Republika atzitiem starptautiskajiem revizijas standartiem (turpmak-
SRS). Miisu pienakumi, kas noteikti $ajos standartos, ir turpmak aprakstiti miisu zinojuma sadala Revidenta
atbildiba par finansu parskata reviziju.

Mé&s esam neatkarigi no Sabiedribas saskana ar Starptautiskds Grimatveu &tikas standartu padomes
izstradata Profesionalu gramatvezu &tikas kodeksa (SGESP kodekss) prasibam un Revizijas pakalpojumu
likuma ieklautajam neatkaribas prasibam, kas ir piemérojamas miisu veiktajai finangu parskata revizijai
Latvijas Republika. Més esam ievérojusi arT SGESP kodeksa un Revizijas pakalpojumu likuma noteiktos
paréjos profesionalas étikas principus un objektivitates prasibas.

M@s uzskatam, ka milsu iegitie revizijas pieradijumi dod pietiekamu un atbilstodu pamatojumu miisu
atzinumam ar iebildi.

Batiska nenoteiktiba saistibd ar Sabiedribas spéju turpinat darbibu

VeérSam uzmanibu finan3u parskata 21. pielikumam, kur aprakstits, ka 2017. gada Sabiedribai bija biitisks
pamatdarbibas darfjumu apjoms ar radniecigajam sabiedribam. Bez tam, AS SAKRET HOLDINGS un tas
radniecigajam sabiedribam (“Sakret Grupa™) saistibu pret kreditiestadi termins ir 2019. gada 31. janvari,
tadgjadi, Sakret Grupas darbibas turpina$ana ir atkariga no tas spé&jas laicigi segt saistibas pret kreditiestadi,
ieverot visus kreditiestades noteiktos finan$u raditajus, ka arl nodrosinat kreditiestazu finans€jumu ilgaka
termina, ka ari no Sakret Grupas spéjas piln apméra segt saistibas pret Sabiedribu. Minétie apstakli norada
uz bitisku nenoteiktibu saistiba ar Sabiedribas sp&ju turpinat darbibu. Sis finansu parskats ir sagatavots
pamatojoties uz darbibas turpina$anas pienémumu un taja nav ieklauti nekadi labojumi, kas varétu biit
nepiecieSami, ja darbibas turpinaSanas pienémums nebiitu piemérojams. Miisu atzinums nav modificéts
attieciba uz 8o jautajumu.

'

Deloitte nozime vienu vai vairakus no sekojosiem: Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, Lielbritanijas sabiedribu ar ierobezotu atbildibu (,DTTL", tas grupas sabiedribas.un ar tam saistitas sabiedribas.
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DTTL un tas grupas sabiedribam, Iidzam apmeklet www.deloitte.com/Iv/about.
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ZinoSana par citu informaciju

Par citu informaciju atbild Sabiedribas vadiba. Citu informaciju veido Vadibas zinojums, kas ietverts
pievienota gada parskata 4. lapa.

Musu atzinums par finan$u parskatu neattiecas uz gada parskata ietverto citu informaciju, un més
nesniedzam par to nekada veida apliecinajumu, iznemot to kd noradits miisu zinojuma sadala Citas
zinosanas prasibas saskand ar Latvijas Republikas tiestbu aktu prasibam.

Saistiba ar finan$u parskata reviziju misu piendkums ir iepazities ar citu informaciju un, to darot, izveértet,
vai §1 cita informacija biitiski neatSkiras no finansu parskata informécijas vai no miisu zina$anam, kuras més
ieguvam revizijas gaitd, un vai ta nesatur cita veida bitiskas neatbilstibas.

Ja, balstoties uz veikto darbu un nemot véra revizijas laikd giitas zinas un izpratni par Sabiedribu un tas
darbibas vidi, més secinam, ka cit3 informacija ir butiskas neatbilstibas, miisu pienakums ir zinot par §adiem
apstakliem. Milsu uzmanibas loka nav nakusi apstakli, par kuriem bitu jazino.

Citas zinoSanas prasibas saskand ar Latvijas Republikas tiesibu aktu prasibam

Papildus tam, saskand ar Revizijas pakalpojumu likumu miisu pienakums ir sniegt viedokli, vai Vadibas
zinojums ir sagatavots saskand ar ta sagatavodanu reglament&jo$a normativa akta, Gada parskatu un
konsolidéto gada parskatu likuma, prasibam.

Pamatojoties vienigi uz miisu revizijas ietvaros veiktajam procediiram, misuprat:

* Vadibas zinojuma par parskata gadu, par kuru ir sagatavots finanSu parskats, sniegta informacija
atbilst finan¥u parskatam, un

® Vadibas zinojums ir sagatavots saskana ar Gada parskatu un konsolidéto gada parskatu likuma
prasibam.

Vadibas un personu, kuriam ugticata Sabiedribas parraudziba, atbildiba par finansu parskatu

Vadiba ir atbildiga par tada finansu parskata, kas sniedz patiesu un skaidru prieksstatu, sagatavosanu saskana
ar Gada parskatu un konsolidéto gada parskatu likumu, ka arT par tadas iek3&jas kontroles sistémas
uzturésanu, kada saskana ar vadibas viedokli ir nepiecieSama, lai batu iesp&jams sagatavot finangu parskatu,
kas nesatur ne krapsanas, ne kliidas dé] izraisitas biitiskas neatbilstibas.

Sagatavojot finanSu parskatu, vadibas pienakums ir izvértét Sabiedribas spéju turpindt darbibu, péc
nepiecieSamibas sniedzot informaciju par apstakliem, kas saistiti ar Sabiedribas spéju turpinat darbibu un
darbibas turpinasanas principa piemeéroSanu, ja vien vadiba neplano Sabiedribas likvidaciju vai tas darbibas
izbeiganu, vai ari tai nav citas realas alternativas ki Sabiedribas likvidacija vai darbibas izbeiggana.

Personas, kuram uzticéta Sabiedribas parraudziba, ir atbildigas par Sabiedribas finansu parskata
o sagatavoSanas procesa uzraudzibu.

Revidentu atbildiba par finansu parskata reviziju

Musu mérkis ir iegiit pietickamu parliecibu par to, ka finansu parskats kopuma nesatur kliidas vai krapsanas
de] izraisitas bitiskas neatbilstibas, un sniegt revidentu zinojumu, kura izteikts atzinums. Pietickama
parlieciba ir augsta limena parlieciba, bet ta negarant8, ka revizija, kas veikta saskana ar SRS, vienmer tiks
atklata biitiska neatbilstiba, ja tida pastiv. Neatbilstibas var rasties krap3anas vai klidas dél, un tas ir
uzskatamas par biitiskam, ja var pamatoti uzskatit, ka tas katra atseviski vai visas kopa varétu ietekmét
saimnieciskos 1émumus, ko lietotaji pienem, balstoties uz %o finansu parskatu.

Deloitte nozimé vienu vai vairakus no sekojosiem: Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, Lielbritanijas sabiedrbu ar ierobezotu atbildibu (.DTTL"), tas grupas sabiedribas un ar tam saistitas sabiedribas.
DTTL un katra no tas grupas sabiedrTbam ir juridiski nogkirta un neatkariga vieniba, DTTL nozime arf,Deloitte Global”, kuré nesniedz pakalpojumus klientiem. Lai sanemitu detalizety infarmaciju par
DTTL un tés grupas sabiedribam, IGdzam apmeklét www.deloitte.com/Iv/about.

Latvija pakalpojumus sniedz “Deloitte Audits Latvia” SIA, "Deloitte Latvia” SIA un ZAB "Deloitte Legal” (koplgi saukti “Deloitte Latvia”), kas ir Deloitte Central Eurdpe Holdings Limited meitas sabiedribas,
Deloitte Latvia ir viena rio vadosajam profesionalo pakalpojumu organizaciiam Latvija, kas sniedz audita, nodoklu, juridiskos, finandu konsultaciu un uznemuma riska onsultaciju pakalpojumus ar
vairak ka 130 vietéjo un arvalstu ekspertu palidzibu.

Sis pazinojums satur tikal visparigur informaciju, un neviens no Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, tas grupas sabiedribam, vai to saistitajiem uznémumiem (kolektivi, “Deloitte Tikis, izmantojot 3o
pazinojumu, nesniedz profesiondlas konsultacijas vai pakalpojumus. Neviens Deloitte Tikla uznemums nav atbildigs par jebkadiemn zaudejumiem, kas nodariti jebkurai personai, kas atsaucas val
palaujas uz So publikaciju.
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NEATKARIGU REVIDENTU ZINOJUMS (turpindjums)

Veicot reviziju saskana ar SRS, visa revizijas procesa gaitd més izdarim profesionalus spriedumus un
saglabajam profesionalo skepticismu. Més arf:

® identificEjam un izvért&jam riskus, ka finansu parskata varétu biit krapSanas vai kliidas dé] izraisitas
butiskas neatbilstibas, izstradajam un veicam revizijas procediiras $o risku mazinaSanai, ka arl
legustam revizijas pieradijumus, kas sniedz pietiekamu un atbilstodu pamatojumu miisu
atzinumam. Risks, ka netiks atklatas biitiskas neatbilstibas krapSanas dél, ir augstaks neka risks, ka
netiks atklatas kliidas izraisitas neatbilstibas, jo krap$ana var ietvert slepenas norunas, dokumentu
viltosanu, informacijas neuzradi§anu ar nodomu, informacijas nepatiesu atspogulo$anu vai ieksgjas
kontroles parkapumus;

® iegustam izpratni par iek3&jo kontroli, kas ir biitiska revizijas veiksanai, lai izstradatu konkrétajiem
apstakliem atbilsto3as revizijas procediiras, bet nevis, lai sniegtu atzinumu par Sabiedribas iek$€jas
kontroles efektivitati;

® izvértgjam pielietoto gramatvedibas politiku atbilstibu un gramatvedibas aplé$u un attiecigds
vadibas uzraditas informacijas pamatotibu;

® izdaram secindjumu par vadibas piemérota darbibas turpinaSanas principa atbilstibu, un,
pamatojoties uz iegiitajiem revizijas pieradijumiem, par to, vai pastav biitiska nenoteiktiba attieciba
uz notikumiem vai apstakliem, kas var radit nozimigas Saubas par Sabiedribas spé&ju turpinat
darbibu. Ja més secinam, ka biitiska nenoteiktiba pastav, revidentu zinojuma tiek vérsta uzmaniba
uz finanSu parskata sniegto informaciju par $iem apstakliem, vai, ja $ada informacija nav sniegta,
mes sniedzam modificétu atzinumu. Misu secinajumi ir pamatoti ar revizijas pieradijumiem, kas
ieguti lidz revidentu zinojuma datumam. Tomér nakotnes notikumu vai apstaklu ietekme
Sabiedriba savu darbibu var partraukt;

® izvert€jam visparéju finan$u parskata struktiru un saturu, ieskaitot atklato informaciju un
skaidrojumus pielikuma, un to, vai finansu parskats patiesi atspogulo parskata pamata eso$os
darfjumus un notikumus.

Meés sazinamies ar personam, kuram uzticéta Sabiedribas parraudziba, un, cita starpa, sniedzam informaciju
par planoto revizijas apjomu un laiku, ka ari par svarigiem revizijas noverojumiem, taja skaita par biitiskiem
iekséjas kontroles trikumiem, kadus més identificéjam revizijas laika.
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registracijas numurs: 40103251030
Adrese: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu novads, Latvija, LV-2121

VADIBAS ZINOJUMS
AS SAKRET HOLDINGS ir Sakret koncerna valdo3a Sabiedriba §adas saistitajas sabiedribas:

e SIA SAKRET (registréta Latvijas Republika, vienotais registracijas Nr. 40003622109,
juridiska adrese: ,,Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu novads, LV2121), 100% dalu,

e SIA SAKRET PLUS (registréta Latvijas Republika, vienotais registracijas Nr. 40003749392,
juridiska adrese: ,,Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu novads, LV2121), 90% dalu,

e UAB SAKRET LT (registréta Lietuvas Republika, registracijas Nr. 3005988522, juridiska
adrese: Biochemiky g. 2, LT-57234, Kédainiai, Lietuva), 100% dalu un

e OU SAKRET (registréta Igaunijas Republika, registracijas Nr. 111961147, juridiska adrese:
Mo kiila, Paide vald, 72751 Jdrvamaa, Eesti), 100% dalu.

AS SAKRET HOLDINGS nodro&ina kopgjo koncerna parvaldi un uzraudzibu, nodrofinot savam meitas
sabiedribam vadibas pakalpojumus. Sabiedriba nodro§ina Sakret uzgpémumu grupas finan$u raditaju un to
atbilstibas noslégtajiem ligumiem kontroli.

Sabiedriba un tas radniecibas Sabiedribas Baltija aktivi strdda pie sortimenta nostiprinaanas ar papildus
produktiem. Parskata perioda Sakret uzn&mumu grupas investicijas jaunu produktu izp&t€ un attistiba kopuma
bija 57,9 tikst.eiro.

2018. gadu Sabiedriba noslédza ar 137 368 EUR pelnu.

Nakotnes perspektivas

Sabiedribai un tas saistitajiem uznémumiem 2018. gada 31. decembrT bija biitiskas saistibas pret AS Luminor
Bank 17,64 milj. eiro apmera (kredits, kreditlinija). Parskata izdoSanas bridT to atmaksas termins ir 2019.gada
30.septembris. Atmaksas terming tika saskanoti pagarinats, lai Sabjedriba un tas meitas sabiedribas Iidz §1
termina beigdm nodro$inatu saskanotu, bet ne kreditsaistibu summas pilna apjoma, summu parskaitiSanu par
labu AS Luminor Bank. Ta rezultata saskana ar parakstitajam vieno$anam tiks pilniba dz&stas Sabiedribas un
tas meitas sabiedribu kreditsaistibas pret AS Luminor Bank.

Parskata paraksti¥anas bridi Sabiedribai un tas saistitajiem uznémumiem ir noslégti Iigumi ar AS BlueOrange
bank par kreditlidzeklu sanem3amu, kas tiks novirziti iepriek¥ minéto kreditsaistibu pret AS Luminor Bank
dzesanai, taja skaitd ilgtermina kredits 4,00 milj. eiro apm&ra ar terminu Iidz 2023.gada 22.augustam un
overdrafts 2,00 milj. eiro apméra ar terminu [idz 2020.gada 22.augustam. Ir notikusi 5 gadu obligaciju emisija
3,79 milj. eiro apmeéra ar dze¥anas datumu 2024.gada 30.augusts, sanemtie naudas lidzekli 3,00 milj. eiro apméra
tiks novirziti kreditsaistibu pret AS Luminor Bank dzéSanai. Vieno3anas ar AS Luminor Bank paredz, ka
sanemot 9,00 milj. eiro tiks pilniba dz&stas kredita un kreditlinijas saistibas.

Refinans&sanas procesa AS Sakret holdings tika palielinats dalu kapitals par EUR 1 015 000 Iidz EUR 1 050
000, akciondram veicot naudas ieguldfjumu.

2019. gada 30. septembrT finan§u parskatus Sabiedribas varda parakstija:

| )
/ . -t L
o \ 7
Maris Kelpis Andis iiedonis Turjs Grinvalds
Valdes priek$sedetajs Valdes loceklis Valdes loceklis



AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registracijas numurs: 40103251030
Adrese: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu novads, Latvija, LV-2121

BILANCE
2018. GADA 31. DECEMBRI

AKTIVI

Ilgtermina ieguldijumi
Pamatlidzekli
Paréjie pamatlidzekli
Kopa pamatlidzekli
Iigtermina finans§u ieguldijumi
Aizdevumi radniecigajam sabiedribam
Lidzdaliba koncerna meitas sabiedribu kapitala
Kopai ilgtermina ieguldijumi
Kopa ilgtermina ieguldijumi

Apgrozamie lidzekli

Debitori
Radniecigo sabiedribu paradi
Citi debitori
Uzkratie ienémumi
Istermina aizdevumi radniecigajam sabiedribam
Nakamo periodu izmaksas

Kopa debitori

Nauda

Kopa apgrozamie lidzekli
KOPA AKTIVI

Pielikumi

6,24(d)
7,24(e)
8,24(¢)

31.12.2018. 31.12.2017.
EUR EUR
1 883 1 089
1883 1089
2454 200 2 674 500
440 470 440 470
2 894 670 3114 970
2 896 553 3116 059
69 423 91072
28 616 30 830
394 386 -
35572 35572
8 636 158
536 633 157 632
1140 612
537773 158 244
3434 326 3274 303




AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registracijas numurs: 40103251030

Adrese: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu novads, Latvija, LV-2121

BILANCE
2018. GADA 31. DECEMBRI

PASIVS

Pasu kapitals
Pamatkapitals
Parejas rezerves
Nesadalita pelna:
a) ieprick3€jo gadu nesadalita pelna
b) parskata gada pelna
Kopi pasu kapitals

Kreditori
Iigtermina kreditori
Aiznémumi no kreditiestadem
Kopa ilgtermina kreditori

Istermina kreditori
Aiznémumi no kreditiestadem
Paradi radniecigajam sabiedribam

Paradi piegadatajiem un darbuzgémejiem
Nodokli un valsts socialas apdro$inaganas obligatas

iemaksas
Pargjie kreditori
Uzkratas saistibas
Kopa Istermina kreditori
Kopa kreditori
KOPA PASIVS

Pielikumi

10

10
11,24(f)
12

13

14,24(g)

31.12.2018. 31.12.2017.
EUR EUR
35000 35000
572 572
616 877 656 070
137 368 (39 193)
789 817 652 449
- 2229178
- 2229178
2229178 93714
202 432 121 927
32033 13 906
15191 5092
11230 6 739
154 445 151 298
2 644 509 392 676
2 644 509 2 621 854
3434326 3274 303




AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registracijas numurs: 40103251030
Adrese: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu novads, Latvija, LV-2121

PELNAS VAI ZAUDEJUMU APREKINS
PAR 2018. GADU

Neto apgrozijums
Pardotas produkcijas raZo$anas izmaksas
Bruto pelna

Administracijas izmaksas

Paréjie saimnieciskas darbibas ienémumi
Parejas saimnieciskas darbibas izmaksas
Procentu ienémumi un tamlidzigi ieneémumi
Procentu maksajumi un tamlidzigas izmaksas
Pelna/(zaudéjumi) pirms nodokliem

Uzpémumu ienakuma nodoklis
Parskata gada pelna/(zaud&jumi)

Pielikumi

15
16

17
18

24¢

2018 2017
EUR EUR

527 004 258 000
(182 694) (199 325)
344 310 58 675
(214 583) (99 453)
7 664 -
(764) (138)

70 861 76 908
(70 051) (75 185)
137437 (39 193)
(69) -

137 368 (39 193)




AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
| Registracijas numurs: 40103251030
- Adrese: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu novads, Latvija, LV-2121

PASU KAPITALA IZMAINU PARSKATS

PAR 2018. GADU

- Y Denominacijas Nesadalrta

1 Pamatkapitals rezerve pelna Kopa

EUR EUR EUR EUR

r Uz 2016. gada 31. decembri 35000 572 656 070 691 642
Parskata gada zaud&jumi - - (39 193) (39 193)
Uz 2017. gada 31. decembri 35000 572 616 877 652 449

3 Parskata gada pelna - - 137 368 137 368
Uz 2018. gada 31. decembri 35 000 572 754 245 789 817

-




AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registracijas numurs: 40103251030
Adrese: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu novads, Latvija, LV-2121

NAUDAS PLUSMAS PARSKATS
PAR 2018. GADU

Pamatdarbibas naudas plisma
Pelna/(zaudéjumi) pirms nodokliem

Korekcijas:
Pamatlidzeklu nolietojums

Procentu ienémumi

Procentu izmaksas
Pelna pirms apgrozama kapitala izmainim

Debitoru izmaina

Krajumu izmaina

Kreditoru izmaina
Pamatdarbibas naudas pliisma

Samaksatais uznémumu jenakuma nodoklis

Pamatdarbibas neto naudas plisma

Ieguldi$anas darbibas naudas pliisma

Pamatlidzeklu iegade
Ienémumi no aizdevumu atmaksas radniecigas sabiedribas
Sanemtie procenti

Ieguldi$anas darbibas neto naudas pliisma
FinanséSanas darbibas naudas plisma
Izdevumi aizneémumu atmaksasanai
Samaksatie procenti

FinanseSanas darbibas neto naudas pliisma

Naudas un tas ekvivalentu neto palielinajums
Nauda un tas ekvivalenti gada sikuma

Nauda un tas ekvivalenti gada beigis

Pielikumi

24¢

10

2018 2017
EUR EUR

137 437 (39 193)
604 99

(70 861) (76 908)
70 051 75185
137 231 (40 817)
(377 957) (52 816)
115 970 125 931
(124 756) 32298
- (16 134)

(124 756) 16 164
(1 068) (1188)
220 300 225 000
69 817 76 208
289 049 300 020
(93 714) (240 972)
(70 051) (75 285)
(163 765) (316 257)
528 (73)

612 685
1140 612




AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registracijas numurs: 40103251030
Adrese: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu novads, Latvija, LV-2121

FINANSU PARSKATU PIELIKUMI
2018, GADS

1. PAMATINFORMACIJA

AS ,Sakret Holdings” ir registréta Latvijas Republikas Uznémumu registra ka akciju sabiedriba. Sabiedribas
pamatdarbiba ir: holdingkompaniju darbiba; sauso, lietoSanai gatavo celtniecibas materialu, bavkimiju un
krasu raZo8ana un pardosana.

2. GRAMATVEDIBAS UZSKAITES UN NOVERTESANAS METODES
Visparigie principi

Sabiedribas finansu parskati sagatavoti saskana ar Latvijas Republikas likumu ,,Par gramatvedibu” un ,,Gada
parskatu un konsolidéto gada parskatu likums” prasibam.

FinanSu parskatos ietvertas summas ir ieglitas, pamatojoties uz sikotngjo izmaksu metodi. Salidzinot ar
iepriek3gjo parskata gadu, Sabiedriba lietotis uzskaites un novértésanas metodes nav mainitas.

Pelnas vai zaudgjumu aprékins sastadits atbilstosi apgrozijuma izmaksu shémai. Naudas pliismas parskats
sastadits pec netiesas metodes. Finan$u parskati ir sastaditi Latvijas nacionalaja valata EUR.

Arvalstu valitas

Finansu parskata par naudas vienibu lietota Eiropas Sabiebribas nacionalas vieniba eiro (talak teksta-“EUR”™),
kas Sabiedribas funkcionala un uzradiSanas valiita Eiropas Centralas bankas noteiktie valiitas kursi.

Debitori

Debitoru paradi bilance tiek uzraditi pec to nominalvértibas, atskaitot uzkrajumus Saubigajiem debitoru
paradiem. Sabiedriba katra parskata gada bilances datuma izvérté iesp&jamas objektivas pazimes, kas liecinitu
par to, ka pircjs vai pastitajs neieveros apmaksas noteikumus. Katrs debitors tiek analizéts individuali.
Saubigiem paradiem tiek veidoti uzkrajumi, kuru lielumu nosaka ka starpibu starp atgiistamo vértibu un
nominalvertibu.

Krajumi

Kréjumi tiek uzraditi zemakaja no iegades vai tirgus vértibas. Krajumu iegades izmaksas ietver pirksanas cenu,
ievedmuitu un citus nodoklus un nodevas, transport&$anas izmaksas, k3 ari citas tiesi attiecinamas izmaksas,
kas radusas, nogadajot krajumus to pasreizéja atrafanas vietd un stavokli. Nosakot krajumu vértibu, tiek
atskaititas tirdzniecibas atlaides, rabati un citus lidzigus postenus.

Tirgus vertiba ir parastas uznémé&jdarbibas darbibas gaita aplésta pardosanas cena, no kuras atskaititas aplestas
pabeig8anas izmaksas un nepiecie$amais pardo$anas izmaksas.

Kréjumu iegades vértibu nosaka, izmantojot ,,pirmais iek33 — pirmais ara” (FIFO) metodi.
Ja nepiecieSams, tiek izveidoti uzkrajumi novecojusiem, 1énas aprites vai bojatiem krajumiem.

Nakamo periodu izdevumi

Nakamo periodu izdevumi ir izdevumi, kas radusies parskata gada un ir samaksati, bet attiecas uz nakamiem
periodiem.

Nauda

Nauda sastav no naudas kasé un teko$o bankas kontu atlikumiem.
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registracijas numurs: 40103251030
Adrese: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu novads, Latvija, LV-2121

Lidzdaliba radniecigo sabiedribu kapitala

Teguldijumi radniecigo sabiedribu kapitala (t.i., sabiedribas, kuras Sabiedribai pieder vairak nekd 50%
pamatkapitala vai kuras ta kontrolé kada cita veida) sakotngji tiek novertéti péc to iegades vértibas. Kontrole
ir sp&ja noteikt otras sabiedribas finansu un pamatdarbibas politiku.

Pé&c sakotnéjas atziSanas visi Sabiedribas ieguldijumi ir uzraditi iegades vértiba, atskaitot uzkratos zaudgjumus
no vertibas samazinajuma. Ja kadi notikumi vai apstaklu maina liecina, ka ieguldijumu bilances vértiba varéstu
bit neatgiistama, attiecigo ieguldijumu vértiba tiek parskafita, lai noteiktu to vértibas samazinajunmu.
Zaudejumi no vértibas samazinajuma tiek atziti pelnas vai zaudgjumu aprékina.

Noma

Finan3u nomas darijumi, kuru ietvaros Sabiedribai tiek nodoti visi riski un atlidziba, kas izriet no
IpaSumtiesibam uz nomas objektu, tiek atziti bilancé ka pamatlidzekli par summu, kas, nomu uzsakot, atbilst
nomas ietvaros nomatd ipaSuma patiesajai vértibai, vai, ja ta ir mazaka, minimalo nomas maksajumu
pasreiz€jai vertibai. Finan3u nomas maksajumi tiek sadaliti starp finan$u izmaksam un saistibu samazinajumu,
lai katra perioda nodro§inatu pastavigu procentu likmi par saistibu atlikumu. Finan$u izmaksas tiek ieklautas
pelnas vai zaudgjumu aprékina ka procentu izmaksas.

Ja ir pietickams pamats uzskatit, ka nomas perioda beigas attiecigais nomas objekts paries nomnieka Ipasuma,
par paredzamo izmanto3anas laiku tiek pienemts $1 aktiva lietderigas izmanto$anas laiks. Visos citos gadijumos
kapitalizéto nomato aktivu nolietojums tiek aprékinats, izmantojot linearo metodi, apl&staja aktivu lietderigas
lietoSanas laika vai nomas perioda atkariba no ta, kurs no $iem periodiem isaks.

Aktivu noma, kuras ietvaros praktiski visus no ipaSumtiesibam izrietofos riskus uznemas un atlidzibu giist
iznomatajs, tiek klasificéta ka operativa noma. Nomas maksajumi operativas nomas ietvaros tiek uzskaititi ka
izmaksas visa nomas perioda laika. No operativas nomas ligumiem izrieto§as Sabiedribas saistibas tick
atspogulotas ka arpusbilances saistibas.

Paradi piegadatajiem un darbuznéméjiem
Paradus piegadatajiem un darbuznémejiem sakotnéji atzist to patiesaja veértiba. Kreditoru paradi tiek klasificéti

ka istermina saistibas, ja maksajuma termin$ ir viens gads vai mazak. Pretgja gadijuma tie tiek uzraditi
ilgtermina saistibu sastava.

Uzkratas saistibas neizmantotiem atvalin@jumiem

Uzkrato saistibu summa tiek noteikta, reizinot darbinieku vid&jo dienas izpelnu par periodu no jinija lidz
novembrim ar parskata gada beigas uzkrato neizmantoto atvalindjuma dienu skaitu, papildus aprekinot darba
devéja valsts socidlas apdro§inaSanas obligatas iemaksas.

Uzkrajumi
Uzkrajumi tiek atziti, kad Sabiedribai ir paSreizéjs pienakums (juridisks vai prakses radits), ko izraisijis kads

pagatnes notikums, un pastav varbitiba, ka 5o saistibu izpildei bils nepiecie$ama ekonomiskos labumus
ietveroSu resursu aizpli$ana no Sabiedribas, un saistibu apjomu iesp&jams pietiekami ticami noveértat.
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Aizdevumi un aiznemumi

Aizdevumi un aiznémumi sakotnéji tiek atspoguloti to sakotnéja vertiba, ko nosaka, aizdevuma vai aizpémuma
summas patiesajai vertibai pieskaitot ar aizdevuma izsnieg8anu saistitas vai atnemot ar aiznémuma sanemsanu
saistitas izmaksas. Aizdevumu vai aizpémumu Tstermina dala tiek atziti tie aiznémumi vai aizdevumu kuriem
atmaksat terming ir 12 ménesu laika no parskata gada belgam paréjie tiek atziti par ilgtermina dalu.

Ienémumu atziSana un neto apgrozijums

lepémumus noverte sanemtas vai sanemamas atlidzibas patiesaja veértiba, atskaitot pievienotas vértibas
nodokli. lenémumi tiek samazinati par paredzamo predu atpakalatdoSanu, pardoSanas atlaidém un
tamlidzigiem posteniem.

Pakalpojumu sniegSana
Ja var ticami aplést tada darfjuma iznakumu, kas saistits ar pakalpojumu snieganu, ar darfjumu saistitos
ien@mumus atzist, pemot véra to, kada izpildes pakapé bilances datuma atrodas darfjums. Darfjuma iznakumu
var ticami apl@st, ja tick ievéroti visi $adi nosactjumi:
®  var ticami novertst ienfmumu summu;
e irticams, ka Sabiedriba iepliidis ar darfjumu saistitie saimnieciskie labumi;
®  var ticami novertét, kada izpildes pakapé bilances datuma atrodas darijums; un
var ticami novertét radusas darfjuma izmaksas un izmaksas, kas nepiecieSamas darijuma
pabeig8anai.

Ienemumi no sanemtam dividendéem

Ienemumus noverté sanemtas vai sanemamas atlidzibas patiesaja vértiba, uz periodu uz kuru tie attiecas un
uzraditi posteni “Pargjie saimnieciskas darbibas ienémum”.

Finansu ienemumi

Ienémumi, kas saistiti ar alzdevumlem tiek atziti perioda, uz kuru tie attiecas un uzraditi posteni “Procentu
ien€émumi un tamlidzigi ienémumi”

Finans$u izdevumi

Izmaksas, kas saistitas ar aiznémumiem, tiek norakstitas uz izdevumiem perioda, uz kuru tas attiecas un
uzraditas posteni “Procentu maksajumi un tamlidzigas izmaksas”.

Uzneémumu ienakuma nodoklis

Parskata gada uznémumu ienakuma nodokla izmaksas ir ieklautas finansu parskata, pamatojoties uz vadibas
veiktajiem aprekiniem saskana ar Latvijas Republikas normativajiem aktiem.

Sakot ar 2018. taksacijas gadu, uznémumu jienakuma nodoklis tiks aprékinats par sadalito pelnu (20/80 no neto
summas, kas izmaksajama dal'bmeklem) Uznémuma nodoklis par sadalito pelnu tiks atzits bridi, kad
Sabiedribas dalibnieki pienems lémumu par pelnas sadali. Uznémuma ienakuma nodoklis ir arf maksajams par
pelnas sadalei pielidzinamiem izdevumiem, ka pieméram, ar saimniecisko darbibu nesaistiti izdevumi, nedrogi
debitoru paradi, palielinati procentu maksdjumi, aizdevumi saistitai personai, transfertcenu starpiba

Saistitas un radniecigas puses
Par saistitim pusém tiek uzskafiti Sabiedribas dalibnieki, valdes locekli, vinu tuvi gimenes locekli un
sabiedribas, kuras minetajam personam ir kontrole vai biitiska ietekme un Sabiedribas grupa ietilpstosas

sabiedribas. Radniecigas sabiedribas ir mates un meitas uznémumi.

Novertéjumu pielietoSana
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Latvijas likumdoSanas prasibas nosaka, ka, sagatavojot finanSu parskatus, Sabiedribas vadiba noverté un izdara
pien€émumus, kas ietekmé& parskatos un arpusbilancé uzraditos aktivus un pasivas uz finanSu parskatu
sagatavoSanas dienu, ka arl uzraditos parskata perioda ienémumus un izdevumus. Faktiskie rezultati var
atSkirties no §im aplésém.

Biitiskakie piepémumi un nozimigakas apléses par nakotni un citas neskaidribas, kas cksisté bilances datuma
un kas rada risku, ka, iesp&jams, bils biitiski jakorig€ aktivu un pasivu vértiba nakamajos parskata gados:

® Sabiedriba izvérté debitoru paradus un noverté to atglistamibu, nepiecieSamibas gadijuma veidojot
uzkrajumus $aubigiem debitoru paradiem. Sabiedribas vadiba ir izvértéjusi debitoru paridus un
uzskata, ka nav nepiecieSams veidot papildus uzkrajumus 2018. gada 31. decembri.

»  Sabiedriba izvértg izsniegtos aizdevumus un noverte to atglistamibu. Sabiedribas vadiba ir izvert&jusi
aizdevumu atgiistamibu un uzskata, ka nav nepiecieSams veidot uzkrajumus uz 2018. gada
31. decembri.

e  Sabiedriba izvert€ savu spgju turpinat darbibu nakotné. Skatit 22. pielikumu.
Sabiedribas vadiba izverte ieguldijumu radniecigo sabiedribu kapitala uzskaites vertibu un noverts,
vai pastav kadas pazimes, kas norada, ka mingto aktivu atgiistama summa ir zemaka neka to uzskaites
verttba. Sabiedribas vadiba aprékina un atzist zaud&umus no ieguldijumu radniecigo sabiedribu
kapitala vertibas samazinajuma, pamatojoties uz aplésém par to nakotnes atdevi. Sabiedribas vadiba
uzskata, ka bitiskas ieguldfjumu radniecigo sabiedribu kapitala vertibas korekcijas 2018. gada
31. decembrT nav nepiecieSamas.
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3. PAMATLIDZEKLI

Iekiirtas un Kopa

masinas
EUR EUR
Uz 2017. gada 31. decembri 1188 1188
Iegadats 1398 1398
Uz 2018. gada 31. decembri 2 586 2 586
Uz 2017. gada 31. decembri 99 99
Aprékinats 604 604
Uz 2018. gada 31. decembri 703 703
Uz 2017. gada 31. decembri 1089 1089
Uz 2018. gada 31. decembri 1883 1883

Informacija par Sabiedribas iekilatiem aktiviem sniegta 23. pielikuma.

4. LIDZDALIBA KONCERNA MEITAS SABIEDRIBU KAPITALA

Radnieciga Lidzdalibas dala Ieguldijums Ieguldijums
sabiedriba EUR EUR
31.12.2018. 31.12.2017. 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
% %
SIA SAKRET 100% 100% 142 142
SIA SAKRET PLUS 90% 90% 128 128
UAB SAKRET LT 100% 100% 100 100
OU SAKRET 100% 100% 440,100 440,100
Kopa 440,470 440,470

Radniecigo sabiedribu juridiskas adreses un uznéméjdarbibas veidi:

Radnieciga sabiedriba Informacija Uznemej-
darbibas
veids NACE
SIA SAKRET registréta Latvijas Republika, vienotais registracijas Nr. 2364

40003622109, juridiska adrese: ,,Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu
novads, LV2121
SIA SAKRET PLUS registréta Latvijas Republika, vienotais registracijas Nr. 2030
40003749392, juridiska adrese: ,,Ritvari”’, Rumbula, Stopinu
novads, LV2121

UAB SAKRET LT registréta Lietuvas Republika, registracijas Nr. 3005988522, 2364
juridiska adrese: Biochemiky g. 2, LT-57234, Kédainiai,
Lietuva

OU SAKRET registréta Igaunijas Republika, registracijas Nr. 111961147, 2364

Jjuridiska adrese: Mo kiila, Paide vald, 72751 Jarvamaa, Eesti

14




AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registracijas namars: 40103251030
Adrese: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu novads, Latvija, LV-2121

Radniecigo sabiedribu nerevidétie finansu raditaji:

Pasu kapitals Parskata gada pelna/
(zaudéjumi)
Radnieciga sabiedriba 31.12.2018. 31.12.2017. 31.12.2018. 31.12.2017.
EUR EUR EUR EUR
nerevidétie revidétie Nerevidétie revidétie
SIA SAKRET (1005 107) (1055 958) 50 851 (476 047)
SIA SAKRET PLUS 1949 289 1774 496 174 793 185 065
UAB SAKRET LT (6 317 744) (6 059 551) (258 193) (136 267)
OU SAKRET (2916 866) (3 145 878) 229012 194 288
(8 290 428) (8 486 891) 196 463 (232 961)
5. AIZDEVUMI RADNIECIGAJAM SABIEDRIBAM
Iigtermina: Liguma numurs Spéka esosa Atmaksas 31.12.2018. 31.12.2017.
un valita procentu termins
likme (%) EUR EUR
SIA SAKRET Nr. FC/13-001, 3 mén.
EUR Euribor + 3% 31.12.2020 2 454 200 2 674 500
Kopa ilgtermina aizdevumi 2 454 200 2 674 500
fstermit)za: Liguma Spékd esosa Atmaksas 31.12.2018. 31.12.2017,
numurs un procentu termin§
valiita likme (%) EUR EUR
,.Maris un Partneri” Nr.1, EUR
SIA 3.5% 31.12.2019 35572 35572
Kopa Istermina aizdevumi 35572 35572
Aizdevumi ir bez nodro$injuma.
6. RADNIECIGO SABIEDRIBU PARADI
31.12.2018. 31.12.2017.
EUR EUR
Par sniegtajiem pakalpojumiem vietéja tirgii 47 423 77572
Eiropas Savienibas (ES) ietvaros, tai skaita,
Igaunija 13 500 13 500
Lietuva 8 500 -
Kopa (24d piezime) 69 423 91072
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7. CITIDEBITORI

31.12.2018. 31.12.2017.
EUR EUR
Nodoklu parmaksa (13.pielikums) 13114 12910
Uzkratie procenti par aizdevumu ,Maris un Partneri” SIA (24e 8 057 6812
piezime)
Uzkratie procenti par aizdevumu SIA SAKRET (24e piezime) 5619 6 093
Samaksats avanss par pakalpojumiem - 2900
Citi 1826 2115
Kopa 28 616 30 830
8. UZKRATIE IENEMUMI
31.12.2018. 31.12.2017.
EUR EUR
OU SAKRET (transferta cenu korekcija) 204 445 -
UAB SAKRET LT (transferta cenu korekcija) 189 941 -
Kopa (24e piezime) 394 386 -

9. PAMATKAPITALS

2018. gada 31. decembrT un 2017. gada 31. decembri registrétais un pilniba apmaksatais pamatkapitals sastav
no 25 000 dalam ar nominalvértibu EUR 1,4 katra. Sabiedribas pamatkapitals sastada EUR 35 000. 2014. gada
veiktas denominacijas rezultata radies pamatkapitala samazinajums EUR 572 apmeéra ir uzradits Sabiedribas
pasu kapitala postent “Paréjas rezerves”.

Lidz parskata parakstiSanas bridim AS Sakret holdings tika palielinats dalu kapitils par EUR 1 015 000 lidz

EUR 1 050 000, akcionaram veicot naudas ieguldijumu.

10. AIZNEMUMI NO KREDITIESTADEM

Iigtermina dala: Liguma numurs Spéka esoda Atmalfsazs Atlikust Atlikust
un valiita l_”‘oce'lot" fermip§  pamatsumma pamatsumma
likme (%) 31.12.2018. 31.12.2017.
EUR EUR
AS ,Luminor Bank” . 34/13K23, 3 mén. Euribor
aizne s +3%
(atzpémums) EUR 30.09.2019 - 2229178
Kopi ilgtermina aiznémumi no kreditiestadém - 2229178
Istermina dala: Liguma numurs Speka esosa Atmalfscfs Atlikust Atlikust
un valiita ;?rocenotu termins pamatsumma pamatsumma
likme (7%) 31.12.2018. 31.12.2017.
EUR EUR
AS ,Luminor Bank” . 34/13K23, 3 mén. Buribor
aiznémums +3%
(aizg ) EUR 30.09.2019 2229178 93714
Kopi istermina aizpémumi no kreditiestadém 2229178 93 714

Sabiedribai un tas saistitajiem uzneémumiem 2018. gada 31. decembri bija biitiskas saistibas pret AS Luminor
Bank 17,64 milj. eiro apmera (kredits, kreditlinija). Parskata izdo$anas bridi noteikts to atmaksas termins 2019.
gada 30. septembris. Atmaksas termin3 tika saskanoti pagarinats, lai Sabiedriba un tas meitas sabiedribas lidz
81 termina beigam nodroSinatu saskanotu, bet ne kreditsaistibu summas pilna apjoma, summu parskaiti$anu par
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labu AS Luminor Bank. Ta rezultata saskana ar parakstitajam vienoSanam tiks pilniba dzestas Sabiedribas un
tas meitas sabiedribu kreditsaistibas pret AS Luminor Bank.

Parskata parakstiSanas bridi Sabiedribai un tas saistitajiem uznémumiem ir noslégti ligumi ar AS BlueOrange
bank par kreditlidzeklu sanemsanu, kas tiks novirziti iepriek§ minéto kreditsaistibu pret AS Luminor Bank
dz&8anai, taja skaita ilgtermina kredits 4,00 milj. eiro apméra ar terminu lidz 2023.gada 22.augustam un
overdrafts 2,00 milj. eiro apmera ar terminu lidz 2020.gada 22.augustam. Ir notikusi 5 gadu obligaciju emisija
3,79 mil;. eiro apmera ar dzeanas datumu 2024.gada 30.augusts, sanemtie naudas lidzekli 3,00 milj. eiro
apmera tiks novirziti kreditsaistibu pret AS Luminor Bank dz&$anai. Vienosanas ar AS Luminor Bank paredz,
ka sanemot 9,00 milj. eiro tiks pilniba dzéstas kredita un kreditlinijas saistibas.

11. PARADI RADNIECIGAJAM SABIEDRIBAM

31.12.2018. 31.12.2017.
EUR EUR
Par pre€u piegadém un pakalpojumiem:
viet€ja. tirgii 202 432 120 740
ES ietvaros, tai skaita:
No Lietuvas - 1187
Kopa (24f piezime) 202 432 121 927
12. PARADI PIEGADATAJIEM UN DARBUZNEMEJIEM
31.12.2018. 31.12.2017.
EUR EUR
Par precu piegddém un pakalpojumiem:
vietgja tirgl 32033 13 906
ES ietvaros, tai skaita: - -
Kopa 32033 13 906

13. NODOKLI UN VALSTS SOCIALAS APDROSINASANAS OBLIGATAS IEMAKSAS

31.12.2018. 31.12.2017.
. EUR EUR

Uzpemumu ienakuma nodoklis 6384 12910
Socialas apdro$inasanas obligatas iemaksas (9 660) (2927)
Iedzivotaju iengkuma nodoklis (5 526) (1728)
Pievienotas vértibas nodoklis 6730 (432)
Uznémejdarbibas riska valsts nodeva (5) (5)
Parmaksa (7. piezime) 13114 12 910
Parads (15 191) (5092)
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14. UZKRATAS SAISTIBAS

31.12.2018. 31.12.2017.
EUR EUR
SIA SAKRET (transferta cenu korekcija) 24g piezime 52 581 -
SIA SAKRET PLUS (transferta cenu korekcija) 24g piezime 30973 -
UAB SAKRET LT (transferta cenu korekcija) 24g piezime 25699
OU SAKRET (transferta cenu korekcija) 24g piezime 16 129 -
Izdevumi, par kuriem rékini sanemti nakoSaja finansu gada 13 665 7936
Neizmantotie darbinieku atvalinajumi 8247 2291
Izdevumi, par kuriem rékini sanemti nako3aja finanSu gada no SIA SAKRET 7 151 75 500
24g piezime
Izdevumi, par kuriem rékini sanemti nakosaja finandu gada no OU SAKRET - 37 063
24g piezime
Izdevumi, par kuriem rékini sanemti nakosaja finansu gada no SIA SAKRET -
PLUS 24g piezime 8 820
Izdevumi, par kuriem rékini sanemti nako$aja finanSu gada no UAB SAKRET -
LT 24g piezime 19 688
Kopa 154 445 151 298
15.NETO APGROZIJUMS
2018 2017
EUR EUR
Ienakumi no pakalpojumu snieganas 527 004 258 000
Kopa 527 004 258 000
16. PARDOTAS PRODUKCIJAS RAZOSANAS IZMAKSAS
2018 2017
EUR EUR
Atlidziba par darbu 102 100 43 994
Produktu izpétes izmaksas 43116 141 070
Valsts socialas apdro§inaSanas obligatas iemaksas un uznémeéjdarbibas
riska nodeva 24 625 10 294
Nekustama 1paSuma noma 2952 523
Nolietojums 604 99
Paréjas izmaksas 9297 3343
Kopa 182 694 199 325
17. ADMINISTRACIJAS IZMAKSAS
2018 2017
EUR EUR
Atlidziba par darbu 75 258 25419
Biznesa konsultaciju pakalpojumi 74 850 5500
Juristu pakalpojumi 25195 33650
Valsts socialds apdro$inaSanas obligatas iemaksas un uzgémeéjdarbibas
riska nodeva 18 165 6 027
Vadibas pakalpojumi - 21240
Pargjas izmaksas 21 115 7617
Kopa 214 583 99 453
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18. PAREJIE SAIMNIECISKAS DARBIBAS IENEMUMI

2018 2017
EUR EUR
Sanemts atbalsta finansejums 7 664 -
Kopa 7 664 -
19. SABIEDRIBA NODARBINATO PERSONU VIDEJAIS SKAITS
2018 2017
Vidé&jais Sabiedriba nodarbinato personu skaits parskata gada
13 13
20. VADIBAS UN VALDES ATALGOJUMS
2018 2017
EUR EUR
- darba samaksa 14 180 11 471
- valsts socialas apdro§inaSanas obligatas iemaksas 3 429 2719
Kopa 17 609 14 190

21. FINANSU RISKU VADIBA

Sabiedribas nozimigakie finansu instrumenti ir aizn&mumi no kreditiestadém un nauda. So finan3u instrumentu
galvenais uzdevums ir nodro§inat Sabiedribas saimnieciskas darbibas finansejumu. Sabiedriba izmanto ari
citus finan$u instrumentus, pieméram — aizdevumi radniecigajam sabiebribam, pirc€ju un pasutitaju paradi un
citi debitori, paradi piegadatajiem un darbuznémeéjiem un paré€jie kreditori, kas izriet tie$i no saimnieciskas
darbibas.

Valatas risks

Sabiedriba galvenokart veic dartfjumus eiro. Ta ka sakot ar 2014. gada 1. janvari Latvijas nacionala valiita ir
eiro, tad §is netiek uzskatits par butisku risku.

Procentu likmju risks

Sabiedriba ir paklauta procentu likmju riskam galvenokart saistiba ar tas bankas aiznémumu.

Likviditates risks

Likviditates risks ir risks, ka Sabiedriba nebiis spé&jiga savlaicigi un pilna apmeéra nodro§inat savu saistibu
izpildi. Sabiedribas likviditates riska parvaldibas merkis ir uzturét atbilsto$u naudas un tas ekvivalentu
daudzumu un nodro§inat atbilsto$u finans€juma pietickamibu, izmantojot banku pieskirtos aizneémumus (skatit
10. pielikumu), lai Sabiedriba spétu pildit savas saistibas noteiktajos terminos. Sabiedriba regulari izvérté
finan$u aktivu un pasivu terminu saskanotibu, ka arf ilgtermina ieguldijumu finans€juma avotu stabilitati.
Likviditates parvaldi$anai katru ménesi p&c iepriek3€ja ménesa faktisko rezultatu sanemsSanas tiek sagatavota
operativa naudas plismas prognoze. Sabiedribas vadiba uzskata, ka Sabiedribai bus pietiekami naudas resursi,
lai tas likviditate nebiitu apdraudeéta.

Sabiedribas turpmaka likviditate bus arf atkariga no radniecigo sabiedribu sp&jas laicigi segt savas tekosas
saistibas un kreditsaistibas, ka arl sp€jas laicigi un pilna apmeéra segt saistibas pret banku (skatit ari
22. pielikumuy).

22. DARBIBAS TURPINASANAS PRINCIPS

Sabiedriba ir vienigais dalibnieks ar 100% kapitala dalu saistitajam sabiedribam SIA SAKRET (registréta
Latvijas Republika), OU SAKRET (registréta Igaunijas Republika) un UAB SAKRET LT (registréta Lietuvas
Republika) un STA SAKRET PLUS (registréta Latvijas Republikd) kontrol€joSais dalibnieks ar 90% dalu —
turpmak teksta ,,Sakret Grupa”.

Sabiedribai ir noslégts aizdevuma ligums ar meitas sabiedribu SIA SAKRET 3 000 000 EUR apmera (skatit

5. pielikumu), aizdevuma atlikums uz 31.12.2018. ir 2 454 200 EUR. Aizpnémuma ligums ar AS Luminor
Bank 3 000 000 EUR apméra, aiznémuma atlikums 2 229 178 EUR (skatit 10. pielikumu).

19




AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registracijas numurs: 40103251030
Adrese: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu novads, Latvija, LV-2121

2018. gada 31. decembri Sakret Grupai bija biitiskas saistibas pret AS Luminor Bank EUR 17 641 137 apméra
(kredits, kreditlinija). Parskata izdo$anas bridi to atmaksas termin$ ir 2019.gada 30.septembris. Atmaksas
termin$ tika saskanoti pagarinats, lai Sakret Grupa lidz §1 termina beigam nodroSinatu saskanotu, bet ne
kreditsaistibu summas pilna apjoma, summu parskaitifanu par labu AS Luminor Bank. T2 rezultata saskana ar
parakstitajam vienoS$anam tiks pilniba dzéstas Sabiedribas un tas meitas sabiedribu kreditsaistibas pret AS
Luminor Bank.

Parskata parakstiSanas bridi Sakret Grupas Sabiedribam ir noslégti ligumi ar AS BlueOrange bank par
kreditlidzek]u sanem8amu, kas tiks novirziti iepriek§ minéto kreditsaistibu pret AS Luminor Bank dz&3anai,
taja skaita ilgtermiga kredits EUR 4 000 000 apmeéra ar terminu lidz 2023.gada 22.augustam un overdrafts
EUR 2 000 000 apmera ar terminu lidz 2020.gada 22.augustam. Ir notikusi 5 gadu obligaciju emisija EUR
3 790 000 apmera ar dzéSanas datumu 2024.gada 30.augusts, sanemtie naudas lidzek]i EUR 3 000 000 apmeéra
tiks novirziti kreditsaistibu pret AS Luminor Bank dz&$anai. Vieno8anas ar AS Luminor Bank paredz, ka
sanemot EUR 9 000 000 tiks pilniba dzéstas kredita un kreditlinijas saistibas.

So finanu parskatu izdoSanas bridi vienoanas izpilde par saistibu dzeSanu pret AS Luminor Bank un saistibu
refinansé3anu cita kreditiestade saskana ar noslégtajiem ligumiem ir izpildes procesa un to ir planots pabeigt
lidz 2019. gada oktobra beigam.

Saistibas par faktoriz€tajiem klientu rékiniem (liguma limita Iidz EUR 1 700 000) tiks dzestas, sanemot
apmaksu no klientiem saskana ar rékinos noteiktajiem terminiem. Apgrozamo lidzeklu finanséSanai Sakret
Grupas Sabiedribam ir noslégti ligumi ar AS BlueOrange bank par kreditliniju ar kopgjo limitu EUR 1 700 000
apmeéra ar terminu lidz 2021.gada 22 februarim.

RefinanseSanas procesa AS Sakret holdings tika palielinats dalu kapitals par EUR 1015 000 lidz EUR
1 050 000, akcionaram veicot naudas ieguldijumu.

Sie finansu parskati tika sagatavoti, ievérojot darbibas turpina$anas principu, un $ajos finansu parskatos nav
ieklauti nekadi labojumi, kas varétu biit nepiecie$ami, ja darbibas turpina$anas princips nebiitu piemérojams.

23. IZSNIEGTAS GARANTIJAS

Visas Sabiedribas akcijas un manta ir iekilata par labu AS Luminor Banka (turpmak — ,Banka”) ka
nodro$inajums kreditam. Kop€ja Sakret Grupas aizn€muma nodro$inajuma summa par labu AS DNB Banka
ir EUR 29 880 308. Kredits izsniegts ilgtermina ieguldijumu finanséSanai, kreditlinija — apgrozamo lidzeklu
finanse§anai.

Aizpémuma ligums, kas noslégts starp Sakret Grupas sabiedribam un Banku nosaka, ka, ja kads no
kreditnéméjiem péc liguma noradito terminu notecéjuma neatmaksa Bankai izsniegto kredita dalu vai jebkadu
tas dalu, nesamaksa attiecigos Bankai pienakoSos procentus vai ligumsodu, vai arl nenodro3ina paréjos no
liguma izrieto$os Bankas prasfjumus, tad visi pargjie kreditnémeéji nekavéjosi sedz visus Bankas prasijumus
pilna apmeéra.

Sabiedribas vadiba apliecina, ka uz §1 finan$u parskata paraksti$anas bridi visi aiznémuma liguma minétie
kreditnéméji ir izpildijusi pilna apméra visus Bankas nosacijumus un 2018. gada 31. decembri nav javeido
papildus uzkrajumi iespgjamam saistibam, kas varétu rasties no aiznémuma liguma nosacijumu nepildiSanas.
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24. DARIJUMI AR RADNIECIGAM SABIEDRIBAM

(a) Precu pardoS$ana un pakalpojumu snieg§ana

SIA SAKRET

UAB SAKRET LT
OU SAKRET

SIA SAKRET PLUS
Kopa

(b) Prefu iegiide un pakalpojumu sanemsana

SIA SAKRET

OU SAKRET

UAB SAKRET LT
SIA SAKRET PLUS
Kopa

(¢) Procentu ienémumi no aizdevumiem

SIA SAKRET
,,Maris un Partneri” SIA
Kopa

(d) Radniecigo sabiedribu paradi

SIA SAKRET PLUS
OU SAKRET

SIA SAKRET

UAB SAKRET LT
Kopa (6. piezime)

(e) Citi debitori, kas radusSies no darfjjumiem ar radniecigam sabiedribam

OU SAKRET (transferta cenu korekcija) 8. piezime

UAB SAKRET LT (transferta cenu korekcija) 8. piezime

Uzkratie procenti par aizdevumu , Maris un Partneri” SIA 7. piezime
Uzkratie procenti par aizdevumu SIA SAKRET 8. piezime

Kopa
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2018 2017
EUR EUR
103 874 102 000
66 000 66 000
54 000 54 000
36 000 36 000
259 874 258 000
2018 2017
EUR EUR
100 799 695
38 563 -
27 688 -
12 285 -
179 335 695
2018 2017
EUR EUR
69 616 75 663
1245 1245
70 861 76 908
31.12.2018. 31.12.2017.
EUR EUR
35610 68 170
13 500 13 500
11 813 9402
8 500 ;
69 423 91072
31.12.2018. 31.12.2017.
EUR EUR
204 445 -
189 941 -
8057 6812
5619 6093
408 062 12 905
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(f) Paradi radniecigajam sabiedribam

31.12.2018. 31.12.2017.

EUR EUR
SIA SAKRET 202 432 120 740
UAB SAKRET LT - 1187
Kopa (11. piezime) 202 432 121 927

(g) Citi kreditori, kas radusSies no darfjjumiem ar radniecigam sabiedribam

31.12.2018. 31.12.2017.
EUR EUR

SIA SAKRET (transferta cenu korekcija) 52 581 -
SIA SAKRET PLUS (transferta cenu korekcija) 30973 -
UAB SAKRET LT (transferta cenu korekcija) 25699
OU SAKRET (transferta cenu korekcija) 16 129 -
Izdevumi, par kuriem rékini sanemti nakosaja finanju gada no SIA 7 151 75500
SAKRET
Izdevumi, par kuriem r&kini sanemti nako$aja finansu gada no OU - 37063
SAKRET
[zdevumi, par kuriem rékini sanemti nako3aja finansu gada no SIA -
SAKRET PLUS 8 820
Izdevumi, par kuriem rékini sanemti nako$aja finan¥u gada no UAB -
SAKRET LT 19 688
Kopa (14. piezime) 132 533 141 071

25.NOTIKUMI PEC PARSKATA GADA BEIGAM
Skat 9., 10. un 22. pielikumu.

Laika posma no parskata gada p&dgjas dienas Iidz §T finan3u parskata parakstiSanas datumam nav bijusi nekadi
citi batiski notikumi, kuru rezultata batu javeic korekcijas vai kuri biitu jaatspogulo $aja finansu parskata.

2019. gada 30. septembrT finan$u pa‘trskatrs Sabiedribas varda parakstija:

B , . | - /;/// — &

Marfs Kelpis Andis Ziedonis / Hris Grinvalds 3rkane
Valdes Valdes'loceklis / Valdes loceklis G #gramatvede,

priek3sedetajs 1ga persona par

finan$u parskata
sastadianu
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NEATKARIGU REVIDENTU ZINOJUMS
AS SAKRET HOLDINGS dalibniekam:

Miisu atzinums ar iebildi par finansu parskatu

Esam veikui pievienotaja AS SAKRET HOLDINGS (*“Sabiedriba”) gada parskatd ietverta finansu parskata, kas
atspogulots no 5. lidz 22. lapai, reviziju. Pievienotais finan$u parskats ietver bilanci 2018. gada 31. decembri, pelnas
vai zaud&jumu aprekinu, pa$u kapitala izmainu parskatu un naudas plismas parskatu par 2018. gadu, ka ar1 finansu
pérskata pielikumu, kas ietver nozimigu gramatvedibas uzskaites principu kopsavilkumu.

Musuprat, iznemot sadala Atzinuma ar iebildi pamatojums aprakstito apstaklu iespejamo ietekmi, pievienotais finansu
parskats sniedz patiesu un skaidru prieksstatu par AS SAKRET HOLDINGS finansialo stavokli 2018. gada 31. decembrT
un par tés darbibas finansu rezultatiem un naudas plismu 2018. gada saskana ar Latvijas Republikas Gada parskatu un
konsolidéto gada parskatu likumu (“Gada parskatu un konsolidéto gada parskatu likums™).

Atzinuma ar iebildi pamatojums

Ka aprakstits finansu parskata 5., 6. un 7. pielikumos, 2018. gada 31. decembri AS SAKRET HOLDINGS bilancé ir
ieklauti nenodroginati aizdevumi radniecigajam sabiedribdm un radniecigo sabiedribu paradi EUR 2 918 009 apméra
(31.12.2017.: EUR 2 814 049 apméra). Revizijas laikd mums nebija iespéjas iegiit pietickamus un atbilstosus revizijas
pieradijumus, lai parliecinatos par minéto aktivu atgiistamibu un noteiktu, vai ir nepiecieSams izveidot uzkrajumus
saistiba ar iesp&jamo So aktivu vertibas samazinasanos. Tad&jadi, mes neizsakam savu atzinumu par Sabiedribas 2018.
gada 31. decembra bilanc€ ieklauto minéto aktivu vértibu.

Atbilstosi Latvijas Republikas Revizijas pakalpojumu likumam (“Revizijas pakalpojumu likums”) més veicam reviziju
saskana ar Latvijas Republika atzitiem starptautiskajiem revizijas standartiem (turpmak- SRS). Misu pienakumi, kas
noteikti $ajos standartos, ir turpmak aprakstiti milsu zinojuma sadala Revidenta atbildiba par finansu parskata reviziju.

Mes esam neatkarigi no Sabiedribas saskana ar Starptautiskas Gramatvezu &tikas standartu padomes izstradata
Profesionalu gramatvezu étikas kodeksa (SGESP kodekss) prasibam un Revizijas pakalpojumu likuma ieklautajam
neatkaribas prasibam, kas ir piemérojamas miisu veiktajai finansu parskata revizijai Latvijas Republika. Més esam
ieverojusi ar1 SGESP kodeksa un Revizijas pakalpojumu likumi noteiktos pargjos profesionalas etikas principus un
objektivitates prasibas.

Mes uzskatam, ka miisu iegatie revizijas pierddijumi dod pietickamu un atbilstosu pamatojumu misu atzinumam ar
iebildi.

Galvenie revizijas jautajumi

Galvenie revizijas jautajumi ir tadi jautajumi, kas, pamatojoties uz miisu profesionalo spriedumu, parskata gada finanu
parskatu revizija bija visnozimigakie. Sie jautajumi kopuma tika apskatiti finansu parskatu revizijas konteksta, ka ar
sagatavojot atzinumu par Siem finan3u parskatiem, tapéc atsevisku atzinumu par Siem jautajumiem meés neizsakam.

Mes esam noteikusi zemak minéto jautajumu ka galveno revizijas jautajumu, par kuru ir jasniedz informacija musu
zinojuma.

Deloitte nozime vienu vai vairakus no sekojosiem: Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, Lielbritanijas sabiedribu ar ierobezotu atbildibu (,DTTL", tas grupas sabiedribas un ar tam saistitas sabiedribas.
DTTL un katra no tas gtl;ppas sabiedribam ir juridiski no3kirta un neatkariga vieniba. OTTL nozimé ari ,Deloitte Global”, kuré nesniedz pakalpojumus Klientiem. Lai sanemtu detalizétu informaciju par
DTTL un tas grupas sabiedribam, lodzam apmeklet www.deloitte.com/iv/about.

Latvifa pakalpojumus sniedz "Deloitte Audits Latvia” SIA, "Deloitte Latvia” SIA un ZAB “Deloitte Legal” (kopTgi saukt! “Deloitte Latvia), kas Ir Deloitte Central Europe Holdings Limited meitas sabiedribas,
Deloitte Latvia ir viena no vadosajam profesionalo pakalpojumu organizacijam Latvija, kas sniedz audita, nodoklu, juridiskos, finansu kensultaciju un uznemuma riska onsultaciju pakalpojumus.ar
vairak ka 150 viet&jo un arvaistu ekspertu palidzibu.

Sis pazinojums satur tikai visparigu informaciju, un neviens no Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, tas grupas sabiedribam, vai to saistitajiem uznemumiem (kolektivi, “Deloitte Tikis"), izmantojat 2o
pazinojumu, nesniedz profesiondlas konsultacijas vai pakalpejumus. Neviens Deloitte Tikla uznémums nav atbildigs par jebkadiem zaudgjumiem, kas nodarfti jebkurai personai, kas atsaucas vai
palaujas uz 5o publikaciju.
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Galvenais revizijas jautajums l Ka §is jautdjums tika izskatits revizija

Darbibas turpina$anas princips
Ka aprakstits finanSu parskata 22. pielikuma Sabiedriba ir Més izvertgjam faktus par notikumiem un
holdinga kompanija un vienigais dalibnieks SIA Sakret, Sakret apstakliem, kas vargtu radit 3aubas par Sabiedribas
OU, Sakret UAB un 90% kapitildalu Tpagnieks Sakret Plus SIA sp&ju turpinat darbibu.

(“Koncerns™).

2018. gada 31. decembri Koncernam bija negativs paSu kapitals | Més san€émam un izvert€jam vadibas planus par
7977 858 EUR apméra, un ta Istermipa saistibas parsniedza ta | finansu resursu pieejamibu.
apgrozamos Iidzeklus par EUR 18 274 874, kas, galvenokart,
saistits ar kreditsaistibu pret AS Luminor banka 17 641 137
EUR apmera ar atmaksas terminu 2019. gada 30. septembris
klasifikaciju Istermina saistibu sastava.

Meés izskatTjam juridisko dokumentaciju, kas saistita
ar refinansé8anas vieno$anos un aiznémuma saistibu
nokartofanu ar AS Luminor Banka, ieskaitot
Uz So finanSu parskatu izdo¥anas bridi tiek noslégts ngun'K.)s ietverto darijuma pabeigSanas nosacfjumu
kreditsaistibu refinans€Sanas process. Ir nodroSinats citas | analizi.

kreditiestades finans&jums un tiek veikts kreditsaistibu dzésanas
process ar AS Luminor banka. Procesa rezultdta aiznémumu | pMas analiz&jam vadibas sagatavotas naudas plismas
saistibas pret AS Luminor banka tiks dzéstas, veicot norékinu prognozes saistibd ar Sabiedribas sp&ju generdt
par 9 milj. EUR un Koncernam biis pieejams jauns ilgtermina pietiekamas nakotnes naudas pliismas.

finans&ums. Uz finan3u parskatu apstiprinaianas bridi minéta
summa atrodas darijuma konta un parskaitijums par labu AS
Luminor bank tiks veikts lidzko bus registréti nodroinajumi par
labu jaunajai kreditiestadei, saskana ar darfjuma konta ligumu,
kas noslégts starp Sakret grupas uzpémumiem un
kreditiestadeém. Planots, ka process tiks pabeigts ne vélak ka lidz
2019. gada oktobra beigam.

Mes novertgjam ar darbibas turpind$anas principa
piemeroanu  saistitds informiacijas atklaganas
pilnigumu un precizitati.

Apstakli 2018. gada 31. decembrT liecindja, ka pastav biitiska
nenoteiktiba saistiba ar Sabiedribas spgju turpinat darbibu,
Tade] vadibas veiktais izvert€ums saistiba ar darbibas
turpinaSanas principa pieméroSanu, kas ietver aiznémumu
parstrukturéSanu, Koncemna paSu kapitala un likviditdtes
stavokla uzlaboSanu, spéju izpildit aiznémumu saistibas, tika
uzskatits par galveno revizijas jautdjumu, jo tas ietver
nozimigas vadibas apl@ses par nakotnes finan$u rezultatiem un
darbibas turpinaSanas jautajuma atklasanu finanu parskatos.

ZinoSana par citu informdciju

Par citu informaciju atbild Sabiedribas vadiba. Citu informaciju veido Vadibas zinojums, kas ietverts pievienota gada
pérskata 4. lapa un informacija par Sabiedribu, kas ietverta 3. lapa.

Miisu atzinums par finandu parskatu neattiecas uz gada parskata ietverto citu informaciju, un més nesniedzam par to
nekada veida apliecinajumu, iznemot to ka noradits miisu zinojuma sadald Citas zipoSanas prasibas saskand ar Latvijas
Republikas tiesibu aktu prasibam.

Saistiba ar finan$u parskata reviziju musu pienakums ir iepazities ar citu informaciju un, to darot, izvertét, vai 31 cita
informacija bitiski neatSkiras no finansu parskata informacijas vai no miisu zindanam, kuras més ieguvam revizijas
gaita, un vai ta nesatur cita veida biitiskas neatbilstibas.

Ja, balstoties uz veikto darbu un nemot véra revizijas laika giitas zinas un izpratni par Sabiedribu un tas darbibas vidi,
més secinam, ka citd informacija ir biitiskas neatbilstibas, miisu pienakums ir zinot par $adiem apstakliem. Misu
uzmanibas loka nav nakusi apstakli, par kuriem biitu jazino.

Deloitte nozimé vienu vai vairakus no sekojosiem: Deloitte: Touche Tohmatsu Limited, Lielbritanijas sabiedribu ar lerobeZotu.atbildibu (.DTTL"), tas grupas sabiedribas un ar tam saistitas sabiedribas.

DTTL un katra o tas grupas sabiedribam ir juridiski no3kirta un neatkariga vieniba. DTTL nozime ari , Deloitte Global”, kuré nesniedz pakalpojumus Klientiem. Lai sanemtu detalizétu informaciju par
DTTL un tas grupas sabiedribam, I0dzam apmeklét www.deloitte.com/Iv/about.

Latvija pakalpojumus sniedz "Deloitte Audits Latvia” SIA, *Deloitte Latvia” SIA un ZAB “Deloitte Legal” (kopigi saukti "Deloitte Latvia®), kas ir Deloitte Central Europe Holdings Limited meitas sabiedribas.
Deloitte Latvia ir viena no vado3ajam profesionalo pakalpojumu organizacijam Latvija, kas sniedz audita, nodokluy, juridiskos, finan3u konsultaciju un uznemuma riska onsultaciju pakalpojumus ar
vairak ka 150 vietejo un arvalstu ekspertu palidzibu.

Sis pazinojums satur tikai visparigu informaciju, un neviens no Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, tas grupas sabiedribam, vai to saistitajiem uznemumiem (kolektivi, “Deloitte Trkls"), izmantojot S0
pazinojumu, nesniedz profesionalas konsultacijas vai pakalpojumus. Neviens Deloitte Tikla uznemums nay atbildigs par jebkadiem zaudgjumiem, kas nodariti jebkurai personai, kas atsaucas vai
palaujas uz 3o publikaciju.
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Citas zinoSanas prasibas saskand ar Latvijas Republikas tiesibu aktu prasibam

Papildus tam, saskana ar Revizijas pakalpojumu likumu misu pienakums ir sniegt viedokli, vai Vadibas zinojums ir
sagatavots saskapa ar ta sagatavoSanu reglament€jo3a normativa akta, Gada parskatu un konsolidéto gada parskatu
likuma, prasibam.

Pamatojoties vienigi uz misu revizijas ietvaros veiktajam procediirim, misuprat:

¢  Vadibas zinojuma par parskata gadu, par kuru ir sagatavots finangu parskats, sniegta informécija atbilst
finan3u parskatam, un

*  Vadibas zinojums ir sagatavots saskana ar Gada parskatu un konsolidéto gada parskatu likuma prasibam.
Vadibas un personu, kuram uzticéta Sabiedribas parraudziba, atbildiba par finansu parskatu

Vadiba ir atbildiga par tada finanu parskata, kas sniedz patiesu un skaidru priek3statu, sagatavoSanu saskana ar Gada
pérskatu un konsolideto gada parskatu likumu, ka arT par tadas iek3&jas kontroles sistémas uzturgSanu, kida saskana ar
vadibas viedokli ir nepiecieS8ama, lai biitu iesp&jams sagatavot finan¥u parskatu, kas nesatur ne krap3anas, ne kludas de]

izraisitas butiskas neatbilstibas.

Sagatavojot finanSu parskatu, vadibas pienakums ir izvértét Sabiedribas sp&ju turpinat darbibu, pec nepieciesamibas
sniedzot informaciju par apstakliem, kas saistiti ar Sabiedribas spéju turpinat darbibu un darbibas turpinaSanas principa
piemeéroSanu, ja vien vadiba neplano Sabiedribas likvidaciju vai tas darbibas izbeig$anu, vai ar tai nav citas redlas
alternativas ka SabiedrTbas likvidacija vai darbibas izbeigSana.

Personas, kuram uzticéta Sabiedribas parraudziba, ir atbildigas par Sabiedribas finansu parskata sagatavo¥anas procesa
uzraudzibu.

Revidentu atbildiba par finanSu parskata reviziju

Miisu mérkis ir iegiit pietiekamu pérliecibu par to, ka finansu parskats kopuma nesatur kliidas vai krap$anas dé] izraisitas
butiskas neatbilstibas, un sniegt revidentu zinojumu, kurd izteikts atzinums. Pietickama parlieciba ir augsta limena
parlieciba, bet ta negaranté, ka revizija, kas veikta saskana ar SRS, vienmér tiks atklata biitiska neatbilstiba, ja tada
pastav. Neatbilstibas var rasties krapSanas vai kladas dél, un tas ir uzskatdmas par biitiskam, ja var pamatoti uzskafit, ka
tas katra atseviSki vai visas kopa varétu ietekmét saimnieciskos lemumus, ko lietotdji pienem, balstoties uz ¥o finandu
parskatu.

Veicot reviziju saskana ar SRS, visa revizijas procesa gaita mes izdaram profesionalus spriedumus un saglabijam
profesionalo skepticismu. M&s ar:

®  identificéjam un izvért&jam riskus, ka finansu parskata varétu but krap§anas vai kliidas dé] izraistas biitiskas
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Annex 5 — List of Collaterals

NO | COLLATERAL JURISDICTION | OWNER (PLEDGOR) RANK
1. | Immovable property “Ritvari”, LV Sabiedriba ar ierobezZotu 3.
Stopini, Rumbula, Stopinu district, atbildibu "SAKRET"

cadastral No. 80960090050

2. | Immovable property “Ritvari-2” LV Sabiedriba ar ierobezZotu 3.
Stopini, Stopinu district, cadastral atbildibu “SAKRET”
No. 80960090088

3. | Immovable property “Ritvari-2” LV Sabiedriba ar ierobeZotu 3.
Stopini, Rumbula, Stopinu district, atbildtbu "SAKRET"
cadastral No. 80965090009

4. | Immovable property “Ritvari”, LV Sabiedriba ar ierobeZotu 3.
Rumbula, Stopinu district, atbildtbu "SAKRET"
cadastral No. 80965090002

5. | Immovable Property SAKRETI, Mdo | EE osalhing Sakret (registration 3.
Village, Paide rural municipality, number 11196147)
Jarva Country, Estonia adn reg, No.
2157636 and cadastral No.
56502:002:0153

6. | Land plot, area 6.4802 ha, unique LT UAB "SAKRET LT", legal entity 3.
No. 4400-0943-8153, address at code 300598522
Biochemiku street 12 Kedainiai.

7 Real Estate — Building (construction | LT UAB "SAKRET LT", legal entity 3.
or engineering installation), unique code 300598522
number 4400-1578-3707, 4400-
1593-0986, 4400-1599-4268, 4400-
1593-1104, 4400-1593-1110;4400-
1598-8582, 4400-1612-4537, 4400-
1581-0490, 4400-1581-0525, 4400-
1598-8571, Kedainai, cadastral
number of the land plot on which
the building is situated
533300300042
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8. | Commercial pledge on SIA SAKRET LV SIA "SAKRET PLUS"
PLUS property as an aggregation on
property
9. | Commercial pledge on SAKRET LV Akciju sabiedriba "SAKRET
HOLDINGS AS property as an HOLDINGS"
aggregation of property
10. | Commercial pledge on SIA LV Sabiedriba ar ierobezZotu
“SAKRET” property as an atbildibu "SAKRET"
aggregation of property
11. | Commercial pledge on osaiihing EE osalihing Sakret (registration
SAKRET property as an aggregation number 11196147)
of property
12. | Commercial pledge on SAKRET LT LT UAB "SAKRET LT", legal entity
UAB property as an aggregation of code 300598522
property
13. | SAKRET LT UAB, reg. No. LT Akciju sabiedriba SAKRET
300598522 , shares HOLDINGS — 100 %, 49370 units
14. | Osalhing SAKRET, reg. No. EE Sakret Holdings JS (LV
11196147, shares registration number
40103251030) — 100%
15. | SIA “SAKRET PLUS”, reg. No. LV Akciju sabiedriba “SAKRET
40003749392, shares HOLDINGS” —90% , 128052
shares
16. | Akciju sabiedriba "SAKRET LV Sabiedriba ar ierobeZotu
HOLDINGS", reg. No. 40103251030, atbildibu “PARVALDIBAS
shares SISTEMAS” (reg No.
42103085387) — 100%
17. | SIA “SAKRET” shares, reg. No. LV Akciju sabiedriba "SAKRET
40003622109, shares HOLDINGS" — 100%
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AS “SAKRET HOLDINGS” (Latvia)
Reg. No: 40103251030
LEI: 8945008AJU1UU6D18269

Terms of the Notes Issue

Type of Security: | Secured Notes
Nominal: | EUR 1,000
Nominal value of the issue: | EUR 3,790,000
Annual coupon rate: | 9.00%
Maturity: | 30 August 2024

Arranger:

&
-----
------

.. BlueOrange

www.blueorangebank.com

8 August 2019

These Terms of the Note Issue do not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy the
Notes in any jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation in
such jurisdiction.
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Agent

Arranger

Business Day

Collateral (Collaterals)
Collateral Agent

Collateral Agent Agreement

Collateral Agreements

Collateral Provider
Coupon

Custodian

EUR
FCMC

First Settlement Date (Issue
Date)

Group or Sakret Group

Interest calculation period
ISIN

Issuer or Sakret Holdings
Legal acts

Majority Noteholders

Minimum Settlement Unit

AS “SAKRET HOLDINGS” Terms of the Notes Issue

Terms and abbreviations used

A person authorized to represent the Issuer and to perform certain
tasks

AS BlueOrange Bank (registration number: 40003551060, legal
address: SmilSu iela 6, Riga, LV-1050, Latvia). Arranger acts as an
issuer agent for the interpretation of Nasdag CSD

Business Day is the day when the Nasdaqg CSD system is open and
operational

Pledges and mortgages registered over the assets of the Collateral
Providers listed in Annex 5 to the Terms of the Issues and securing
performance of the Secured Obligations

SIA Primus Legal, a limited liability company registered under the
laws of the Republic of Latvia, company registration number
40103596993, address Sporta iela 11, Riga, LV- 1013, Latvia

Agreement between the Issuer and the Collateral Agent,
regulating the role of the Collateral Agent in respect of the Notes
and otherwise under these Terms of the Issue, to be signed on 8
August 2019 in the form and with the substance substantially in
accordance with Appendix 4

Pledge and mortgage agreements concluded between the
Collateral Providers and the Collateral Agent establishing pledge
rights and mortgages over the property (assets) of the Collateral
Provider

Any person listed in column “Owner (Pledgor)” of Annex 5 to the
Terms of the Issue

Interest on Notes calculated in accordance with the Section 4.2.7.
“Coupon payments”

Credit institution or investment brokerage company that has
obtained the FCMC license or is entitled to do business and to keep
securities in accordance with its country of registration laws

Euro (single currency of the member states of the European
Monetary System)

Financial and Capital Market Commission

The date when interest on the Notes start to accrue and is
30 August 2019

Issuer and its subsidiaries

The period of time between the First Settlement Date and the date
of the first payment or between two Coupon payment dates

International Securities ldentification Number, which will be
allocated to Notes by Nasdag CSD

AS “SAKRET HOLDINGS” (registration number: 40103251030, legal
entity identifier: 8945008AJU1UU6D18269, legal address:
“Ritvari”, Stopinu nov., Rumbula, Latvia, LV-2121)

All legal acts including FCMC, Nasdag Riga and Nasdaq CSD
regulations, which are in force in Latvia at the time of the Notes
issue, as well as prior to the maturity date of the Notes

The Noteholders holding over 51% (fifty-one per cent) of all
outstanding Notes at the relevant time

The minimum amount which can be held/traded, which is equal
nominal
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Nasdaq Riga

Nominal
Note

Noteholder

Parallel Debt
Potential Noteholder
Secured Obligations

Settlement Unit Multiple

Terms of the Issue

AS “SAKRET HOLDINGS” Terms of the Notes Issue

Nasdaq CSD SE (registration number: 40003242879, legal address
Valnu iela 1, Riga, LV-1050, Latvia)

AS “Nasdaq Riga” (registration number: 40003167049, legal
address: Vanu iela 1, Riga, LV-1050, Latvia)

Face value of a Note

Debt security that is issued by the Issuer according to the Terms of
the Issue

Private person or legal entity that is an owner of one or more
Notes and has a claim against the Issuer as stipulated by the Terms
of the Issue and applicable legal acts

A payment undertaking and the obligations and liabilities resulting
from it of the Issuer towards the Collateral Agent set forth in
Section 4.2.5. of the Terms of the Issue

A private person or legal entity that has, according to the terms
stated in the Terms of the Issue, expressed interest or is planning
to purchase for its own account one or more Notes

All obligations of the Issuer in respect of the Notes, including but
not limited to the obligation to redeem the Notes and pay interest
thereon, and including the Parallel Debt

Multiple that defines that the settlement quantity or nominal must
be a multiple of the defined value, which is equal nominal

This document, which entitles the Issuer to execute the Issue and
the initial offering of the Notes
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1.

Summary

AS “SAKRET HOLDINGS” Terms of the Notes Issue

Part A. Introduction and Warnings

Element and Request for
the Provision of

Information

Information
Al Warning  to e This summary should be read as introduction to the Terms of the
investors Issue;

e Any decision to invest in the securities should be based on
consideration of the Terms of the Issue as a whole by the Potential
Noteholder;

e Where a claim relating to the information contained in the Terms
of the lIssue is brought before a court, the plaintiff Potential
Noteholder might, under the national legislation of the Member
States, have to bear the costs of translating the Terms of the Issue
before the legal proceedings are initiated; and

e  Civil liability attaches only to those persons who have tabled the
summary including any translation thereof, but only if the
summary is misleading, inaccurate or inconsistent when read
together with the other parts of the Terms of the Issue, key
information in order to aid Potential Noteholders when
considering whether to invest in such securities.

Part B. Issuer and any Guarantor

B.1 Legal name and | The Issuer’s legal name is akciju sabiedriba "SAKRET HOLDINGS".
commercial name
of the Issuer

B.2 The domicile and | Country of location: Republic of Latvia.
legal form of the | Legal form: joint-stock company, legal status — legal person.

Issuer, the | Date and place of registration: in the Commercial Register of the Republic
legislation under | of Latvia on 30 September 2009
which the Issuer | Registration number: 40103251030
operates and its | Legal address: “Ritvari”, Stopinu nov., Rumbula, Latvia, LV-2121
country of | The company’s country of foundation is the Republic of Latvia.
incorporation
The main regulatory enactments which regulate Issuer’s activities are

e  The Commercial Law of the Republic of Latvia;

e Labour Code;

e  Construction law.

B.3 A description of, | Issuer is a holding company and it controls operational companies of the
and key factors | Sakret Group. The main area of Sakret Group activity is production of dry
relating to, the | mixes and ready-made liquid mixes for construction, such as masonry
nature of the | cement, plastering, and concrete.

Issuer’s  current
operations and its
principal activities

B.4a | A description of | At the moment of signing the Terms of the Issue, the Issuer has no
the most | information at its disposal regarding any recent tendencies that have
significant recent | negatively affected the Issuer or the activity of the construction material
trends  affecting | production industry.
the Issuer and the
industries in which
it operates

B.4b | A description of | At the moment of signing the Terms of the Issue, the Issuer has no
any known trends | information at its disposal regarding any identified tendencies that have
affecting the | negatively affected the Issuer or the activity of the construction material
Issuer and the | production industry.
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industries in which
it operates

B.5

A description of
the group and the
Issuer’'s  position
within the group

At the moment of signing the Terms of the Issue, the Issuer is a holding
company and holds interest in four subsidiaries.

B.6

Main shareholders
of the Issuer

The only shareholder of AS “SAKRET HOLDINGS” is a company SIA
“PARVALDIBAS SISTEMAS”, with registration number 42103085387 and
legal address “Ritvari”, Stopinu nov., Rumbula, Latvia, LV-2121.

Issuer’s share capital is EUR 35,000 which consists of 25,000 ordinary
shares, each of them with a nominal value of EUR 1.40. SIA “PARVALDIBAS
SISTEMAS” holds all 25,000 shares of the Issuer.

SIA “PARVALDIBAS SISTEMAS” share capital is EUR 8,000 which consists of
8,000 ordinary shares, each of them with a nominal value of EUR 1.00.

At the moment of signing the Terms of the Issue, the current structure of
SIA “PARVALDIBAS SISTEMAS” shareholders is as follows:

% of the total
number
85.300%
10.125%
4.575%
100%

Number of
shares
Maris Kelpis (120561-10558) 6,824
llgvars Belinskis (061060-10547) 810
Private individuals 366
Total: 8,000

Name, surname/ Legal name

The beneficiary of the Issuer, controlling the Issuer, is chairman of the
board, Maris Kelpis.

At the moment of signing the Terms of the Issue, the Issuer has no
information at its disposal regarding any agreements, the fulfilment of
which might cause changes in the Issuer’s control.

B.7

Selected historical
key financial
information

Issuer’s selected consolidated financial figures are as follows:

Income statement (EUR):

2018
2015 2016 2017 (unaudited)
Revenue 19 146 596 17 648 223 19298 618 21265 701
Cost of goods sold 14 414 231 13220742 14 649 323 15 872 424
Gross profit 4732365 4427 481 4649 295 5393277
Cost of sales 2582205 2544522 2764948 2799993
Administration costs 1030176 982 097 1048 794 1470121
Other operating income 49 005 139523 21767 48 116
Other operating expenses 116 438 56 821 87570 103170
Interest income 1302 1284 1552 1248
Interest expense 861 803 878922 976 775 652772
Profit before tax 192050 105926 (205 473) 416 585
Income tax 70369 79 557 15159 49 230
Deferred tax 2734 - - -
Net profit for the reporting year 118 947 26 369 (220 632) 367 355
Balance sheet (EUR):
31.12.2018

31.12.2015 31.12.2016 31.12.2017 (unaudited)

Non-current assets:
Intangible assets:

Intangible assets 177 688 317129 411872 446 236
TOTAL: 177 688 317 129 411 872 446 236
Plant and property 9717694 9229525 8780792 8391711




K2 SAKRET

AS “SAKRET HOLDINGS” Terms of the Notes Issue

Machinery 3300286 2925925 2537216 2126376
Other fixed assets 75431 71068 99 582 109 805
Prepayments for fixed assets 8000 4296 6529

TOTAL: 13101411 12230814 11424119 10627892
Non-current financial assets:

Other long-term debtors 20 880 13926 13918 34113
Other financial assets 28 28 - -
TOTAL: 20908 13954 13918 34113

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS: 13300007 12561897 11849909 11108241

Current assets:

Inventory:

Raw materials 1406227 1565903 1367758 1380966
Ready-made products 1450 840 942 702 896 466 899109
Prepayments for inventory 12 580 6319 27 670 7006

TOTAL: 2869647 2514924 2291894 2287081

Accounts receivable:

Receivables from clients and suppliers 1940896 1953264 2515993 2717539
Other receivables 128121 159127 142318 149858
Next period expenses 27388 33776 36392 47356
Short-term loans to shareholders 35572 35572 35572 35572

TOTAL: 2131977 2181739 2730275 2950325

Cash and cash equivalents: 489172 397591 306 063 342277
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS: 5490796 5094254 5328232 5579683

TOTALASSETS: 18790803 17656151 17178141 16687924

Owners’ Equity:

Fixed capital 35000 35000 35000 35000
Denomination reserve 572 572 572 572
Reorganisation reserve (8491 750) (8491750) (8491750) (8491 750)
Currency exchange rate revaluation reserve 24 899 24 899 24 899 24 899
Retained earnings 49 012 143 870 148 327 (90 811)
Profit for the year 89 244 4 457 (239 138) 349 876

TOTAL:  (8293023) (8282952) (8522090) (8172214)
Owners' Equity attributable to the members of
the parent company:

Minority shareholder participation 136 459 158 371 176 877 194 356
TOTAL: 136 459 158 371 176 877 194 356
TOTAL EQUITY: (8156 564) (8124581) (8345213) (7977858)
Liabilities:
Long-term liabilities:
Debt from credit institutions 19140971 17341139 16641137 -
Other liabilities 167 093 167093 167093 167 093
Liabilities of related parties 896 532 767 932 757 532 644132
Financial leasing 33085 - - -
Deferred tax asset 5713 - - -

TOTAL: 20243394 181276164 17565762 811225
Short-term liabilities:

Debt from credit institutions 2547579 2799999 1700000 17641137
Other liabilities 500 145 654835 1170582 1384137
Financial leasing 53876 37 545 37545 -
Pre-payments from buyers 11851 222099 118 865 38127
Debts to suppliers and contractors 1550063 1957165 3005926 2976635
Liabilities of related parties 804 740 624 844 421535 469 324
Taxes and social security payments 360554 520983 325638 191 555
Other creditors 136 658 98 845 139133 130153
Accrued liabilities 689 615 559250 1009 365 994 486
Unpaid dividends for minority shareholders 48 892 29003 29003 29 003

TOTAL: 6703973 7504568 7957592 23854557
TOTAL LIABILITIES: 26947367 25780732 25523354 24665782
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 18790803 17656151 17178141 16687924

The Issuer’s financial auditor of the last audited annual report is SIA
“Deloitte Audits Latvia” (registration number: 40003606960, legal address:
Grédu iela 4a, Riga, Latvia, LV-1019).
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Issuer plans to use funds raised from Notes Issue, together with senior
financing from AS BlueOrange Bank, to refinance current liabilities from
credit institutions.

After the refinancing, due to the discount granted by current credit
institution, the consolidated equity of the Sakret group will increase.
Together with the shareholders contribution in amount of EUR 1,015,000,
the consolidated equity will become positive, allowing Sakret Group to
participate in several grant and energy-efficiency increase programs and
positively affecting the financial standing of the Issuer.

The Issuer is unaware of any other factors, claims, obligations, or events
which would negatively affect the financial situation or performance of the
Issuer in future.

B.8 Selected pro | Issuer does not provide pro forma financial information.
forma financial
information

B.9 Profit forecast or | The profit/loss forecast has not been carried out.
evaluation

B.10 | Objections in the | The audit report for financial statements for 2016 contained no objections.
financial The audit report for financial statements for 2017 contained one objection,
information of the | regarding significant uncertainty about the company's ability to continue as
audit report a going concern.

B.11 | Issuer’s equity The last audited equity of the Issuer is negative EUR (8,345,213).

B.12 | Forecasts The forecasts regarding the Issuer contain no crucial negative changes
regarding the | after the publication of the last audited financial statements.

Issuer

B.13 | A description of | Issuer plans to use funds raised from Notes Issue, together with senior
any recent events | financing from AS BlueOrange Bank, to refinance current liabilities from
particular to the | credit institutions.

Issuer which are to | After the refinancing, due to the discount granted by current credit
a material extent | institution, the consolidated equity of the Sakret group will increase.
relevant to the | Together with the shareholders contribution in amount of EUR 1,015,000,
evaluation of the | the consolidated equity will become positive, allowing Sakret Group to
Issuer’s solvency participate in several grant and energy-efficiency increase programs and
positively affecting the financial standing and solvency of the Issuer.
No other events related to the Issuer, which are crucial for preventing
Issuer's insolvency, have been established.

B.14 | Issuer’s Issuer is a holding company and it controls operational companies of the
dependency Sakret Group, therefore the insolvency of Issuer is directly dependent on

operational subsidiaries and their financial results.

B.15 | Description of the | Issuer is a holding company and it controls operational companies of the
Issuer’s  principal | Sakret Group. The main area of Sakret Group activity is production of dry
activities mixes and ready-made liquid mixes for construction, such as masonry

cement, plastering, and concrete.

B.16 | Control over the | The beneficiary of the Issuer, controlling the Issuer, is chairman of the
Issuer board, Maris Kelpis.

B.17 | Credit ratings | There is no credit rating assigned neither to the Issuer nor to the Notes
assigned to the | issue.

Issuer or its debt
securities
B.18 —B.50 Not applicable.

Part C. Securities
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C1

Type and category
of securities, ISIN

Notes issue ISIN (International Security Identification Number) will be
allocated by Nasdaqg CSD.

C.2

Currency of the
issue of securities

Currency of the Notes issue is euro (EUR).

C3-C4

Not applicable.

C5

Restrictions for
free transferability
of securities

The Notes are freely transferable securities and can be pledged. However,
the Notes cannot be offered, sold, resold, transferred or delivered in such
countries or jurisdictions or otherwise in such circumstances in which it
would be unlawful or require measures other than those required under
the laws of the Republic of Latvia and the United States of America.

C6-C7

Not applicable.

C.8,
C.9

Rights arising from
the Notes

Noteholders have a right to receive Coupon and Nominal payments,
exercise other rights as stipulated in the Terms of the Issue.

The Coupon rate is 9.0% (nine per cent) per annum. Coupon payments are
made once per quarter starting from 30 November 2019. The Issuer will
withhold taxes according with applicable laws in the Republic of Latvia.

The maturity date of Notes is 30 August 2024, Nominal amount is repaid as
a lump sum on the maturity date.

The Issuer can carry out full early redemption (call option), on 30 August
2021 by paying 90% for the Nominal amount, or on 30 August 2022 by
paying 95% for the Nominal amount or on 30 August 2023 by paying 100%
for the Nominal amount If the Issuer takes decision on the early redemption
of Notes, the Issuer shall notify Noteholders at least 20 (twenty) Business
Days prior to the redemption date of Notes.

Each Noteholder has a right to demand full early redemption (put option)
on 30 August 2023 at 90% for the Nominal amount. In order to exercise the
put option the Noteholders have to submit an application to the Issuer or
to its appointed agent not later than 40 (forty) Business Days prior the put
option date.

The Notes are secured with Collaterals established in accordance with the
Collateral Agent Agreement executed between the Issuer and the Collateral
Agent and the Collateral Agreements executed between the Collateral
Agent and Sakret Group companies.

Ranking of the Collaterals securing the Secured Obligations is in detail
described in Annex 5 to the Terms of the Issue.

Collateral Agent holds the Collateral for the benefit of the Noteholders and
in its actions regarding the disposal of its rights as the pledgee and
mortgagee follows the instructions of the Noteholders according to the
procedures described in Section 5.4 of the Terms of the Issue.

Any changes to the Collaterals established on the basis of the Terms of the
Issue and the Collateral Agreements, as well as registration of other (next
ranking) pledges or mortgages over the assets of the Collateral Providers is
subject to receipt of prior consent from the Majority Noteholders. Any
exceptions are allowed only according to the mandatory provisions of the
applicable laws.

C.10

Interest payment
of securities based
on derived
financial
instruments

Not applicable. There is no derivative component embedded in the terms
of the Notes.
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C.11 | Inclusion of Notes | The Issuer plans to include Notes on the alternative market Nasdaq First
in the regulated | North.
market

C.12 | Minimum The Nominal value of one Note is EUR 1,000 (one thousand euro).
denomination of
the issue
C.13-C.22 Not applicable.

Part D. Risks

D.1, | Key information | When making an investment in Notes, the Noteholder undertakes certain

D.2 on the key risks | financial risks. The main risk factors that influence the Issuer are changes in
that are specific to | regulatory enactments and policies, macroeconomics risk, construction
the Issuer or its | industry risk, competition risk, production risk, relations with key
industry customers, credit risk of clients, financial risk, refinancing risk, dependence

on future employees, operational risk and legal proceeding and risk of
other claims.

D.3 Key information | When investing funds in Notes, investors undertake the following risks
on the key risks | related to debt securities: Collateral risk, Notes repayment risk, Notes early
that specific to the | repayment risk, delisting risk, liquidity risk, price risk and tax risk.
securities

D.4-D.6 Not applicable.
Part E. Offer

E.1-E.2a Not applicable.

E.2b | Reasons for the | Funds that are raised as a result of the Notes issue will be used in
offer and use of | refinancing of current loan liabilities of the Issuer and its subsidiaries.
proceeds  when
different from
making profit
and/or  hedging
certain risks

E3 A description of | Not applicable.
the terms and
conditions of the
offer

E.4 A description of | AS BlueOrange Bank (the Arranger) is organizing the Notes issue and may
any interest that is | have other business transactions with the Issuer.
material to the
issue/offer
including
conflicting
interests

E5—-E.6 Not applicable.

E.7 Estimated All the expenses related to the acquisition and custody of Notes are borne
expenses charged | by an investor in compliance with the price-list of a credit institution or
to the investor by | investment service provider, through which the investor purchases and
the issuer or the | keeps Notes. The Issuer is not obliged to compensate for expenses incurred
offeror by the investor.

The investor may have additional tax payment obligations related to Notes
depending on the investor’s country of residence. The Issuer will deduct
taxes from Coupon payments in compliance with the applicable legal acts
of the Republic of Latvia.
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2. Risk Factors

2.1 Important note

The risks indicated in this section may reduce Issuer’s ability to fulfil its obligations and cause its insolvency in the
worst-case scenario.

Notes are secured with Collaterals established in accordance with the Collateral Agreements executed between
the Collateral Providers and the Collateral Agent.

This section may not feature all the potential risks, which may affect the Issuer.
2.2. Changes in regulatory enactments and policies

The Issuer carries out its production activity in Latvia, Estonia and Lithuania and most of the risks, which affect it,
are related to the general economic situation in all three Baltic countries and regulatory enactments adopted by
each country.

The Issuer is headquartered in Latvia and has manufacturing plants in Latvia, Lithuania and Estonia via local
subsidiaries, thus every subsidiary operates under the laws of the respective country and any significant changes
in existing regulatory enactments or implementation of new regulations governing corporate taxation,
employees’ remuneration, natural resources taxation and others might negatively affect the business and
solvency of the particular subsidiary and Sakret Group as a whole.

2.3. Macroeconomics risk

The Issuer is engaged in production of high-end quality dry and read-made liquid construction mixtures and
construction chemicals in Latvia, Lithuania and Estonia.

In 2018, 39% of the Sakret Group revenue was generated by building material sales in Latvia, 29% in Lithuania
and 25% in Estonia. Remaining was generated by sales of services. The economic situation in all Baltic countries
are assessed as stable which is supported by both macroeconomic data, such as GDP and employment indicators.
Latvia and Lithuania currently have an A credit rating assigned by Standard & Poor’s with a stable outlooks. Estonia
currently has an AA- credit rating assigned by Standard & Poor’s with a stable outlook.

Financial results of Sakret Group depends on the stable macroeconomic situation in each of the Baltic countries.
2.4. Construction industry risk

The demand for dry and read-made liquid construction mixtures that Sakret Group produces is directly linked to
the state of construction industry in Baltic countries.

Following a rapid growth over the period of 2003 — 2008, the construction industry in the Baltics went into a nose-
dive, with 2010 falling back to the level of 2002. Further years brought approximately 75% of cumulative growth
until the industry faced another fall in 2016.

Latvia is expected to face the most substantial growth of all three Baltic countries over the next couple of years,
evening out at a GDP growth of approx. 4%. Real estate prices have been increasing in line with domestic income
and the current low interest environment expand consumer capabilities in housing investments. In Estonia,
construction confidence index has currently reached its post-crisis-high level, expecting further sector growth.

Despite positive outlook on construction sector in Baltic countries, the decline of activity in the industry may
adversely affect the Sakret Group’s business and financial condition.

2.5. Competition risk

Sakret Group direct competitors across all Baltic countries are “Knauf”, “Ceresit”, “Saint-Gobain”, and "Baumit".
All Sakret's direct competitors are international companies and have one or more factories in Latvia, Lithuania
and Estonia. In contrast to its competitors, Sakret Group is working exclusively for the Baltic market and is
headquartered in the Baltics.

The Issuer may have difficulties to compete with these competitors, thus to remain competitive and to protect
profit margins, Issuer must offer new products that keep pace with industrial and technological developments
and must respond to customer requirements on a timely basis. New technologies, changing commercial
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circumstances (for example, consolidation within a relevant sector), existing competitors (including those with a
longer operating history, greater resources and/or broader range of products) and new entrants to the markets
in which Issuer currently operates or markets in which Sakret Group might target for expansion may adversely
affect the Group’s business, financial condition, results of operations or prospects.

2.6. Production risk

Sakret Group operates 4 production plants in Riga (Latvia), Kedainai (Lithuania) and Paide (Estonia), thus any
technological issues, human errors, incorrect planning or other issues directly connected with production
processes might result in stoppage of production output of plants, which will negatively affect the financial results
of the Sakret Group.

Group is operating its production plants since 2004 and its employees have an extensive experience in managing
production processes, thus any potential production risks are monitored and controlled.

2.7. Relations with key customers

Over the past years, the Issuer has maintained a moderate concentration among its customer base. Top3 clients
of the Issuer generate 39% of company’s revenue as of 2018 and Top5 clients generate 60% of company's
revenue, and this concentration has been stable over recent years. The remainder of Issuer’s clients contribute
less than 10% to revenue each. Sakret Group’s clients are all the largest DIY chains in the Baltics, therefore, the
concentration is directly linked with DIY market concentration. The loss of any of key customers and Issuer’s
inability to find adequate alternative customers on a timely basis, or at all, on commercially acceptable terms,
could have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results of operations.

2.8. Credit risk of clients

Issuer’s customers have a period of time, generally 45 to 90 days after the date of invoice, depending on the type
of customer, in which to effect payment. As a result, Issuer is subject to the risk that its customers will not pay or
will delay the payment for the products they purchased. This credit exposure risk may increase due to liquidity or
solvency issues experienced by Issuer’s customers, for example, as a result of an economic downturn or an
adverse change in their business. If Issuer is unable to collect payment for amounts invoiced from its customers,
it could have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results of operations.

Issuer assigns credit to customers according to internal credit policy, which is developed, applying thorough
internal analysis of Issuer’s customers and seeking to diversify and limit its credit risk exposure.

2.9. Financial risk

Historically, Sakret Group made expansion investments co-financed by Luminor (then DNB bank), including loans
for construction of the factories in Lithuania (total investment EUR 9.50 million) and Estonia (total investment
EUR 6.70 million). Because of the financial crisis of 2008-2009 and geopolitical tensions with Russia, Sakret’s core
markets contracted and return on the loans was negatively affected. In 2013, a restructuring was done, forming
a holding structure and renegotiating the repayment schedule, Sakret returned to positive cashflow.

After the merger of DNB and Nordea, Luminor revaluated its existing strategy and has decided to accept
refinancing of Sakret Group loan at a discount — the current repayment schedule still is too long for the bank and
the internal procedures do not allow to write-off part of the loan and keep Sakret as a client.

Due to the discount granted by Luminor, the consolidated equity of the Sakret Group will increase. Together with
the shareholders contribution in amount of EUR 1m, the consolidated equity will become positive, allowing Sakret
Group to participate in several grant and energy-efficiency increase programs and positively affecting the financial
standing and solvency of the Issuer.

After the refinancing of Luminor loan, BlueOrange Bank will provide EUR 4 million long-term loan, EUR 2 million
overdraft facility, EUR 1.7 million credit line and EUR 3.8 million will be raised via Notes Issue.

Despite the Issuer’s track record with credit institutions, there is a possibility that sources of financing may not be
available in the amount required for the Issuer, or their conditions may be too unfavorable, which may
significantly affect Issuer’s ability to ensure sufficient financing for the company’s growth.
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2.10.  Refinancing risk

Principal of Notes will be repaid as a lump sum at maturity date, therefore the Issuer has increased refinancing
risk. The Issuer will seek to refinance Notes issue or look for other funding sources in order to decrease refinancing
risk, but if Notes will not be refinanced before maturity date, as per the management estimates, the Issuer should
be able to cover principal of Notes from Group’s own cash flow. In case of additional capital investments would
be required during the duration of Notes, which would decrease cash available for repayment of Notes at the
maturity, Issuer plans to refinance part of the Notes lump sum using long-term liabilities, which will be significantly
decreased by 2022, based on the repayment schedule.

2.11.  Dependence on future employees

In the future, the Issuer’s activities will be affected by its ability to attract, preserve, and motivate highly qualified
and experienced personnel. There is competition for personnel with the relevant skills and experience in Baltic
countries and it is comparatively high; however, the Issuer has successful experience in the field of personnel
management, offering education, professional growth, and development possibilities, as well as different
motivation programs to the employees.

As of 2018, the Issuer’s total number of employees was 132 persons. The majority of workers are involved in
manufacturing processes.

2.12.  Operational risks

Operational risk is a possibility of experiencing losses due to insufficient or unsuccessful inner processes,
personnel management, systems, or external circumstances. As of 2018, the number of Group’s employees
reached 132 persons; therefore, thorough personnel selection is carried out, accurate descriptions of job duties
are compiled, division of duties is coordinated, constant investments are made within the IT system, which allows
the Issuer to reduce operational risks.

2.13.  Legal proceeding and risk of other claims

The Issuer may be adversely affected by contractual claims, complaints and legal proceedings arising from
relationships with partners, customers, competitors or regulatory authorities, as well as negative publicity such
proceedings might cause. Any such legal proceedings, complaints, contractual claims or negative publicity may
materially affect the operational activities, financial situation and business results of the Issuer.

2.14.  Risks related to Notes
2.14.1. Collateral risk
Notes will be secured with Collaterals that will be subject to ranking described in Annex 5.

Noteholders should be aware that since the Estonian subsidiary of the Issuer is giving upstream collaterals, such
collaterals could be contested under Estonian law in a certain case. As per the provisions of Estonian Commercial
Code, an OU (osatihing)-type company shall not amongst others guarantee a loan taken by its shareholder whose
share represents more than 5 per cent of its share capital. However, the Estonian law stipulates that this
prohibition does not apply to guaranteeing or securing a loan taken by the parent if grant of guarantee or
security/collateral does not harm the financial status of the company or the interests of its creditors.

If the Issuer fails to make the Coupon and / or Nominal payments in a timely manner, the Collateral Agent, acting
in the interest of the Noteholders, will commence the Collateral enforcement proceedings according to the
procedures described in Section 5.4. of the Terms of the Issue.

2.14.2. Notes repayment risk

Notes will be secured with Collaterals established in accordance with the Collateral Agreements executed
between the Collateral Providers and the Collateral Agent. In case of Issuer’s insolvency, Noteholders have the
same right to receive their investment as other creditors of the relevant group in accordance with applicable
regulatory enactments.

2.14.3. Notes early repayment risk

Issuer has a call option, which means, that at certain dates during the term of Notes the Issuer may decide to
execute an early repayment of Notes by paying back the principal at the certain price for the Nominal amount to
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the Noteholders. Noteholders should take into account that Notes early redemption price may be lower than
Notes price on the secondary market.

2.14.4. Delisting risk

After Notes registration the Issuer plans to request admission to trading of the Notes on First North, which is
alternative market operated by Nasdaq Riga. There is a risk, that Nasdaqg Riga would not accept Notes to be
admitted for trading on First North or order to delist Notes from the First North before the maturity after the
admission to trading took place, due to changes in FCMC opinion and Legal acts, including Nasdag Riga
regulations.

2.14.5. Liquidity risk

Neither the Issuer, nor any other person guarantees the minimum liquidity of Notes. Noteholders should take
into account that there may be difficulties in selling Notes in the secondary market.

2.14.6. Price risk

Notes will be repaid for their Nominal Value at the maturity, yet the price in the secondary market may change
significantly. Neither the Issuer, nor any other person undertakes to maintain a certain price level of Notes.

2.14.7. Taxrisk

Tax rates and tax payment procedure applicable at the moment of purchase of Notes to the tax residents, non-
residents of Latvia, and residents of other countries may change. The Issuer will not compensate for the increase
in taxes to Noteholders, therefore Noteholders may receive smaller payments related to Notes.
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3.

3:1.

Party responsible for the Terms of the Issue

Party responsible for the Terms of the Issue

Akciju Sabiedriba “SAKRET HOLDINGS”

Registration number: 40103251030

Legal entity identifier: 8945008AJU1UU6D18269

Legal address: “Ritvari”, Stopinu nov., Rumbula, Latvia, LV-2121

3.2.

Representations and Warranties of the Issuer

The Issuer shall, in accordance with these Terms of the Issue, issue Notes and perform the obligations arising
from the Notes to the Noteholders.

The

Issuer shall be liable to the Noteholders for due and complete fulfilment of its obligations deriving from the

Notes with Callateral.

The

3.3,

The

Issuer gives the following warranties to the Noteholders:

(a) All the Issuer’s obligations assumed under this issue of the Notes are valid and legally binding to the
Issuer and performance of these obligations is not contrary to the Issuer’s Articles of Association, laws
or any agreement concluded by the Issuer;

(b) The Issuer has all the rights and sufficient authorizations to issue the Notes and fulfil obligations arising
from issuing the Notes;

(c) The Issuer has performed all the formalities required for issuing the Notes and fulfilling the obligations
arising here from;

(d} Allinformation that is provided by the Issuer to the Noteholders is true, accurate, complete and correct
as at the date of presenting the respective information and is not misleading in any respect.

Assurance of the information provided in the Terms of the Issue

Issuer and its management board are responsible for the information contained in Terms of the Issue.

Hereby we, members of the board of AS “SAKRET HOLDINGS”, Maris Kelpis, Juris Grinvalds, Andis Ziedonis certify
that, by paying sufficient attention to this purpose, the information included in the Terms of the Issue is true, in
accordance with the facts, and no information which may affect its meaning is concealed therein.

Marlsr% )«éﬁs Grinvalds dis Ziedgnis J
Chair f the board Member of the board Member ofithe board
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4. Information on Notes

4.1. The use of the proceeds
The total issue size is EUR 3,790,000 (three million seven hundred ninety thousand euro).

Funds that are raised as a result of the Notes issue will be used in refinancing of current loan liabilities of the
Issuer and its subsidiaries.

4.2. Information on the offered Notes
4.2.1. General Information

The Notes are bearer and any person or entity that holds the Notes in his securities account has the right to
receive Coupon and the Nominal payments. It is planned to issue Notes with nominal value of EUR 1,000 (one
thousand euro) for one Note and total nominal value of EUR 3,790,000 (three million seven hundred ninety
thousand euro).

Notes issue ISIN (International Security Identification Number) will be allocated by Nasdag CSD.
4.2.2. Legal acts that regulate the Notes issue

The Notes issue is arranged in compliance with the Financial Instrument Market Law and other Legal acts of the
Republic of Latvia that are in force including the FCMC and the Nasdaq CSD regulations.

All disputes between Noteholders and the Issuer shall be settled in courts of the Republic of Latvia in accordance
to the Legal acts in force. Terms of the Issue are drafted and signed in English and any translations of the Terms
of the Issue into another language are unofficial and made exceptionally for the Potential Noteholders’
convenience. In case of any disputes’ settlement, interpretation of the norms of the Terms of the Issue in English
holds the priority against an interpretation in any other language.

4.2.3. Form and accounting of the Notes

The Notes are issued in dematerialized form and will be recorded in the Latvian SSS (securities settlement system
governed by Latvian law) operated by Nasdaqg CSD, which will provide the maintaining function for the Notes.
Noteholders may hold Notes through Nasdaqg CSD participants participating in the Latvian SSS.

4.2.4. Currency of the Notes
Currency of the notes is EUR (euro).
4.2.5. Collateral of the Notes, Parallel Debt

As security for the Secured Obligations, the Collateral shall be established in favor of and on the name of the
Collateral Agent in accordance with the Collateral Agreements. Not later than on 22 November 2019, the
Collateral Agreements will be executed between the Collateral Agent and the Collateral Providers in order to
establish the Collateral (Collaterals) securing the Secured Obligations in accordance with the Terms of the Issue.

The Issuer shall ensure that the respective agreements are registered and perfected to the fullest extent required
by the applicable law of the place of registration of the respective Collateral not later than on 22 November 2019.
Notwithstanding the above, the Collaterals indicated in Annex 5 as having the second, third or fourth ranking in
any case shall be registered only after the collaterals having the first, second and/or third rank are duly registered.

For the purpose of ensuring and preserving the enforceability of the Collateral, the Issuer irrevocably and
unconditionally undertakes to pay to the Collateral Agent, as creditor in its own right and not as representative of
the Noteholders and as a joint or solidary creditor together with the Noteholders, sums equal to and in the
currency of the total of each amount payable by the Issuer to each of the Noteholders (whether present or future
and whether actual or contingent) under the Terms of the Issue as and when the amount falls due for payment
under the Terms of the Issue. For the purpose of clarification, the Parallel Debt will become due and payable at
the same time and to the same extent as any of the Secured Obligations become due and payable. The conditions
applicable to the Parallel Debt are in further detail described in the Annex 4 to the Terms of the Issue (please refer
to Section 2 of the Collateral Agent Agreement).
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4.2.6. Rights and restrictions connected with the Notes issue

Any Noteholder has the right to receive Coupon and Nominal payments in accordance with the Section 4.2.7.
“Coupon payments” and 4.2.8. “Procedure of Notes repayment”, as well as exercise other rights fixed in the Terms
of the Issue and legislation of the Republic of Latvia.

The Issuer has the rights to purchase Notes on the secondary market directly from Noteholders. Notes that are
purchased by the Issuer are held in Issuer’s financial instruments' custody account and the Issuer has the rights
to sell purchased Notes to Potential Noteholders and other Noteholders. The Issuer cannot cancel the purchased
Notes held in the Issuer’s financial instruments' custody account, therefore decreasing the size of Notes issue.

Notes owned by the Issuer and / or its affiliated persons (subsidiaries, shareholders, management or employees)
are not eligible to participate in the voting in accordance with Section 5.5. “Procedure for applying of the waiver”.

4.2.7. Coupon payments
The Coupon rate for the Notes is 9% (nine per cent) per annum and is fixed until the maturity of the Notes.

Coupon payments are made once per quarter starting from 30 November 2019. The first Coupon payment will be
made on 30 November 2019 and the last Coupon payment will be made on 30 August 2024.

The Coupon record date is the 5th (fifth) Business Day prior to the Coupon payment day. At the end of the Coupon
record date Noteholders list, who will be eligible for the Coupon payments, will be fixed. Coupon payment shall
be made to the Noteholders, as per Noteholders list, on each Coupon payment date for the preceding Coupon
period.

The Issuer pays the Coupon through the intermediary of Nasdag CSD and in accordance with applicable Nasdaq
CSD regulations, which regulate the procedure for paying income from debt securities. Nasdaqg CSD regulations
applicable on the day of preparation of the Terms of the Issue are Nasdaq CSD Rulebook and Corporate Action
Service description.

If the Coupon payment date is a holiday or a festive day, the Issuer will make the relevant Coupon payment on
the first Business Day after the holiday or festive day.

Coupon payments are determined according to the following formula:
CPN=F *C /4 or CPN% = C/4, where

CPN — the amount of Coupon payment in EUR per Note;

F — Nominal value of one Note;

C—annual Coupon rate (%);

CPN% - the amount of Coupon payment % per Note.

If the Issuer has failed to make Coupon payments in accordance with the deadlines specified in the Terms of the
Issue, Noteholders shall have the right to submit claims regarding the payment of the Coupon not earlier than
after 5 (five) Business Days following the payment date of the relevant Coupon.

The authority performing the calculation is not required to calculate the Coupon payment, since the annual rate
of the Coupon for the relevant period is fixed in advance.

4.2.8. Procedure of the Notes repayment

The Nominal of one Note is EUR 1,000 (one thousand euro) and the Issuer will repay Nominal amount as a lump
sum the maturity date of the Notes, which is 30 August 2024.

The Issuer will repay the Nominal amount in accordance with Nasdag CSD intermediary and applicable Nasdaq
CSD regulations. Nasdag CSD regulations applicable on the day of preparation of the Terms of the Issue are Nasdaq
CSD Rulebook and Corporate Action Service Description. The Nominal amount will be paid on the maturity date.
Noteholders eligible to receive the Nominal will be fixed at the end of the Nominal record date, which is the
previous Business Day before the maturity date.

If the maturity date is a holiday or a festive day, the Issuer will make the relevant Coupon payment and Nominal
amount payment on the first Business Day after the holiday or festive day.
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If the Issuer has failed to make Nominal amount payment in accordance with the deadlines specified in the Terms
of the Issue, Noteholders shall have the right to submit claims regarding the repayment of the Nominal amount
not earlier than after 5 (five) Business Days following the payment day of the Nominal amount.

4.29. Early redemption (call option)

The Issuer can carry out full early redemption (call option), on 30 August 2021 by paying 90% for the Nominal
amount, or on 30 August 2022 by paying 95% for the Nominal amount or on 30 August 2023 by paying 100% for
the Nominal amount. The Issuer can carry out call option only in full amount of total outstanding Notes.

If the Issuer takes decision on the early redemption of Notes, the Issuer shall notify Noteholders at least 20
(twenty) Business Days prior to the redemption date of Notes, with intermediation of Nasdaq CSD, or, if Notes
are included in the Nasdaq Riga, via Nasdaq Riga information system.

If the Issuer takes decision on the early redemption of Notes, the Issuer will pay redemption payment in
accordance with Nasdag CSD intermediary and applicable Nasdag CSD regulations. Nasdag CSD regulations
applicable on the day of preparation of the Terms of the Issue are Nasdag CSD Rulebook and Action Service
Description. Noteholders eligible to receive the redemption payment will be fixed at the end of the record date,
which will be the previous Business Day before the redemption payment date.

4.2.10. Early redemption (put option)

Each Noteholder has a right to demand full early redemption (put option) on 30 August 2024 at 90% for the
Nominal amount. In order to exercise the put option the Noteholders have to submit an application to the Issuer
or to its appointed agent not later than 40 (forty) Business Days prior the put option date.

In case of breach of the covenant “Not to change the control of the Issuer” as per the Section 5.5. “Covenants”
Noteholders have the rights to demand early redemption of Notes at the price of 101% (one hundred and one
per cent) for the Nominal amount, along with the accrued Coupon within 5 (five) Business Days after the Issuer
has received the notification.

Noteholders have the rights to demand early redemption of Notes (put option) in case of occurrence of the events
of default in accordance with the Section 5.2. “Event of default”.

4.2.11. Accrued interest calculation

The first Coupon starts to accrue on 30 August 2019, which is the First Settlement Date of the Notes issue. The
accrued Coupon is calculated presuming that there are 360 days in one year (day count convention - “European
30/360”). Accrued interest between Coupon payment dates shall be calculated as follows:

Al=F* C/360 * D, where

Al —accrued interest of one Note;
F —Nominal value of one Note;
C—annual Coupon rate (%);

D —the amount of days from the beginning of the Coupon accrual period according to European 30/360 day count
method.

4.2.12. Representation of the Noteholders
By submitting a subscription offer or acquiring the Notes on the secondary market, each Noteholder:

(a) expresses its consent to the appointment of the Collateral Agent to perform the obligations and exercise
the rights in connection with the Collateral as set forth in these Terms of the Issue and authorizes the
Collateral Agent to exercise the rights, powers, authorities and discretions specifically given to the
Collateral Agent under the Terms of the Issue and the Collateral Agent Agreement and any Collateral
Agreement;

(b) confirms that the fact that the Collateral Agent acts under the Collateral Agent Agreement concluded
with the Issuer does not constitute any conflict with the interests of the Noteholder;

(c) agrees that the Collateral Agent has only such functions, obligations and liability as expressly set forth in
these Terms of the Issue and the Collateral Agent Agreement, and that upon the performance of its
obligations and exercising of its rights in connection with the Collateral, the Collateral Agent is entitled
to act at its discretion, considering the interests of the Noteholders, and, unless specifically requested
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by the Collateral Agent, the Noteholders have no right to give any instructions to the Collateral Agent
and the Collateral Agent is under no obligation to request or follow such instructions, except for the
instructions provided under Section 5.4.;

(d) agrees that the Collateral Agent does not have any obligation, and is not be liable for not fulfilling such
obligation: (i) to take any action (including, without limitation, to commence legal proceedings,
compulsory enforcement proceedings, bankruptcy proceedings or any other proceedings) with the
purpose to satisfy any claims arising under the Terms of the Issue on the account of any assets of the
Issuer or any other Collateral Provider, except the enforcement of Collateral in accordance with the
Terms of the Issue and relevant instructions from the Majority Noteholders as stipulated in Section 5.4;
(ii) to ensure the existence, validity, enforceability or any specific feature whatsoever of the Collateral or
the assets encumbered with the Collateral or to preserve the Collateral or the assets encumbered with
the Collateral or their value or to assess any rights arising from or relating to the Collateral; (iii) to inform
the Noteholders or the Issuer about any circumstances except to the extent such obligation to provide
information is explicitly set forth in these Terms of the Issue; (iv) to provide any advice to the Noteholders
in legal, accounting, tax or other matters; (v) to verify, monitor or investigate the fulfilment of the
obligations of the Issuer or any Collateral Provider under these Terms or under the Collateral
Agreements, the correctness of representations and warranties or the adherence to covenants by the
Issuer or any Collateral Provider;

(e) agrees to pre-pay to the Collateral Agent all expenses (as detailed in the Collateral Agent Agreement) in
relation to enforcement of the Collaterals, if such are not covered by the Issuer, or to compensate any
other expenses of the Collateral Agent if so agreed by the Majority Noteholders as stipulated in Section
5.4

The Noteholders do not have any independent power to enforce the Collateral or to exercise any rights or powers
arising under the Collateral Agreements. Noteholders can exercise their rights in relation to the Collateral only
through the Collateral Agent pursuant to these Terms of the Issue (especially Section 5.4.).

Upon the performance of its obligations and exercising its rights, the Collateral Agent acts at its own discretion in
the interests and on the account of the Noteholders collectively and generally (and not of any particular
Noteholder) without having any independent interests of its own, other than deriving from these Terms of the
Issue and the Collateral Agent Agreement, and without any obligation to consider any interests or rights of the
Issuer or any Collateral Provider (other than arising from the applicable law or the Collateral Agreements) and
without any right of the Issuer to give any instructions to the Collateral Agent.

The Collateral Agent is not a party to the legal relationship between the Issuer, the Collateral Providers and the
Noteholders, and is under no circumstances liable for the performance of the obligations of the Issuer or the
Collateral Providers.

Upon the performance of its obligations and exercising of its rights the Collateral Agent has the right to use the
services of third parties and to appoint third party representatives (by acquiring the prior approval of the Majority
Noteholders if such is required by the applicable law). Notwithstanding such use or appointment, the Collateral
Agent shall not be released from its responsibilities towards the Issuer and the Noteholders under the Collateral
Agent Agreement and the Collateral Agent shall be personally liable to the Issuer and the Noteholders for the
respective obligations. Furthermore, no additional fees and/or expenses shall be paid to the Collateral Agent as a
result of such appointment by the Collateral Agent except where the payment of expenses is set forth in the
Collateral Agent Agreement. The Collateral Agent may refrain from acting in accordance with the instructions of
the Majority Noteholders as stipulated in Section 5.4. until it has received such indemnification or security as it
may require for all costs, claims, losses, expenses (including but not limited to legal fees for services within Latvia
or in other jurisdictions) and liabilities which it will or may expend or incur in complying with such instructions.

At the request of the Collateral Agent, any Noteholder shall provide the Collateral Agent with any information
and/or documents required by the latter for the purposes of identification of the Noteholder and/or for the
performance of other obligations arising from these Terms of the Issue , the Collateral Agreements, the Collateral
Agent Agreement, or from the applicable law.

4.2.13. Decisions of the Issuer on the Notes issue

On 8 August 2019, the Issuer’s shareholders passed the resolution (No. 2019-3) to approve the issue of secured
debt securities (Notes) with nominal value of EUR 1,000 (one thousand euro), total nominal issue value EUR
3,790,000 (three million seven hundred ninety thousand euro), annual Coupon rate 9.00% (nine per cent) paid an
a quarterly basis and approve the terms and conditions of the Notes Issue.
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4.2.14. The First Settlement Date of the Notes issue
The First Settlement Date (Issue Date) of the Notes issue is 30 August 2019, on which the Coupon starts to accrue.
4.2.15. Restrictions on free circulation of the Notes

The Notes are freely transferable securities and can be pledged. However, the Notes cannot be offered, sold,
resold, transferred or delivered in such countries or jurisdictions or otherwise in such circumstances in which it
would be unlawful or require measures other than those required under the laws of the Republic of Latvia and
the United States of America.
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5. Special Conditions

5.1. Disclosure of information

Up to the maturity of Notes, the Issuer shall publish all the information required by covenants, rules of Nasdaq
Riga and regulatory enactments.

5.2. Event of default
The Issuer is in default if at least one of the following occurs:

e The Issuer has failed to make a Coupon payment in full for more than 5 (five) Business Days following
the planned payment date;

e The Issuer has failed to make a Nominal value payment in full for more than 5 (five) Business Days
following the planned payment date;

e The lssuer has violated the conditions of the Section 5.5. “Covenants”;

e The Collateral Agent has not been able to establish the Collateral in favor of and on the name of the
Collateral Agent, not later than on 22 November 2019;

e The Issuer has failed to service other liabilities in the amount of over EUR 100,000 for more than 5 (five)
Business Days;

e Insolvency proceedings have been initiated against the Issuer;
e The Issuer has submitted an application for liquidation in the relevant state authorities in Latvia.

The Noteholder can submit a written notification to the Issuer regarding that the immediate repayment deadline
has set in for the Notes owned by the relevant Noteholder, at any time after the event of default has occurred
(and as long as the event of default exists). The Issuer has to pay the Nominal value of Notes along with the
accrued Coupon and contractual penalty, in accordance with Section 5.3. “Contractual penalty”, within 5 (five)
Business Days after the receipt of the notification.

5.3. Contractual penalty

In the case of non-compliance or inadequate compliance with a payment obligation arising from the Notes, the
Noteholder in question shall be entitled to require and the Issuer shall be obliged to pay contractual penalty upon
the request of any Noteholder to all the Noteholders from the date (excluding), when the deadline has set in, to
the actual payment date (including) in the amount of 0.05% (zero point zero five per cent) per day from the
relevant outstanding amount, but total contractual penalty may not exceed 10% (ten per cent) from the relevant
outstanding amount.

If the Issuer has failed to make Coupon payments in accordance with the deadlines specified in the Terms of the
Issue, Noteholders shall have the right to submit claims regarding the payment of the Coupon not earlier than
after 5 (five) Business Days following the payment date of the relevant Coupon.

If the Issuer has failed to make Nominal amount payment in accordance with the deadlines specified in the Terms
of the Issue, Noteholders shall have the right to submit claims regarding the repayment of the Nominal amount
not earlier than after 5 (five) Business Days following the payment day of the Nominal amount.

5.4. Enforcement

The Collateral Agent shall take all actions that the Collateral Agent as the holder of the Collateral may reasonably
take with the purpose to enforce the Collateral according to the procedure provided for in the Collateral
Agreements in case all of the following conditions are met:
(@) any of the events of default indicated in Section 5.2. above have occurred; and
(b) the Majority Noteholders have instructed the Collateral Agent in writing to enforce the Collateral;
(c) the Majority Noteholders have agreed with the Collateral Agent on the order of payment of the fee of
the Collateral Agent in relation to enforcement of the Collaterals.
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At the enforcement of the Collateral, the Noteholders may transfer their Notes to the Collateral Agent for the
purposes of the enforcement and in such case the Collateral Agent shall be obliged to accept the Notes and
enforce the Collateral as a direct creditor under the Notes. For the avoidance of doubt, nothing in these Terms of
the Issue shall oblige any Noteholder to transfer its Notes to the Collateral Agent and the Collateral Agent shall
be obliged to enforce the Collateral in relation to such Notes not transferred to the Collateral Agent on the basis
of Parallel Debt (without taking liability for enforceability of the Parallel Debt as such) in accordance with the
provisions of these Terms of the Issue.

If pursuant to the Terms of the Issue the Majority Noteholders instruct the Collateral Agent, the Collateral Agent
is obligated (subject to the other sentences in this Section) to comply with these instructions. Any such
instructions from the Majority Noteholders will be binding on all Noteholders. The Collateral Agent is not liable
for any consequences or damages that result from complying with the instructions, and the Majority Noteholders
who have given such instructions shall fully indemnify the Collateral Agent if the Collateral Agent is held liable for
this.

The Collateral Agent has the right to suspend enforcement and of its duties as Collateral Agent in general, if the
fees and/or expenses of the Collateral Agent are not paid when due by the Issuer, and the Noteholders fail to pay
such fees and/or expenses within 10 (ten) days of a respective request, or if the expenses of the Collateral Agent
that need to be borne in order to commence or continue enforcement are not prepaid by the Issuer or the
Noteholders within the same term. For the avoidance of doubt, the Noteholders shall have the right but not the
obligation to pay the Collateral Agent’s fees, costs or expenses instead of the Issuer, and in case the Noteholders
do so, the relevant Noteholders shall be deemed to have acquired the Collateral Agent’s claim against the Issuer
in the relevant part.

Proceeds from the enforcement of Collateral are applied in the following order of priority (whereas no interest
shall be added to the amounts received and due to be paid out by the Collateral Agent):

(a) first, towards payment of fees and costs, which must be paid as a result of the enforcement of the
Collateral pursuant to applicable laws (including, without limitation, notary fees, bailiff's fees, state
duties);

(b) second, towards payment of all fees, costs and expenses (including valuation costs and fees, costs and
expenses of third parties engaged in by the Collateral Agent) of the Collateral Agent payable under the
Terms of the Issue, any Collateral Agreement and the Collateral Agent Agreement;

(c) third, towards the Secured Obligations (if necessary, proportionally to the nominal values of the Notes
held by Noteholders);

(d) fourth, if any proceeds remain, they shall be returned to the Issuer.

When a decision or an expression of will by the Majority Noteholders, such a decision or expression of will must
be made at a meeting of the Noteholders, or in writing, pursuant to the order described below.

(a) Noteholders meetings may be convened by the Issuer, by the Collateral Agent, or by the Majority
Noteholders, and shall be notified at least 10 (ten) Business Days in advance by way of a notice sent in
accordance with these Terms to each Noteholder and the Collateral Agent. The notice shall include the
agenda of the meeting. If a meeting is convened by the Majority Noteholders or the Collateral Agent,
they shall send the convocation notice to the Issuer who shall forward it to the Noteholders within 2
(two) Business Days.

(b) Meetings shall take place in Riga, Latvia, on Business Days, during regular business hours, at such time
as is indicated in the notice. Meetings shall have quorum if the Noteholders present constitute Majority
Noteholders.

(c) Majority Noteholders shall mean the Noteholders holding over 51% (fifty one per cent) of all outstanding
Notes at the relevant time.

(d) Meetings of the Noteholders shall be chaired and recorded by the person appointed by the Majority
Noteholders represented at the meeting. A meeting may not adopt decisions in questions not included
in the agenda of the meeting as notified to the Noteholders, except where all Noteholders are present.
Meetings shall be held and minutes kept in English. A noteholder may be represented by any person
(including by another Noteholder) based on a written power of attorney.

(e) Minutes of the Noteholders meetings of the Noteholders must include: (i) the time and place of the
meeting; (i) the names and representatives of the Noteholders present, and the number of Notes held
by them; (iii) the resolutions voted on and the voting results, indicating which Noteholders voted “in
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(f)

5.5.

favor” and “against” the decision; (iv) signatures of all Noteholders present in the meeting. Minutes shall
be promptly sent by the Issuer to all Noteholders, regardless of whether they participated in the meeting.
Costs related to meetings of the Noteholders shall be borne by the Issuer.

Covenants

From the Issue Date of Notes to the date of repayment thereof, the Issuer and its subsidiary companies (if any)
shall undertake the following:

The Issuer and its subsidiaries shall continue business operations in the production of dry mixes and
ready-made liquid mixes;

Not to change the control of the Issuer (not to sell more than 50% of shares of the Issuer or its ultimate
holding company);

Not to commence Issuer’s liquidation and not to reduce the equity capital;
Any transactions with Related Persons shall be at market prices;

In case of investment larger than EUR 100,000 the Issuer or its subsidiaries may invest in share capital of
other companies only if the participation share is at least 51% and the Issuer or its subsidiaries retains
full control of a company;

Not to sell, present, change, rent, invest, or otherwise transfer into utilization the right to use the
trademarks owned or otherwise utilized by the Issuer and/or its subsidiary companies, except if
trademarks are sold, presented, changed, rented, invested, or otherwise transferred into utilization to
the Issuer’s subsidiary company, its managing company, or any companies dependent on the managing
company, other enterprises or companies which have directly or indirectly acquired participation in the
equity capital of the Issuer or in which the Issuer has acquired direct or indirect participation (if any), or
except if trademarks are sold, presented, changed, rented, invested, or otherwise transferred into
utilization to be used outside Latvia, Estonia and Lithuania;

Not to pay out dividends, if only audited consolidated Net Debt/Equity indicator is below 3.5 and if such
dividend payout is allowed by other credit agreements;

To maintain consolidated DSCR (profit before interest payments, tax payments, depreciation and
amortization calculation against all interest, coupon and principal payments) at least 1.1%;

To maintain both consolidated Net Debt/Equity (total interest bearing liabilities minus cash against
equity) and Net Debt/EBITDA (total interest bearing liabilities minus cash against profit before interest
payments, tax payments, depreciation and amortization calculation) indicators not exceeding:

o 5.0% asof31.12.2019
o 4.5,as0f31.12.2020
o 4.0,as0f31.12.2021
o 3.5, as0f31.12.2022

*for DSCR, Net Debt/Equity and Net Debt/EBITDA calculations as of 31.12.2019, EBITDA and Equity will be adjusted
to one-off refinancing expenses

From the Issue Date, to prepare and publish unaudited consolidated quarterly reports as per Latvian
accounting standards within 2 months after the reporting period;

Starting from 31.05.2020, to prepare and publish unaudited consolidated quarterly reports as per
International Financial Reporting Standards within 2 months after the reporting period;

Until 30.09.2019, to prepare and publish audited consolidated annual report as per Latvian accounting
standards for the year 2018;

Until 31.05.2020, to prepare and publish audited consolidated annual report as per International
Financial Reporting Standards for the year 2019 audited by Big4 (EY, Deloitte, PwC or KPMG). The
respective auditor’s opinion shall be unqualified;
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e  Starting from 01.01.2021, to prepare and publish audited consolidated annual report as per International
Financial Reporting Standards within 4 months after the reporting period audited by Big4 (EY, Deloitte,
PwC or KPMG). The respective auditor’s opinions shall be unqualified;

e  Proof of compliance with the financial covenants to be included in every audited consolidated annual
report;

e Toinclude Notes on the alternative market within 6 months after the Issue Date.

For the needs of this section, quarterly and annual reports (together with proof of compliance with financial
covenants) should be published on Issuer’s website and, after Notes are listed on First North operated by Nasdaq
Riga, via Nasdaq Riga information system.

For the needs of this section, the term “Related Persons” shall mean any natural or legal person, which is (a) a
shareholder or (b) a member of the board or council, or (c) a spouse of any persons referred to in (a) — (c) in
relation to the Issuer.

5.6. Procedure for applying for the waiver

The Issuer has the right to ask for the consent (waiver) of Noteholders to amend the conditions included in the
Terms of the Issue (apply for the waiver).

The amendment of the Terms of the Issue may include the amendment of any conditions, which is not restricted
by such characteristics of Notes as currency, Coupon rate, Coupon calculation method, Coupon and Nominal
payments, inclusion of Note for trade in other regulated or alternative markets, repayment deadline of Notes,
and other conditions, unless they contradict regulatory enactments in force in the Republic of Latvia.

The Issuer can apply for the waiver itself or through the intermediary of an authorized person (“Agent”). To apply
for the waiver, the Issuer or Issuer’s Agent shall notify Noteholders with intermediation of Nasdaq CSD, or, if Notes
are included in the Nasdaq Riga, via Nasdag Riga information system, specifying at the least the following
information:

e adescription of the changes applied for;

e ajustification of the necessity of the changes applied for;

e the date when the list of Noteholders eligible to grant the waiver (vote) will be fixed;
e the term within which a Noteholder can support or reject the offered waiver;

e instructions concerning notification about the support or rejection of the waiver and the procedure for
filling in the voting questionnaire;

e notification that a Noteholder willing to grant the waiver offered by the Issuer shall notify the Issuer and
Issuer’s Agent within the term specified in the application, which is certified by a postal seal, signature
on receipt or notification (letter or email) from Noteholder’s Custodian. If the Noteholder does not notify
the Issuer or Issuer’s Agent about the approval to grant waiver within the term specified in the
application, a Noteholder shall be deemed as not having granted the waiver;

e contact details of the Issuer and/ or the Issuer’s Agent to be used for notifications (telephone number
forinquiries, email or address for sending filled in and signed questionnaires, list of representative offices
and/ or branches of the Issuer and/ or Issuer’s Agent where Noteholders can submit the questionnaires
in person);

e other information including a fee to Noteholders for approving the waiver needed by Noteholders for
deciding upon granting the consent or refusal to grant the waiver to the Issuer.

The list of Noteholders shall be inquired from the Nasdaqg CSD as of the date falling to the fifth Business Day after
the waiver with intermediation of Nasdag CSD was sent to Nasdag CSD participants, who hold the Notes in
financial securities’ custody accounts or are Noteholders, or after the announcement of the waiver has been
published via Nasdaq Riga information system, if Notes are included in the regulated or alternative market.

The term allowed to Noteholders for deciding upon refusal to grant the waiver to the Issuer may not be shorter
than 14 (fourteen) calendar days after the waiver with intermediation of Nasdag CSD was sent to Nasdag CSD
participants, who hold the Notes in financial securities’ custody accounts or are Noteholders, or after the
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announcement of the waiver has been published via Nasdaq Riga information system, if Notes are included in the
regulated or alternative market.

Noteholders shall submit signed questionnaires with their decision to the Issuer or Issuer’s Agent by a deadline
set in the application of the waiver. The waiver is deemed to be granted, if Noteholders owning at least 2/3 (two
thirds) of the outstanding Notes issue (excluding Notes owned by the Issuer and / or its affiliated persons
(subsidiaries, shareholders, management or employees) from the total outstanding amount of Notes issue) have
voted for granting the waiver. The Notes owned by the Issuer and / or its affiliated persons (subsidiaries,
shareholders, management or employees) are not eligible to participate in the voting.

The Issuer or Issuer’s Agent shall sum up the received votes and notify Noteholders of the results of the voting
within one Business Day after the deadline for submitting the questionnaires by sending relevant notification with
intermediation of Nasdag CSD to Nasdaqg CSD participants, who hold the Notes in financial securities’” custody
accounts or are Noteholders, or by publishing relevant announcement via Nasdaq Riga information system, if
Notes are included in the regulated or alternative market.

If the accepted changes refer to specifications of the Notes and/ or Coupon calculation method, as well as
procedure of Coupon payments and/ or repayment of the Nominal, the Issuer shall inform Nasdag CSD on the
mentioned changes according to the regulation determined in the Nasdaqg CSD rules.

If the Issuer offers Noteholders a fee for approving the waiver and the waiver is granted, the Issuer transfers the
fee amount to the account stated by a Noteholder in the questionnaire not later than ten Business Days after the
waiver comes into force.
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6.1. Notice

This summary is of general nature and should not be considered a legal or tax advice. This section does not contain
full and complete information on all the taxes that relate to investment in the Notes. Tax rates and conditions for
paying taxes may change during the life of the Notes. Prospective Noteholders should consult with their own tax
advisors with respect to their particular circumstances and the effects of the Latvian or foreign tax laws to which
they may be subject to.

6.2. Definition of residents and non-residents

An individual is considered resident of Latvia for tax purposes if his or her permanent place of residence is Latvia;
or he or she stays in Latvia for more than 183 days within any 12-month period; or he or she is a citizen of Latvia
and is employed abroad by the government of Latvia. If an individual does not meet any of the above-mentioned
criteria, he or she is considered a non-resident for tax purposes.

Any legal entity is considered resident of Latvia for tax purposes if it is or should be established and registered in
Latvia according to the Latvian legislation. Other legal entities are considered non-residents for tax purposes.

Table 1 — Tax consequences in Latvia regarding the income derived from Notes that are issued by a legal entity
registered in Latvia (not being a credit institution) effective as of 1 January 2019:

Notes that are not in the Public
Leg?rl]é;?;gs of Circulation. . Conditions
beneficiary Interest tax | Capital gains
rate tax rate
20% tax from the interest (coupon) income is withheld and
transferred to the State budget by an Issuer of Notes, if it is
registered in Latvia.
Individual 1. Capital gains from a sale of Notes are considered equivalent to
resident of 20% 20%1 an interest income and taxed at 20% rate in Latvia. Self-
Latvia assessment and payment of a tax on capital gains [i.e. profits] in
Latvia is performed by a beneficiary of capital gains — a resident
individual filing the Annual Income Statement.
Interest (coupon) income and a capital gain from the Notes not
being in the Public Circulation constitute a part of the beneficiary
deferred: deferred: |~ Latvian company’s overall income.
20/80of the | 20/80 ofthe | The Corporate Income Tax obligation is deferred to the moment
Company beneficiary’s | beneficiary's | - ¢ profit distribution (dividends, interim dividends) or deemed
. net profit net profit ’
resident of distributed distributed | profit distribution (deemed dividends, non-business expenditure,
Latvia (equals to 20%| (equals to 20% bad debts provisions/write-off, loans to the related persons,
ofthegross | ofthegross | transfer pricing adjustments, liquidation quota) of the beneficiary
profit) profit) - Latvian company. The tax is assessed and paid based on the
Corporate Income Tax Return filed for a taxation period (a month
or year).
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Individual
non-resident

20% "

20% >*

20% tax from the interest (coupon) income is withheld and
transferred to the State budget by an Issuer of Notes, if it is
registered in Latvia.

2 _ The reduced 10%, 7%, 5%, 2.5% or 0% tax rate on interest
(coupon) income can be applicable in Latvia only, if provisions of
the Double Tax Treaty concluded between Latvia and other
relevant country stipulate it.

3 _ A capital gain from the Notes is considered equivalent to an
interest income and taxed at 20% rate. The purchaser of the
Notes, if it is registered in Latvia, performs calculation and
withholding of a tax on capital gain [i.e. a profit]. If no profit is
derived from a sale transaction, the 20% tax is not withheld/paid.
The Double Tax Treaty provisions may stipulate a tax exemption
in Latvia for a capital gain derived by a non-resident individual.

4 - A non-resident individual being a beneficiary of interest
(coupon) income or a capital gain could be obliged to assess and
pay tax in its country of residence at the tax rate specified in the
relevant country, which may or may not be higher than the one
applicable in Latvia.

Company non-
resident

56
exempt

6
exempt

Interest (coupon) income and a capital gain derived by a non-
resident company (except a company from one of the “black
listed countries or territories”) are tax exempt in Latvia.

5 - An issuer of Notes withholds 20% tax from interest (coupon)
payments, if they are made to a company non-resident registered
in one of the low tax or non-tax countries or territories specified
by the Cabinet Regulations of Latvia (so called “the black listed
countries and territories”).

6 - A non-resident company being a beneficiary of interest
(coupon) income or a capital gain could be obliged to assess and
pay tax in its country of residence at the tax rate specified in the
relevant country, which may or may not be higher than the one
applicable in Latvia.

Source: Legal acts of the Republic of Latvia
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7. Terms of the Offering

7.1. Subscription to the Notes

7.1.1.  Subscription period

The initial offering shall commence on 8 August 2019 and shall end on 8 September 2019 at 17:00.
7.1.2.  Subscription terms

Subscription orders to the Notes can be submitted to the Arranger every Business day during normal working
hours. More detailed information on the submission of the subscription orders is available by phone +371
67031222.

Subscription order can also be submitted to other Custodians, which in turn shall submit orders to the Arranger.
Business relations between Potential Noteholders and Custodians are regulated by contracts between them and
by the applicable legal acts.

The total Nominal value of subscribed Notes should be stated in the order. Potential Noteholders have the right
to submit several subscription orders during the offering. Subscription orders to the Notes are irrevocable. The
Arranger will register all submitted subscription orders of its clients according to legal requirements and internal
procedures.

The minimal subscription size is EUR 1,000 (one thousand euro) for a qualified investor and EUR 100,000 (one
hundred thousand euro) for other Potential Noteholders. The maximum subscription size is EUR 3,790,000 (three
million seven hundred ninety thousand euro). Subscription size should adhere Settlement Unit Multiple.

7.1.3. Notes price

Notes purchase price can be equal to 100% (one hundred per cent) of the Nominal value or purchase price could
be lower or higher than Nominal value, meaning that bonds can be sold with discount or premium, plus accrued
interest as per Section 4.2.11 “Accrued interest calculation”.

All subscription orders that were aggregated during the subscription period with the First Settlement Date as of
30 August 2019 will be delivered without accrued interest.

7.1.4. Reduction of the Notes issue size

At any time the Issuer may decide to discontinue offering of the Notes. The total issue size is equal to the actual
issue size of the Notes before such decision.

7.15. Allocation of the Notes to investors

The Notes are allocated to investors in the amount not larger than the amount specified in the subscription form
and not less than the minimum size as described in the Section 7.1.2. “Subscription terms”.

The Arranger at its sole discretion has a right to refuse to allocate all or part of the subscribed Notes to any
Potential Noteholder.

7.2. Settlement and delivery of the Notes

The First Settlement Date of Notes is 30 August 2019. All subscription orders that were aggregated during the
subscription period with settlement date is 30 August 2019 will be delivered without accrued interest.

The settlement date for the Notes can be any Business Day which is not earlier than the second Business Day and
not later than the 20th Business Day after subscription order is dully submitted to the Arranger.

Settlement of the Notes will be executed through the Nasdaqg CSD as DVP (delivery versus payment) transactions
according to the applicable Nasdaqg CSD rules and Operating Manual. The Custodians execute payments for the
Notes based on the results of the subscription provided by the Arranger. The Notes will be transferred to Potential
Noteholders’ financial instrument accounts on the settlement date.

Settlement for the Notes can be executed according to other procedure, which is agreed to by the Arranger and
Potential Noteholder.
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7.3. Pre-emptive rights

None of Potential Noteholders has the rights of pre-emption in respect to acquisition of the Notes in the initial
placement.

7.4. Transaction

Funds raised through initial subscription of Notes will be transferred to bank account of Issuer in AS BlueOrange
Bank. Issuer authorize BlueOrange Bank to transfer funds from lIssuer’s bank account to escrow account in
BlueOrange Bank for the re-financing of current liabilities in line with the escrow account agreement No. DK-
068109-01, signed on 23 August 2019 by AS BlueOrange Bank, Luminor Bank AS and Sakret Group. If terms of the
escrow account agreement will not be fulfilled by any of the parties and terms of escrow account will not be met,
meaning that the re-financing transaction will not occur, the Issuer authorizes AS BlueOrange Bank to use funds
raised from Notes Issue and held in escrow account, in order to purchase issued Notes from the Noteholders at
the secondary market at the issue price.
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8. Including of the Notes on the market and trading regulations

The Issuer plans to request the admission to trading of the Notes on First North, which is alternative market
operated by Nasdaq Riga, and submit Terms of the Issue and company description with Nasdaq Riga.

The Issuer has not signed any agreement with any person for Notes liquidity maintenance on the secondary
market.
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9. Additional Information

9.1. Advisors involved in the Issue

The Issuer has concluded an agreement with the Arranger to organize the Notes Issue, to communicate with the
Nasdag CSD and Nasdaq Riga, market it to Potential Noteholders and conduct settlement during the subscription
period. The Arranger may provide other services to the Issuer in the future and receive remuneration for it. The
Arranger may invest its own funds in the Notes.

The Issuer has signed the Collateral Agent Agreement with Collateral Agent, which holds the Collateral for the
benefit of the Noteholders and is authorized to dispose the Collateral in the interests of all the Noteholders in
accordance with the present Terms of the Issue and the Collateral Agent Agreement.

9.2. The external audit of the information included in the securities description

The auditors have not verified the information included in the securities description.

9.3. Statements or reports included in the securities description

The securities description does not contain any expert statements or reports.

9.4. Credit ratings

There is no credit rating assigned to the Issuer or to the Notes issue.
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10. The Issuer

10.1.  General Information on the Issuer

Country of location: Republic of Latvia.

Legal form: joint-stock company, legal status — legal person.

Date and place of registration: in the Commercial Register of the Republic of Latvia on 30 September 2009
Registration number: 40103251030

Legal address: “Ritvari”, Stopinu nov., Rumbula, Latvia, LV-2121

The company’s country of foundation is the Republic of Latvia.

The Issuer carries out its activities in accordance with the legal acts of the Republic of Latvia.

The main regulatory enactments which regulate Issuer’s activities are

e The Commercial Law of the Republic of Latvia;
e Labour Code;
e  Construction Law.

10.2.  Adescription of the Issuer’s position within the group

Issuer is a holding company and it controls operational companies of the Sakret Holdings group. Since Issuer is a
holding company, the insolvency of Issuer is directly dependent on operational subsidiaries and their financial

results.

10.3.  Auditor

The Issuer’s financial auditor of the last audited annual report is SIA “Deloitte Audits Latvia” (registration number:

40003606960, legal address: Grédu iela 4a, Riga, Latvia, LV-1019).

32



&3 SAKRET
AS “SAKRET HOLDINGS” Terms of the Notes Issue

11. Business of the Issuer

11.1.  Brief summary

Founded in 2003, Sakret Group is leading producer of dry mixes and ready-made liquid mixes for construction,
such as masonry cement, plastering, and concrete in Baltics. Group consists of three dry-mixes factories in all
three Baltic states, each with over 100,000 tonnes production capacity per year and liquid ready-made mixes
factory in Latvia. Company employs more than 125 people.

Additional information about the business of Sakret Group is available in the Appendix 1.
11.2.  Management of the Issuer

e  Maris Kelpis (Founder, Chairman of the Management Board)

Maris is the founder of Sakret Group. He has held a controlling stake in Sakret Group since the founding and still
follows the operations on a daily basis.

e Andris Vanags (Chairman of the Supervisory Board)

Andris has spent long years working for construction material companies producing cement, concrete and other
products. Prior experience include client service manager at AS Brocéni (currently Cemex) and project manager
at AS Brocéenu Siferis.

Andris holds a BSc in chemical technology,MSc in silicate and high-temperature materials chemistry and
technology from Riga Technical University and PhD in business management.

He acted as a Special Advisor to the former Prime Minister of Latvia, Maris Kucinskis, and is a Member of the
Counsellors Convention of RTU and Member of the Council of Latvian Chamber of Commerce and Industry.

e Juris Grinvalds (Chief Commercial Officer, Member of the Management Board)

From 1996 to 2003, worked in the Danish paint company SKALFLEX. Joined Sakret in early beginning of 2003 as
Sales Director. Lead the construction project of the largest dry mixing plant in the Baltic states. Plant in Kédainiai
in Lithuania was opened in 2008. Currently coordinates Sakret sales in the Baltics and Scandinavian countries, as
well as is the Director of Sakret Plus.

Juris graduated from the Faculty of Civil Engineering of Latvia University of Agriculture. Currently serves as Board
Member of Association of Building Materials Manufacturers.

e  Andis Ziedonis (Chief Financial Officer, Member of the Management Board)

Andis has more than 20 year experience as CFO. He joined Sakret in 2006 after 8 years in one of the largest press
publishing house in the Baltics, where he started as an Economist and was promoted to Chief Economist, CFO and
member of the board. He also has experience in banking sector.

Andis holds a combined BSc in Engineering and Economics from Riga Technical University.
11.3.  Supervisory Board of the Issuer
The Supervisory Board of Issuer consists of three members:

e  Andris Vanags, chairman
e Valérija Liege,
e Artis Grinbergs
11.4.  Shareholders of the Issuer

The only shareholder of AS “SAKRET HOLDINGS” is a company SIA “PARVALDIBAS SISTEMAS”, with registration
number: 42103085387 and legal address: “Ritvari”, Stopinu nov., Rumbula, Latvia, LV-2121.

Issuer’s share capital is EUR 35,000 which consists of 25,000 ordinary shares, each of them with a nominal value
of EUR 1.40. SIA “PARVALDIBAS SISTEMAS” holds all 25,000 shares of the Issuer.

SIA “PARVALDIBAS SISTEMAS” share capital is EUR 8,000 which consists of 8,000 ordinary shares, each of them
with a nominal value of EUR 1.00.

33



&3 SAKRET
AS “SAKRET HOLDINGS” Terms of the Notes Issue

At the moment of signing the Terms of the Issue, the current structure of SIA “PARVALDIBAS SISTEMAS”
shareholders is as follows:

Table 2 — SIA “PARVALDIBAS SISTEMAS” shareholders structure

Name, surname/ Legal name Number of shares % of the total number
Maris Kelpis (120561-10558) 6,824 85.300%
llgvars Belinskis (061060-10547) 810 10.125%
Private individuals 366 4.575%
Total: 8,000 100%

The beneficiary of the Issuer, controlling the Issuer, is chairman of the board, Maris Kelpis.

At the moment of signing the Terms of the Issue, the Issuer has no information at its disposal regarding any
agreements, the fulfilment of which might cause changes in the Issuer’s control.

11.5.  Legal proceedings and arbitrage

At the moment of signing the Terms of the Issue, the Issuer are not involved in any government interventions,
lawsuits or arbitrage processes, which may significantly affect or have significantly affected the financial situation
or profitability of the Issuer.

11.6.  Substantial changes in financial situation of the Issuer

As of the publication of the last financial statement, the financial situation or performance of the Issuer has not
worsened.

Issuer plans to use funds raised from Notes Issue, together with senior financing from AS BlueOrange Bank, to
refinance current liabilities from credit institutions. After the refinancing, due to the discount granted by current
credit institution, the consolidated equity of the Sakret Group will increase. Together with the shareholders
contribution in amount of EUR 1m, the consolidated equity will become positive, allowing Sakret Group to
participate in several grant and energy-efficiency increase programs and positively affecting the financial standing
and solvency of the Issuer.

The Issuer is unaware of any other factors, claims, obligations, or events which would negatively affect the
financial situation or performance of the Issuer in future.

11.7. Important agreements

The Issuer has no knowledge of any important agreements that could have been concluded between the Issuer
and any related company and that could affect the Issuer’s capability to fulfil its liabilities due to investors
regarding the securities to be issued.

11.8.  Significant recent and known trends

At the moment of signing the Terms of the Issue, the Issuer has no information at its disposal regarding any recent
tendencies that have negatively affected the Issuer or the activity of the construction material production
industry.

At the moment of signing the Terms of the Issue, the Issuer has no information at its disposal regarding any
identified tendencies that have negatively affected the Issuer or the activity of the construction material
production industry.

11.9.  Documents available to the public

After the Notes will be included in First North operated by Nasdaq Riga, Terms of the Issue and company
description will be available to the public and on Issuer’s website within 6 months after the Issue Date.
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12. Financial information

The last audited equity of the Issuer is negative EUR (8,345,213).
Issuer does not provide pro forma financial information.
The profit/loss forecast has not been carried out.

Information, which is disclosed in this section of the Terms of the Issue, is taken from the Issuer’s audited and
unaudited financial reports that are approved by the Issuer’'s management. The annual reports are prepared
according to the Latvian accounting standards.

As per unaudited data for 2018, all loan liabilities from credit institutions are classified as short-term due to
refinancing planned in September 2019 with funds raised from Notes Issue, together with senior financing from
AS BlueOrange Bank.

12.1.  Objections in the financial information of the audit report
The audit report for financial statements for 2016 contained no objections.

The audit report for financial statements for 2017 one objection, regarding significant uncertainty about the
company's ability to continue as a going concern. Auditor notes, that Sakret Group ended 2017 year with net loss
of EUR 220,632, consolidated equity was negative EUR 8,345,213 and its current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by EUR 2,629,360. Thus, auditor states, that the continued operation of the Sakret Group is dependent on
its ability to meet its credit obligations on time, as well as to meet all financial ratios and secure the long-term
financing from the credit institutions.

Issuer plans to use funds raised from Notes Issue, together with senior financing from AS BlueOrange Bank, to
refinance current liabilities from credit institutions. Due to the discount granted by current credit institution, the
consolidated equity of the Sakret group will increase. Together with the shareholders contribution in amount of
EUR 1m, the consolidated equity will become positive, allowing Sakret Group to participate in several grant and
energy-efficiency increase programs and positively affecting the financial standing and solvency of the Issuer.

12.2. Income Statement

Table 3 —Issuer’s consolidated income statements, 2015-2018, EUR

2018
2015 2016 2017 (unaudited)

Revenue 19 146 596 17 648 223 19298 618 21265701
Cost of goods sold 14414 231 13220742 14 649 323 15872 424
Gross profit 4732 365 4427 481 4 649 295 5393277
Cost of sales 2 582 205 2544522 2764948 2799 993
Administration costs 1030176 982 097 1048 794 1470121
Other operating income 49 005 139523 21767 48 116
Other operating expenses 116 438 56 821 87570 103170
Interest income 1302 1284 1552 1248
Interest expense 861 803 878 922 976 775 652772
Profit before tax 192 050 105 926 (205 473) 416 585
Income tax 70369 79 557 15159 49 230
Deferred tax 2734 - - -
Net profit for the reporting year 118 947 26 369 (220 632) 367 355
12.3.  Balance sheet
Table 4 — Issuer’s consolidated balance sheet at the end of period 2015-2018, EUR

31.12.2018

31.12.2015 31.12.2016 31.12.2017 (unaudited)

Non-current assets:
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Intangible assets 177 688 317129 411872 446 236
TOTAL: 177 688 317 129 411872 446 236
Property, plant and equipment:
Plant and property 9717 694 9229525 8780792 8391711
Machinery 3300286 2925925 2537216 2126376
Other fixed assets 75431 71068 99 582 109 805
Prepayments for fixed assets 8 000 4296 6529 -
TOTAL: 13101411 12230814 11424119 10627892
Non-current financial assets:
Other long-term debtors 20 880 13926 13918 34113
Other financial assets 28 28 - -
TOTAL: 20908 13954 13918 34113
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS: 13300007 12561897 11849909 11108241
Current assets:
Inventory:
Raw materials 1406227 1565903 1367758 1380966
Ready-made products 1450 840 942 702 896 466 899 109
Prepayments for inventory 12 580 6319 27 670 7 006
TOTAL: 2869647 2514924 2291 894 2287081
Accounts receivable:
Receivables from clients and suppliers 1940896 1953264 2515993 2717539
Other receivables 128 121 159 127 142 318 149 858
Next period expenses 27 388 33776 36392 47 356
Short-term loans to shareholders 35572 35572 35572 35572
TOTAL: 2131977 2181739 2730275 2950 325
Cash and cash equivalents: 489 172 397 591 306 063 342 277
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS: 5490796 5094 254 5328 232 5579 683
TOTAL ASSETS: 18790803 17656151 17178141 16687924
Owners’ Equity:
Fixed capital 35000 35000 35000 35000
Denomination reserve 572 572 572 572
Reorganisation reserve (8491 750) (8491750) (8491750) (8491 750)
Currency exchange rate revaluation reserve 24 899 24 899 24 899 24 899
Retained earnings 49 012 143 870 148 327 (90 811)
Profit for the year 89 244 4 457 (239 138) 349 876
TOTAL: (8293023) (8282952) (8522090) (8172214)
Owners' Equity attributable to the members of the
parent company:
Minority shareholder participation 136 459 158 371 176 877 194 356
TOTAL: 136 459 158 371 176 877 194 356
TOTAL EQUITY: (8156564) (8124581) (8345213) (7977858)
Liabilities:
Long-term liabilities:
Debt from credit institutions 19140971 17341139 16641137 -
Other liabilities 167 093 167 093 167 093 167 093
Liabilities of related parties 896 532 767 932 757 532 644 132
Financial leasing 33085 - - -
Deferred tax asset 5713 - - -
TOTAL: 20243394 18276164 17565762 811225

Short-term liabilities:
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Debt from credit institutions 2547579 2799999 1700000 17641137
Other liabilities 500 145 654 835 1170582 1384 137
Financial leasing 53876 37 545 37 545 -
Pre-payments from buyers 11 851 222099 118 865 38127
Debts to suppliers and contractors 1550063 1957 165 3005926 2976 635
Liabilities of related parties 804 740 624 844 421535 469 324
Taxes and social security payments 360 554 520983 325638 191 555
Other creditors 136 658 98 845 139133 130153
Accrued liabilities 689 615 559 250 1009 365 994 486
Unpaid dividends for minority shareholders 48 892 29003 29003 29003
6703973 7504568 7957592 23854557
TOTAL LIABILITIES: 26947367 25780732 25523354 24665782
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 18790803 17656151 17178141 16687924
12.4.  Statement of cash flows
Table 5 - Issuer’s consolidated statement of cash flow for 2015-2018, EUR
2015 2018
2016 2017 (unaudited)
Cash flow from operations
Profit before tax 192 050 105 926 (205 473) 416 585
Corrections:
Depreciation and amortisation 1060651 1077005 1027 755 902 426
Interest income 1302 1284 1552 1248
Interest expense 861 803 878922 976 775 652772
Income from disposal of assets 42 539 3795 10925 16521
Profit before change in working capital 2 070 663 2056 774 1786 580 1954014
Net change in working capital 752 641 542 770 717 837 (600 208)
Cash from operations 2823304 2599544 2504 417 1353 806
Income tax paid 20730 40950 71271 20785
Net cash from operations 2802574 2 558 594 2433 146 1333021
Cash flow from investments
Investments in tangible and intangible assets 208 403 309 092 309 013 135148
Interest received 56 - - -
Net cash from investments (208 347) (309 092) (309 013) (135 148)
Cash flow from financing operations
Gain from sale of assets 92422 4567 20 369 14 521
(Paid)/ received loans, net (2172075) (1392722) (1284254) (486 445)
Interest paid 866 356 903 512 951776 652 190
Expense for buying rented assets 48 814 49 416 - 37 545
Net cash from financing operations (2994 823) (2341083) (2215661) (1161659)
Change in cash (400 596) (91 581) (91 528) 36214
Cash at the beginning of the year 889 768 489 172 397591 306 063
Cash at the end of the year 489172 397 591 306 063 342 277
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